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Part I: Key Information

1 Introduction

On 1 April 1999 the Boards of BP Amoco and ARCO announced that they had reached agreement on a proposed combination of their
two companies.

The Combination is subject to a number of conditions, including its approval by the ARCO Shareholders and BP Amoco Shareholders
in their respective shareholder meetings. In addition to shareholder approval, the Combination is conditional on a number of regulatory,
tax and other consents and confirmations in the US and the European Union. The companies are working towards completing the
Combination later this year. The ARCO Board has approved the Merger Agreement and has recommended that ARCO Shareholders vote
in favour of it. The BP Amoco Board has unanimously recommended that BP Amoco Shareholders vote in favour of the Combination.

2 Structure of the Combination and Subdivision

2.1  Structure

The Combination is to be effected by a statutory merger under Delaware law whereby Prairie Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BP
Amoco, will be merged with and into ARCO and ARCO will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of BP Amoco in accordance with the
terms of the Merger Agreement.

2.2 Subdivision

It is proposed to subdivide the ordinary share capital of BP Amoco with effect from 4 October 1999 so that each BP Amoco Ordinary
Shareholder and each holder of BP Amoco ADSs will receive one additional BP Amoco Ordinary Share or BP Amoco ADS for each BP
Amoco Ordinary Share or BP Amoco ADS they hold. If the Subdivision occurs prior to the Effective Date this will affect the number of BP
Amoco Ordinary Shares to be issued to give effect to the Combination. Further details of the Subdivision are set out in paragraph 12 of
this Part | and in Section C of Part V.

2.3 Consideration under the Combination
The aggregate consideration to be paid by BP Amoco pursuant to the Combination (on the basis set out in paragraph 17.1 of Part VII)
will be $31 billion.

24 Combination Terms
() Under the terms of the Combination, ARCO Common Shareholders (other than BP Amoco, ARCO or any subsidiary of BP Amoco
or ARCO) will be entitled to receive:

for each ARCO Common Share 4.92 BP Amoco Ordinary Shares in the form of BP Amoco ADSs or, if they so elect in
a timely manner, BP Amoco Ordinary Shares (each BP Amoco ADS will represent six
BP Amoco Ordinary Shares and in consequence ARCO Common Shareholders will
receive 0.82 of a BP Amoco ADS in exchange for each ARCO Common Share they
own at the Effective Date). If the Subdivision is approved at the EGM and is completed
prior to the Effective Date, ARCO Common Shareholders will be entitled to receive
1.64 BP Amoco ADSs or, if they so elect, 9.84 BP Amoco Ordinary Shares for each
ARCO Common Share they own at the Effective Date.

()  ARCO Common Shareholders who would otherwise have been entitled to receive a fraction of a BP Amoco ADS (including any
odd lot of less than six BP Amoco Ordinary Shares representing such a fractional interest) will receive, in lieu thereof, cash (without
interest and rounded to the nearest cent) equal to (a) the amount of that fractional interest multiplied by (b) the average closing sale
prices for BP Amoco ADSs on the New York Stock Exchange for the ten trading days ending on the fifth complete trading day
prior to the Effective Date, as reported in the Wall Street Journal.

() ARCO DSC II, a subsidiary of ARCO, will be exchanging the ARCO Common Shares it holds for BP Amoco Ordinary Shares in the
form of BP Amoco ADSs prior to the Effective Date under the Share Exchange Agreement.
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(d) Upon the Effective Date, all employee options and other rights to acquire ARCO Common Shares will convert into options and
other rights to acquire BP Amoco Ordinary Shares, in the form of BP Amoco ADSs, after adjustment to take account of the
Exchange Ratio.

A description of the principal terms of the Combination is set out in Section A of Part V.

2.5 Shareholder Approvals and Other Conditions

(a) BP Amoco Shareholder approval
The Combination is conditional upon the passing of Resolution 1 by BP Amoco Shareholders at the EGM. A number of other
resolutions will also be considered at the EGM and are summarised in paragraph 16 of this Part I.

(b)  ARCO Shareholder approval
The Combination is conditional upon approval by the holders of a majority of the voting power of the outstanding ARCO Common
and Preference Shares on the relevant record date.

A special meeting of ARCO Shareholders has been convened for 30 August 1999, at which ARCO Shareholders will be asked to
adopt the Merger Agreement.

(¢) Other conditions
The Combination is also conditional on the satisfaction or waiver of certain other conditions, details of which are set out in Section A
of Part V.

2.6 Consents and Timing

The Combination is conditional on obtaining all required consents and clearances. Application has been made to the relevant US and
European Union authorities for the necessary consents and clearances, further details of which are set out in Section B of Part V. Subject
to obtaining these consents and clearances and shareholder approvals, BP Amoco and ARCO are working to complete the Combination
later this year.

2.7 Termination Rights
The Merger Agreement may be terminated by BP Amoco or ARCO in certain circumstances before the Effective Date. If the Merger
Agreement is terminated:

. by ARCO because the BP Amoco Board withdraws its approval or favourable recommendation of the Combination to the
BP Amoco Shareholders; or

. by either BP Amoco or ARCO because the BP Amoco Shareholders do not approve the Combination at the EGM and prior to the
termination the BP Amoco Board has withdrawn its approval or favourable recommendation of the Combination to the BP Amoco
Shareholders,

then a termination payment of $500 million will be payable by BP Amoco.

An equivalent sum (including profit realisable by BP Amoco under the Stock Option Agreement) may be received by BP Amoco from
ARCO in certain circumstances including the withdrawal of the ARCO Board’s approval or favourable recommendation of the
Combination to the ARCO Shareholders or where the ARCO Board becomes entitled to recommend to the ARCO Shareholders an
acquisition transaction proposed by a third party.

Further details on the termination rights under the Merger Agreement and Stock Option Agreement are set out in paragraphs 10, 11
and 12 of Section A of Part V.

3 ARCO’s Business

ARCO is a worldwide oil and gas enterprise. Its turnover for the year ended 31 December 1998 was approximately $10.3 billion and its gross
assets at that date were approximately $25.2 billion. It operates in two segments: exploration and production and refining and marketing.



Exploration and production explores for, develops and produces oil and natural gas worldwide. Areas in which it has operations include
Alaska, the Gulf of Mexico, China, Indonesia and the United Kingdom North Sea. The largest element of ARCO’s operations in the Lower
48 States of the United States is held by ARCO’s 82 per cent owned subsidiary, Vastar.

Refining and marketing is primarily responsible for petroleum refining, marketing and transportation. ARCO’s refining and marketing
operations are primarily in the western United States. These operations include two west coast refineries and over 1,700 branded retail
gasoline outlets in six western states of the United States and British Columbia in Canada.

Further information on ARCO is set out in Parts Ill and VII.

4  Background to the Combination

In recent years BP Amoco has periodically reviewed strategic initiatives for the improvement of its competitive position in the oil and gas
industry worldwide, including possible business combinations, joint ventures and other significant transactions. In August 1998, BP and
Amoco announced they were merging under the name of BP Amoco to become one of the three largest integrated oil and gas
companies by market capitalisation. The BP Amoco Board believed that such a merger would create a more competitive global energy
and petrochemicals group than either BP or Amoco would have been on its own and would generate significant opportunities to deliver
value to shareholders. This merger was completed on 31 December 1998.

ARCO has also been reviewing its competitive position in the oil and gas industry and considering strategies to improve that position.
In response to the large drop in crude oil prices and significant industry consolidation during 1998, the ARCO management and ARCO
Board concluded that as an alternative to executing its strategic plan of focusing on its core oil and gas businesses as an independent
company, ARCO should explore a strategic combination with another company in the oil and gas industry. Having considered the
possible merits of a combination with each of the three largest integrated oil and gas companies by market capitalisation and certain
other companies, ARCO’s management determined that the greatest opportunities for synergies and enhanced shareholder value, taking
into account transaction costs and risks, would be created by a combination of ARCO and BP Amoco. As a consequence, ARCO
contacted BP Amoco to discuss options for closer co-operation between the two companies.

As set out in the Proxy Statement/Prospectus published by ARCO on 15 July 1999, while these discussions were ongoing ARCO was
approached with a specific proposal for a share for share merger by another company. This proposal had an implied value of
approximately $82.77 per ARCO Common Share, based on the offering company’s closing share price on 30 March 1999 (the day
before the ARCO Board approved the Combination), as compared to an implied value of approximately $84.72 per ARCO Common
Share under the BP Amoco offer at that time. The ARCO Board preferred a combination with BP Amoco to the alternative offer because,
inter alia, it believed that the alternative offer would not generate the same level of cost savings and synergies as the combination with BP
Amoco, was not as certain to be completed as the combination with BP Amoco and because it believed that BP Amoco Shares would
be likely to have a greater long term value than the shares of the other company.

5 Reasons for, and Benefits of, the Combination

The Boards of BP Amoco and ARCO believe that combining the two companies’ complementary oil and gas assets around the world will
result in an enterprise that will have a stronger strategic position, will enhance efficiencies and cost competitiveness, and will create
significant opportunities for growth.

The BP Amoco Board considered a number of factors in determining to approve the Combination. The material factors they
considered are set out below:

5.1 Strengthened Strategic Position

The combination of BP Amoco and ARCO will make BP Amoco the largest non-state owned oil producer in the world, as well as the
largest oil and gas producer in both the US and the UK. ARCO wiill bring to BP Amoco distinctive assets that will diversify its portfolio of
international assets, bolster or extend its strategic position in key areas, and significantly increase its options for growth. Among the
strategic gains considered by the BP Amoco Board to be significant to the Combination are the following:
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(@) Alaskan oil and gas
The combined Alaskan oil assets of BP Amoco and ARCO will provide BP Amoco with opportunities for significant cost reductions
and incentives for new investment, which should result in a more efficient and cost competitive Alaskan North Slope oil region.
ARCO’s significant Alaskan gas interests, taken together with BP Amoco’s existing interests, will justify a new phase of investigation
into the feasibility of bringing Alaskan North Slope gas deposits into production.

(b)  Refining and marketing
In the US, the combination of ARCO’s leading position in refining and marketing on the west coast with BP Amoco’s substantial
position in the rest of the US will enable the combined group to compete on an equal footing with other major coast-to-coast
marketers of gasoline.

(c) Global gas assets
The addition of ARCO’s gas production and reserves will make BP Amoco the second largest non-state owned gas producer in
the world and offer significant potential for further growth in production. In Southeast Asia ARCO will bring to BP Amoco, in
addition to ARCO’s current gas producing assets in China and Indonesia, significant growth interests in the Thailand/Malaysia joint
development zone and in Indonesia’s world-class Tangguh field, each of which is currently undeveloped.

5.2 Synergies

The combined company is expected to achieve an annual rate of pre-tax cost savings of approximately $1 billion during the second full
year after the Effective Date of the transaction, with anticipated pre-tax cost savings of approximately $600 million to be achieved during
the first full year. The estimated cost savings, which are in addition to cost savings previously targeted by BP Amoco and ARCO
separately, are expected to come from the following:

(@) organisational efficiencies, including reductions in staff and corporate overheads;

(b) more focused exploration efforts through the use of shared technology to reduce the risk of unsuccessful wells and through the
ability to choose only the most attractive opportunities available to the combined company;

(c) standardisation and simplification of business processes, e.g. information technology; and
(d) rationalisation of operations, e.g. through the elimination of duplicate offices and the adoption of common procurement policies.

The anticipated cost savings are expected to be offset by restructuring charges and transaction expenses of approximately $1 billion in
the first year after the Effective Date, including approximately $400 million in UK stamp duty to be incurred on the issue of BP Amoco
ADSs to ARCO Common Shareholders. BP Amoco expects to reduce the worldwide staff of the combined company by approximately
2,000 positions as a result of the Combination.

5.3 Additional Considerations
In the course of reaching its decision to approve the Combination, the BP Amoco Board considered the following additional factors:

(@) the opinion of Morgan Stanley to the effect that, as at 30 March 1999, the Exchange Ratio was fair from a financial point of view to
BP Amoco;

(b)  that the Combination would be subject to acquisition accounting under UK GAAP, resulting in on-going additional depreciation and
amortisation charges. It is currently estimated that these additional charges will amount to $2.0 billion in the first full year following
the Combination. Whilst accepting that this accounting treatment would have an adverse effect on reported earnings, the Board
recognised that investors were increasingly prepared to take other measures into account in assessing the performance of a
company;

(c) that in the first full year of the combined company’s operations, the Combination would be accretive to BP Amoco’s earnings per
ordinary share, based on achieving anticipated pre-tax cost savings of approximately $600 million during the first full year
and excluding the effect of the additional depreciation and amortisation charges, the restructuring charges and transaction
expenses. This anticipated accretion assumed that prospective oil prices will remain above $10 per barrel. The Board also
recognised that the transaction would generate significant incremental cash flow through reduced cash costs arising from the



targeted synergies and reduced capital expenditure through the application of BP Amoco capital efficiency targets to all of the
combined company’s assets;

(d)  that the implied premium to be paid for ARCO’s outstanding shares, based on the relative market prices of BP Amoco and ARCO
shares, was approximately 26 per cent based on average closing market prices for both the one-week and one-month periods
prior to the first public reporting of a possible combination. The Board also considered that such implied premium was in line with
the implied premia paid or payable in the BP/Amoco and Exxon/Mobil mergers when measured by reference to the equivalent
trading periods;

(e) that the growth opportunities in ARCO’s existing asset base could contribute up to 300,000 barrels per day in oil or oil equivalents
of new production by 2010;

() that the proposed Combination was not expected to result in any change to the ceiling target for BP Amoco’s gearing or to its
policy of paying dividends equal to approximately 50 per cent of its estimated average earnings, excluding the effect of additional
depreciation and amortisation charges resulting from the Combination, over the course of a business cycle;

Q) that BP Amoco’s current management would manage the combined company;

(h) the possibility that the process of planning for the integration of ARCO into BP Amoco and the regulatory approval process and its
effects might adversely affect the delivery of BP Amoco business performance targets. The Board noted the proposal of BP Amoco
management that the risk of such adverse effects could be minimised through the appointment of two senior executives dedicated
principally to managing these processes; and

(i) the possibility of encountering difficulties in achieving cost savings in the amounts currently estimated or in the time frame currently
contemplated.

In view of the wide variety of factors considered by the BP Amoco Board in connection with its evaluation of the Combination, the
BP Amoco Board did not consider it practical to, and did not attempt to, quantify, rank or otherwise assign relative weights to the specific
factors described above, and individual members of the Board may have given different weight to different factors.

6  Directors of BP Amoco Following the Combination

The composition of the Board is not expected to change as a result of the Combination.

7  Accounting Treatment and Reporting

BP Amoco will account for the Combination using the acquisition method of accounting under UK GAAP. As a consequence, the assets
and liabilities of ARCO will be reflected in the BP Amoco Group accounts at their fair value, and the excess of the purchase price for the
acquisition over the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired will be accounted for as goodwill, which will be amortised over its
estimated economic life. The additional depreciation on the fair value uplift to fixed assets and the amortisation of the goodwill will give
rise to non-cash charges against profit of approximately $2.0 billion in the first full year following the Combination. They will slowly decline
but will persist for a number of years. These charges will not affect the Company’s cashflows nor is it expected that they will affect the
Company'’s ability to pay dividends.

The Company intends to disclose additional indicators of the BP Amoco Group’s financial performance such as EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA, the aim of which will be to bring greater clarity to the reporting of the performance of the BP Amoco Group. Whilst not being
recognised UK or US GAAP measures, the Company believes these indicators will in the future enable investors to evaluate better both
the Company’s historical performance and its performance against that of its competitors. These new indicators are expected to be
disclosed for the first time with the announcement of the Company’s 1999 half year results. The additional indicators of financial
performance will be published with, and be reconcilable to, BP Amoco’s other measures of financial performance.
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8 Dividends Following the Combination

The future dividends of BP Amoco will be dependent on its future earnings and financial condition and other factors affecting its business,
but it is expected that BP Amoco will continue its current policy of paying dividends equal to approximately 50 per cent of its estimated
average earnings (excluding the effect of the depreciation and amortisation charges resulting from the Combination) over the course of the
business cycle.

BP Amoco currently expects that the timetable for dividends to be paid to its Ordinary Shareholders over the next twelve months will
be as set out below. ARCO Common Shareholders will participate in all BP Amoco dividends that have a record date on or after the
Effective Date.

Date of Announcement Record Date Payment Date

10 August 1999 20 August 1999 10 September 1999
2 November 1999 12 November 1999 10 December 1999
15 February 2000 25 February 2000 24 March 2000

9 May 2000 19 May 2000 12 June 2000

The announcement of a dividend in any quarter is not guaranteed, and is ultimately within the discretion of the BP Amoco Board.
Dividends on the BP Amoco Preference Shares will continue to be paid half-yearly on 31 January and 31 July.

9  BP Amoco Group Targets

Following the merger of BP and Amoco on 31 December 1998, the Group Chief Executive and the management of BP Amoco have
conducted a major strategic review of the combined BP Amoco Group’s operations and asset base and, as a consequence of this
review, have developed targets for its financial performance. The primary targets are:

(@  the percentage return on average capital employed of the BP Amoco Group to be increased, through efficiency improvements and
growth, by between five and six percentage points over the three year period to the end of the year 2001;

(o)  the gross level of capital expenditure over the three year period to the end of the year 2001 to be about $26 billion;

(c) aggregate asset disposals of around 15 per cent of capital employed by around the end of the year 2001 i.e. approximately
$10 billion of disposals;

(d)  capital employed by the BP Amoco Group to grow in the three year period to the end of the year 2001;
(e) gearing to remain in a range from about 25 per cent to about 30 per cent; and
() continuation of its current dividend policy (as described in paragraph 8 above).

The targets are expected to be achievable in external environmental conditions (including oil prices) over the period to the end of the
year 2001 which are not substantially worse than those prevailing on average during 1998.

These targets replace previously announced targets and take account of an expected rate of pre-tax cost savings of $2 billion per
annum resulting from the merger with Amoco, a rate of cost saving which it is now believed can be achieved before the end of 1999, but
do not reflect the impact of the Combination. In particular the targets do not include the estimated pre-tax cost savings of $1 billion, the
expected asset disposals of approximately $3 billion or the effects of the fair valuation of ARCO assets and the resulting amortisation and
additional depreciation charges. The targets will be reviewed following the Combination and may require adjustment.

10 Current Trading and Prospects

Volatility in the general trading environment, particularly in relation to higher crude oil prices, will affect results. Higher crude oil prices in
the second quarter of 1999 are likely to cause an improvement in the second quarter 1999 trading performance of BP Amoco and ARCO
over the corresponding first quarter 1999 performance.



Restructuring activity has caused BP Amoco’s first quarter 1999 results, and is likely to cause its near term results, to be affected by
restructuring charges. These charges may be significant in the context of a quarter’s or a full year’s results.

The Directors believe that the prospects of the BP Amoco Group will be enhanced by the Combination.

11 Recent Developments

The Company has announced a significant oil discovery in the Gulf of Mexico. Based on information from the initial discovery well, it
appears that the oil field may hold at least one billion barrels of recoverable oil. The Company has a 75 per cent interest in the field. The
Company has also announced further significant discoveries in the Gulf of Mexico, Angola and Azerbaijan.

12 Subdivision of Ordinary Share Capital

The Directors propose that with effect from 4 October 1999, Existing BP Amoco Ordinary Shares will be subdivided with each Ordinary
Shareholder holding two New BP Amoco Ordinary Shares of nominal value $0.25 for each Existing BP Amoco Ordinary Share of nominal
value $0.50. The New BP Amoco Ordinary Shares will have the same rights as the Existing BP Amoco Ordinary Shares. Additional BP
Amoco ADSs will be issued in connection with the subdivision of Existing BP Amoco Ordinary Shares thereby maintaining the existing
ratio of one BP Amoco ADS to six BP Amoco Ordinary Shares.

BP Amoco Ordinary Shares and BP Amoco ADSs currently trade at prices which significantly exceed the prices of the securities of BP
Amoco’s principal competitors. The reason for the Subdivision is to reduce the price at which BP Amoco Ordinary Shares and BP Amoco
ADSs trade with the intention of making BP Amoco securities more attractive to retail investors and increasing liquidity. Absent any other
factors affecting price, the Subdivision is expected to result in initial prices for the New BP Amoco Ordinary Shares and the BP Amoco
ADSs representing the New BP Amoco Ordinary Shares which are approximately half that of the prices of the Existing BP Amoco
Ordinary Shares and existing BP Amoco ADSs immediately prior to the Subdivision.

The Subdivision of the BP Amoco Ordinary Shares will require the approval of a majority of shareholders voting in person or by proxy
at the Extraordinary General Meeting. The Directors believe that the Subdivision is in the best interests of the shareholders.

Further information on the Subdivision is set out in Section C of Part V.

13  United Kingdom and United States Taxation
A summary of the tax position in the United Kingdom and the United States is set out in paragraph 11 of Part VIII.
In brief:

(@) the Directors have been advised that neither the Subdivision nor the issue of BP Amoco ADSs arising from the Subdivision will be
treated as a disposal of Existing BP Amoco Ordinary Shares for the purposes of UK taxation of capital gains or a taxable event for
US federal income tax purposes and that no stamp duty or SDRT should be payable as a result of the Subdivision; and

(b) BP Amoco will pay all stamp duties, SDRT and similar taxes or levies imposed in connection with the creation or issue of the
Consideration Shares or related BP Amoco ADSs pursuant to the Combination.

14 Amendments to Articles of Association

It is proposed to amend the Articles of Association (the “Articles”) in order, inter alia, to provide that all resolutions, other than those of a
procedural nature, may only be approved by a vote on a poll and to enable proxies to be appointed in electronic form or by telephone,
should the Directors so determine. These changes are being made to reflect the practicalities of voting and the appointment of proxies in
a large company with shareholders all over the world.
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A copy of the Articles, showing in full the amendments to the Articles if the resolution to amend the Articles becomes effective, is
available for inspection at the offices of Linklaters, One Silk Street, London EC2Y 8HQ from the date of this document until the Effective
Date and at the Royal Festival Hall from 10.00 am on 1 September 1999 until the conclusion of the EGM.

15 The Year 2000 Issue

The Year 2000 issue is the result of computer programmes being written using two digits rather than four digits to define the applicable
year. For example, date sensitive software may recognise a date using “00” as the year 1900 rather than the year 2000. This could result
in system failures or miscalculations causing disruption of operations.

Further details of BP Amoco and ARCO’s plans to address this issue, and the risks and uncertainties related to it, are set out in
paragraph 15 of Part VIII.

16 Extraordinary General Meeting

The EGM has been convened for 11.00 am on 1 September 1999. At the EGM, the following resolutions will be proposed:
(a) Resolution 1 will be proposed to approve the Combination;
(b) Resolution 2 will be proposed to approve and give effect to the Subdivision;
(© Resolution 3 will be proposed to increase the authorised share capital of BP Amoco;

(d) Resolution 4 will be proposed to authorise the BP Amoco Board to allot shares up to an aggregate nominal amount of
$1,885 million;

(e) Resolution 5 will be proposed to disapply shareholders’ pre-emption rights up to an aggregate nominal amount of
$280 million;

4 Resolution 6 will be proposed to amend the Articles in order, inter alia, to provide that all resolutions, other than those of a
procedural nature, be approved by a vote on a poll and to enable proxies to be appointed in electronic form or by
telephone, should the Directors so determine.

The Combination is conditional on the approval of Resolution 1. The Combination is not conditional on Resolutions 2 to 6 being
passed. Resolutions 3 to 5 will not be effective unless Resolution 1 is passed.

Resolutions 1 to 4 are being proposed as ordinary resolutions which require the approval of a majority of the votes cast in person or
on a poll at the EGM. Resolutions 5 and 6 are being proposed as special resolutions and require the approval of not less than 75 per
cent of the votes cast on a poll at the EGM.

17 Listing and Dealing

Listing and Dealing of New BP Amoco Ordinary Shares on the Subdivision

Application has been made to the London Stock Exchange for the New BP Amoco Ordinary Shares to be admitted to the Official List.
Application will be made for BP Amoco ADSs representing the New BP Amoco Ordinary Shares to be listed on the New York Stock
Exchange. Application will also be made to the other stock exchanges on which BP Amoco Ordinary Shares and BP Amoco ADSs are
also listed for the New BP Amoco Ordinary Shares and additional BP Amoco ADSs to be listed on such exchanges.

Dealings in the New BP Amoco Ordinary Shares are expected to commence at 8.00 am on 4 October 1999.

The treatment of BP Amoco certificated and uncertificated securities upon the Subdivision is set out in paragraphs 3 and 4 of Section
C of Part V.
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Listing and Dealing of Consideration Shares

Application has been made to the London Stock Exchange for the Consideration Shares to be admitted to the Official List. Application
has been made for BP Amoco ADSs representing the Consideration Shares to be listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Dealings in
the Consideration Shares are expected to commence at 8.00 am on the Effective Date. It is a condition to the Combination becoming
effective that the London Stock Exchange shall have granted permission for the listing of the Consideration Shares to be issued in the
Combination and that the BP Amoco ADSs to be issued in the Combination are authorised for listing on the New York Stock Exchange.

Application will also be made to the other stock exchanges on which BP Amoco Ordinary Shares and BP Amoco ADSs are listed for
the Consideration Shares and the BP Amoco ADSs to be issued in the Combination to be listed on such exchanges.

18 Forward-Looking Statements May Prove Inaccurate

In order to utilise the “Safe Harbor” provisions of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, BP Amoco is
providing the following cautionary statement.

Certain statements contained in this document, particularly those regarding possible or assumed future performance, costs, dividends,
returns, divestments, reserves and growth of ARCO and BP Amoco, industry growth and other trend projections, and those regarding
synergistic benefits of the Combination and estimated company earnings, in particular those set out in paragraphs 5, 8, 9, 10 and 11 of
this Part | are or may be considered forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially
from those expressed in such statements, depending on a variety of factors, including: the specific factors identified in the discussions
accompanying such forward-looking statements; future levels of industry product supply, demand and pricing; political stability and
economic growth in relevant areas of the world; the ability of BP Amoco and ARCO to integrate their businesses successfully after the
Combination; development and use of new technology and successful partnering; the actions of competitors; natural disasters and other
changes to business conditions; and other factors discussed elsewhere in this document.

19 Nature of Financial Information

All financial information in this Part | and paragraph 1 of each of Part Il and Part Ill of this document is extracted from the financial
information set out in Parts Il, Il and IV of this document. Shareholders should read the whole document and not just rely on key or
summarised information. Except as otherwise indicated, all currency conversions between sterling and US dollars have been made at the
Noon Buying Rate on 9 July 1999 of $1.5515: £1.00.
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

1  Business Description of BP Amoco

On 31 December 1998, Amoco and BP merged. The merger was effected by BP issuing ordinary shares in the form of BP Amoco ADSs
to holders of Amoco common stock. Following this merger, Amoco became a wholly-owned subsidiary of BP which was renamed
BP Amoco p.l.c.

BP Amoco is one of the world’s top three petroleum and petrochemical groups on the basis of market capitalisation, with a wide
operational and geographic scope. The BP Amoco Group has well established operations in Europe, North and South America, Australia,
Asia and parts of Africa.

BP Amoco’s main businesses are exploration and production, refining and marketing, and chemicals. Exploration and production’s
activities include oil and gas exploration and field development and production (“upstream activities”), together with pipeline
transportation, gas processing and gas marketing (“midstream activities”). The activities of refining and marketing include oil supply and
trading as well as oil refining and marketing (“downstream activities”). Chemicals’ activities include petrochemicals manufacturing and
marketing. The BP Amoco Group provides high quality technological support for all its businesses through its research and engineering
activities. Although relatively small in comparison to its main business, the BP Amoco Group also contains one of the world’s leading
solar businesses — BP Solarex.

The merger with Amoco resulted in BP’s established oil production base in Alaska and its increasing presence in the Gulf of Mexico
being combined with Amoco’s Gulf of Mexico interests and its extensive oil and gas production in the US (other than Alaska) to create
the largest producer of oil and gas in the US. The addition of Amoco’s UK North Sea assets strengthened BP’s position as the largest
producer of oil in the UK.

In refining and marketing, Amoco’s strong presence and brand in the mid-west, east and south-east of the US was reinforced by BP’s
existing business in the mid-west and south-east. The merger with Amoco on 31 December 1998 resulted in BP Amoco having
approximately 16,300 service stations in the US and 12,000 in the rest of the world.

In chemicals, BP’s polyethylene, acetic acid and acrylonitrile technology and production was complemented by Amoco’s leading
position in purified teraphthalic acid, paraxylene and metaxylene.

Further details of BP Amoco Group reserves are set out in Part VI of this document.

12



2 Extraction of Financial Information

The financial information for BP Amoco set out in paragraph 4 below has been extracted without material adjustment from the audited
financial statements for BP Amoco for the three years ended 31 December 1998 filed with the SEC on Form 6-K on 7 July 1999. The
audit opinion on these financial statements was unqualified. This financial information was restated to comply with Financial Reporting
Standard No. 12 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” (“FRS12”), (see Note 46 to paragraph 4 of this Part Il for
further information). The BP Amoco Group adopted FRS12 with effect from 1 January 1999 and consequently this was reflected in the
interim results of BP Amoco for the three months ended 31 March 1999. The financial information for BP Amoco does not constitute
statutory accounts within the meaning of Section 240 of the Act.

3  Statement of Accounting Policies

Accounting standards
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards.

The financial information for 1998 has been restated to comply with the requirements of FRS12. See Note 46 to paragraph 4 of this
Part Il for further information. Comparative figures have been restated in accordance with the revised presentation.

In addition the financial information for 1997 and 1996 has been restated to comply with the requirements of Financial Reporting
Standard No. 9 “Associates and Joint Ventures” (“FRS9”). See Note 44 to paragraph 4 of this Part Il for further information. The
restatement has had no effect on the profit for the year and net assets.

Merger accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using the merger method of accounting in relation to the merger of BP and Amoco. Under
merger accounting, the results and cash flows of BP and Amoco are combined from the beginning of the financial period in which the
merger of BP and Amoco occurred and their assets and liabilities combined at the amounts at which they were previously recorded after
adjusting to achieve consistency of accounting policies. Income statement, balance sheet and cash flow comparatives are restated on the
combined basis. See Note 45 to paragraph 4 of this Part Il for further information.

Accounting convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention. Historical cost accounts show the profits available to
shareholders and are the most appropriate basis for presentation of the BP Amoco Group’s balance sheet. Profit or loss determined
under the historical cost convention includes stock holding gains or losses and, as a consequence, does not necessarily reflect underlying
trading results.

Replacement cost

The results of individual businesses and geographical areas are presented on a replacement cost basis. Replacement cost operating
results exclude stock holding gains or losses and reflect the average cost of supplies incurred during the year, and thus provide insight
into underlying trading results. Stock holding gains or losses represent the difference between the replacement cost of sales and the
historical cost of sales calculated using the FIFO method.

Stock valuation
Stocks are valued at cost to the BP Amoco Group using the FIFO method or at net realisable value, whichever is the lower. Stores are
stated at or below cost calculated mainly using the average method.

Group consolidation

The BP Amoco Group financial statements comprise a consolidation of the accounts of the parent company and its subsidiary
undertakings (“subsidiaries”). The results of subsidiaries acquired or sold are consolidated for the periods from or to the date on which
control passes.

An associated undertaking (“associate”) is an entity in which the BP Amoco Group has a long-term equity interest and over which it
exercises significant influence. The consolidated financial statements include the BP Amoco Group proportion of the operating profit or
loss, exceptional items, stock holding gains or losses, interest expense, taxation and net assets of associates (the “equity method”).
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

A joint venture is an entity in which the BP Amoco Group has a long-term interest and shares control with one or more co-venturers.
The consolidated financial statements include the BP Amoco Group proportion of turnover, operating profit or loss, exceptional items,
stock holding gains or losses, interest expense, taxation, gross assets and gross liabilities of the joint venture (the “gross equity method”).

Certain of the BP Amoco Group’s activities are conducted through joint arrangements and are included in the consolidated financial
statements in proportion to the BP Amoco Group’s interest in the income, expenses, assets and liabilities of these joint arrangements.

On the acquisition of a subsidiary, or of an interest in a joint venture or associated undertaking, fair values reflecting conditions at the
date of acquisition are attributed to the identifiable net assets acquired. When the cost of acquisition exceeds the fair values attributable
to the BP Amoco Group’s share of such net assets the difference is treated as purchased goodwill. This is capitalised and amortised over
its estimated useful economic life, limited to a maximum period of 20 years.

Foreign currencies
On consolidation, assets and liabilities of subsidiary undertakings are translated into US dollars at closing rates of exchange. Income and
cash flow statements are translated at average rates of exchange.

Exchange differences resulting from the retranslation of net investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings at closing rates,
together with differences between income statements translated at average rates and at closing rates, are dealt with in reserves.
Exchange gains and losses arising on long-term foreign currency borrowings used to finance the BP Amoco Group’s foreign currency
investments are also dealt with in reserves.

All other exchange gains or losses on settlement or translation at closing rates of exchange of monetary assets and liabilities are
included in the determination of profit for the year.

Derivative financial instruments
The BP Amoco Group is a party to derivative financial instruments (“derivatives”) primarily to manage exposures to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates, and to manage some of its margin exposure from changes in oil and natural gas prices.

All derivatives which are held for trading purposes and all oil price derivatives held for risk management purposes are marked to market
and all gains and losses recognised in the income statement.

Interest rate swap agreements, swaptions and futures contracts are used to manage interest rate exposures. Amounts payable or
receivable in respect of these derivatives are recognised as adjustments to interest expense over the period of the contracts.

As part of exchange rate risk management, foreign currency swap agreements and forward contracts are used to convert non-US
dollar borrowings into US dollars. Gains and losses on these derivatives are deferred and recognised on maturity of the underlying debt,
together with the matching loss or gain on the debt. Foreign currency forward contracts and options are used to hedge significant non-
US dollar firm commitments or anticipated transactions. Gains and losses on these contracts and option premia paid are also deferred
and recognised in the income statement or as adjustments to carrying amounts, as appropriate, when the hedged transaction occurs.

Exploration expenditure

Exploration expenditure is accounted for in accordance with the successful efforts method. Exploration and appraisal drilling expenditure
is initially capitalised as an intangible fixed asset. When proved reserves of oil and natural gas are determined and development is
sanctioned, the relevant expenditure is transferred to tangible production assets. All exploration expenditure determined as unsuccessful
is charged against income. Exploration licence acquisition costs are amortised over the estimated period of exploration. Geological and
geophysical exploration costs are charged against income as incurred.

Depreciation

Qil and gas production assets are depreciated using a unit-of-production method based upon estimated proved reserves. Other tangible
and intangible assets are depreciated on the straight line method over their estimated useful lives. The average estimated useful lives of
refineries are 20 years, chemicals manufacturing plants are 20 years and service stations 15 years. Other intangibles are amortised over a
maximum period of 20 years.

The BP Amoco Group undertakes a review for impairment of a fixed asset or goodwill if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the fixed asset or goodwill may not be recoverable. To the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the
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recoverable amount, that is the higher of net realisable value and value in use, the fixed asset or goodwill is written down to its
recoverable amount. The value in use is determined from estimated discounted future net cash flows.

Decommissioning

Provision for decommissioning is recognised in full at the commencement of oil and natural gas production. The amount recognised is the
present value of the estimated future expenditure determined in accordance with local conditions and requirements. A corresponding
tangible fixed asset is also created of an amount equivalent to the provision. This is subsequently depreciated as part of the capital costs
of the production and transportation facilities. Any change in the present value of the estimated expenditure is reflected as an adjustment
to the provision and the fixed asset.

Petroleum revenue tax
The charge for petroleum revenue tax is calculated using a unit-of-production method.

Changes in unit-of-production factors
Changes in factors which affect unit-of-production calculations are dealt with prospectively, not by immediate adjustment of prior years’
amounts.

Environmental liabilities
Environmental expenditures that relate to current or future revenues are expensed or capitalised as appropriate. Expenditures that relate
to an existing condition caused by past operations and that do not contribute to current or future earnings are expensed.

Liabilities for environmental costs are recognised when environmental assessments or clean-ups are probable and the associated costs
can be reasonably estimated. Generally, the timing of these provisions coincides with the commitment to a formal plan of action or, if
earlier, on divestment or on closure of inactive sites. The amount recognised is the best estimate of the expenditure required. Where the
liability will not be settled for a number of years the amount recognised is the present value of the estimated future expenditure.

Leases

Assets held under leases which result in BP Amoco Group companies receiving substantially all risks and rewards of ownership (“finance
leases”) are capitalised as tangible fixed assets at the estimated present value of underlying lease payments. The corresponding finance
lease obligation is included with borrowings. Rentals under operating leases are charged against income as incurred.

Research
Expenditure on research is written off in the year in which it is incurred.

Interest
Interest is capitalised gross during the period of construction where it relates either to the financing of major projects with long periods of
development or to dedicated financing of other projects. All other interest is charged against income.

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

The cost of providing pensions and other post-retirement benefits is charged to income on a systematic basis, with pension surpluses
and deficits amortised over the average expected remaining service lives of current employees. The difference between the amounts
charged to income and the contributions made to pension plans is included within other provisions or debtors as appropriate. The
amounts accrued for other post-retirement benefits and unfunded pension liabilities are included within other provisions.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is calculated, using the liability method, in respect of timing differences arising primarily from the difference between the
accounting and tax treatments of both depreciation and petroleum revenue tax. Provision is made or recovery anticipated where timing
differences are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Discounting
The unwinding of the discount on provisions is included within interest expense.
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

4  Financial Information for BP Amoco

BP Amoco Group income statement

$ million
For the year ended 31 December Note 1998 1997 1996
Turnover 83,732 108,564 102,064
Less: Joint ventures 15,428 16,804 -
BP Amoco Group turnover 1 68,304 91,760 102,064
Replacement cost of sales 56,270 73,828 81,832
Production taxes 2 604 1,307 1,611
Gross profit 11,430 16,625 18,621
Distribution and administration expenses 3 6,044 6,742 8,367
Exploration expense 921 962 997
4,465 8,921 9,257
Other income 4 709 662 714
BP Amoco Group replacement cost operating profit 5 5,174 9,683 9,971
Share of profits of joint ventures 5 825 544 -
Share of profits of associated undertakings 5 522 556 663
Total replacement cost operating profit 5 6,521 10,683 10,634
Profit (loss) on sale of businesses 6 395 127 127
Profit (loss) on sale of fixed assets 6 653 313 (298)
Merger expenses 6 (198) - -
Refinery network rationalisation 6 - 47) (24)
European refining and marketing joint venture implementation 6 - (265) (267)
Replacement cost profit before interest and tax 5 7,371 10,811 10,172
Stock holding gains (losses) 5 (1,391) (939) 1,172
Historical cost profit before interest and tax 5,980 9,872 11,344
Interest expense 7 1,173 1,032 1,128
Profit before taxation 4,807 8,840 10,216
Taxation 9 1,520 3,013 2,783
Profit after taxation 3,287 5,827 7,433
Minority shareholders’ interest 63 151 13
Profit for the year 3,224 5,676 7,420
Distribution to shareholders 10 4,121 3,452 3,007
Retained profit (deficit) for the year (897) 2,224 4,413
Earnings per BP Amoco Ordinary Share - cents
Basic 11 34 59 78
Diluted 11 33 59 77
Replacement cost results
Historical cost profit for the year 3,224 5,676 7,420
Stock holding (gains) losses 1,391 939 (1,172
Replacement cost profit for the year 4,615 6,615 6,248
Exceptional items, net of tax 6 (652) 10 414
Replacement cost profit before exceptional items 3,963 6,625 6,662
Earnings per BP Amoco Ordinary Share - cents
On replacement cost profit before exceptional items 11 41 69 70
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BP Amoco Group balance sheet

$ million
At 31 December Note 1998 1997 1996
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 17 3,037 2,582 2,594
Tangible assets 18 54,880 52,595 55,179
Investments
Joint ventures — Gross assets 9,053 9,147 -
— Gross liabilities 4,048 3,523 -
Net investment 19 5,005 5,624 -
Associated undertakings 19 4,162 4,354 3,990
Other 19 605 398 174
9,772 10,376 4,164
Total fixed assets 67,689 65,553 61,937
Current assets
Stocks 20 3,642 4,923 7,652
Debtors — amounts falling due:
Within one year 21 9,404 11,383 14,682
After more than one year 21 3,305 2,998 2,800
Investments 22 470 1,067 1,233
Cash at bank and in hand 405 355 347
17,226 20,726 26,714
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Finance debt 23 2,837 2,856 2,760
Other creditors 24 15,329 17,671 20,745
Net current assets (liabilities) (940) 199 3,209
Total assets less current liabilities 66,749 65,752 65,146
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
Finance debt 23 10,918 10,021 10,088
Other creditors 24 2,047 2,501 2,789
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred taxation 9 1,632 1,183 1,203
Other provisions 25 8,468 8,337 8,519
Net assets 43,684 43,710 42,547
Minority shareholders’ interest — equity 1,072 1,100 313
BP Amoco shareholders’ interest 42,612 42,610 42,234
Represented by
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 27 4,863 4,330 4,382
Share premium account 28 3,056 3,450 3,406
Capital redemption reserve 28 330 327 327
Merger reserve 28 697 650 673
Profit and loss account 28 33,666 33,853 33,446
29 42,612 42,610 42,234
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

BP Amoco Group cash flow statement

$ million
For the year ended 31 December Note 1998 1997 1996
Net cash inflow from operating activities 30 9,586 15,558 13,679
Dividends from joint ventures 544 190 -
Dividends from associated undertakings 422 551 476
Servicing of finance and returns on investments
Interest received 223 243 199
Interest paid (961) 911) (1,109)
Dividends received 43 13 30
Dividends paid to minority shareholders (130) - -
Net cash outflow from servicing of finance and returns on
investments (825) (655) (880)
Taxation
UK corporation tax (391) (500) (450)
Overseas tax (1,314) (1,773) (1,981)
Tax paid (1,705) (2,273) (2,431)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Payments for fixed assets (8,431) (8,600) (8,924)
Purchase of shares for employee share schemes (254) (800) (14)
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 16 1,387 1,468 973
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial
investment (7,298) (7,432) (7,965)
Acquisitions and disposals
Investments in associated undertakings (396) (1,021) (383)
Acquisitions 15 (314) - (5635)
Net investment in joint ventures 708 (1,967) -
Proceeds from the sale of businesses 16 780 364 827
Net cash inflow (outflow) for acquisitions and disposals 778 (2,624) 91)
Equity dividends paid (2,408) (2,437) (2,411)
Net cash inflow (outflow) (906) 878 377
Financing 30 (377) 1,012 828
Management of liquid resources 30 (596) (167) (147)
Increase (decrease) in cash 30 67 33 (304)
(906) 878 377
Statement of total recognised gains and losses
$ million
For the year ended 31 December 1998 1997 1996
Profit for the year 3,224 5,676 7,420
Currency translation differences 55 (1,587) 367
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year 3,279 4,089 7,787
Prior year adjustment — change in accounting policy 46 862
Total recognised gains and losses since 1997 Annual Report 4,141
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Notes to the financial information

1 Turnover

$ million
1998 1997 1996
Sales and operating revenue 76,448 100,913 128,325
Customs duties and sales taxes 8,144 9,153 26,261
BP Amoco Group turnover 68,304 91,760 102,064
Sales Sales to Sales Sales to Sales Sales to
Total between third Total between third Total between third
Turnover? sales  businesses parties sales  businesses parties sales  businesses parties
By business
Exploration and Production 17,276 5,060 12,216 23,171 7,696 15,475 23,404 8,235 15,169
Refining and Marketing 48,437 1,812 46,625 67,704 2,421 65,283 78,741 2,715 76,026
Chemicals 9,691 379 9,312 11,445 592 10,853 10,979 313 10,666
Other businesses and
corporate 199 48 151 149 - 149 203 - 203
BP Amoco Group turnover 75,603 7,299 68,304 102,469 10,709 91,760 113,327 11,263 102,064
Share of joint venture sales 15,428 16,804 -
83,732 108,564 102,064
Sales Sales to Sales Sales to Sales Sales to
Total between third Total between third Total between third
sales areas parties sales areas parties sales areas parties
By geographical area
UK® 22,510 2,848 19,662 31,260 3,787 27,473 36,231 7,009 29,222
Rest of Europe 5,823 700 5,123 8,496 553 7,943 19,176 2,337 16,839
USA 33,160 1,215 31,945 41,760 1,438 40,322 42,766 1,595 41,171
Rest of World 14,032 2,458 11,574 19,399 3,377 16,022 18,219 3,387 14,832
75,525 7,221 68,304 100,915 9,155 91,760 116,392 14,328 102,064
Share of joint venture sales
UK 3,467 4,584 -
Rest of Europe 14,186 15,414 -
USA 43 41 -
Rest of World 305 71 -
18,001 20,110 -
Sales between areas 2,573 3,306 -
15,428 16,804 -

2 Turnover to third parties is stated by origin which is not materially different from turnover by destination.
Transfers between BP Amoco group companies are made at market prices taking into account the volumes involved.

P UK area includes the UK-based international activities of Refining and Marketing.
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2  Production taxes

$ million
1998 1997 1996
UK petroleum revenue tax 45 306 480
Overseas production taxes 559 1,001 1,131
604 1,307 1,611

3 Distribution and administration expenses
$ million
1998 1997 1996
Distribution 4,714 5,178 6,927
Administration 1,330 1,564 1,440
6,044 6,742 8,367

4 Other income

$ million
1998 1997 1996
Income from other fixed asset investments 74 101 173
Other interest and miscellaneous income 635 561 541
709 662 714
Income from listed investments included above - 2 3
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5 Analysis of replacement cost profit

$ million
1998
BP Amoco Group Total Replacement
replacement cost replacement cost cost profit
operating Joint Associated operating Exceptional before interest
Profit profit® ventures undertakings profit® items® and tax
By business
Exploration and Production 2,987 65 179 3,231 396 3,627
Refining and Marketing 1,712 760 92 2,564 394 2,958
Chemicals 950 - 150 1,100 43 1,143
Other businesses and
corporate (475) - 101 (374) 17 (357)
5,174 825 522 6,521 850 7,371
By geographical area
UK® 1,796 127 8 1,931 (39) 1,892
Rest of Europe 345 633 271 1,249 106 1,355
USA 2,506 31 94 2,631 511 3,142
Rest of World 527 34 149 710 272 982
5,174 825 522 6,521 850 7,371
1997
By business
Exploration and Production 7,093 24 268 7,385 587 7,972
Refining and Marketing 1,688 520 84 2,292 (422) 1,870
Chemicals 1,405 - 125 1,530 (15) 1,515
Other businesses and
corporate (603) - 79 (524) (22) (546)
9,583 544 556 10,683 128 10,811
By geographical area
UK® 2,741 34 8) 2,767 (133) 2,634
Rest of Europe 574 486 272 1,332 (205) 1,127
USA 4,276 19 65 4,360 456 4,816
Rest of World 1,992 5 227 2,224 10 2,234
9,583 544 556 10,683 128 10,811
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5  Analysis of replacement cost profit (continued)

$ million
1996
BP Amoco Group Total Replacement
replacement cost replacement cost cost profit
operating Joint Associated operating Exceptional before interest
Profit profit® ventures undertakings profit® items® and tax
By business
Exploration and Production 7,535 - 228 7,763 (100) 7,663
Refining and Marketing 1,592 - 116 1,708 (313 1,395
Chemicals 1,419 - 235 1,654 169 1,823
Other businesses and
corporate (575) - 84 (491) (218) (709)
9,971 - 663 10,634 (462) 10,172
By geographical area
UK® 2,754 - (12) 2,742 (255) 2,487
Rest of Europe 710 - 278 988 (186) 802
USA 4,206 - 59 4,265 133 4,398
Rest of World 2,301 - 338 2,639 (154) 2,485
9,971 - 663 10,634 (462) 10,172
Stock holding gains (losses) 1998 1997 1996
By business
Exploration and Production (17) 12 8
Refining and Marketing® (1,228) (849) 1,076
Chemicals (146) (102) 88
(1,391) (939) 1,172
By geographical area
UK (136) (85) 60
Rest of Europe (283) (103) 219
USA (720) 647) 77
Rest of World (252) (104) 176
(1,391) (939) 1,172

Replacement cost operating profit is before stock holding gains and losses and interest expense, which is attributable to the corporate function.
Transfers between group companies are made at market prices taking into account the volumes involved.

Exceptional items comprise profit or loss on the sale of businesses and fixed assets. In addition for 1998, they include merger expenses and for
1997 the write-back of certain 1995 refinery network rationalisation costs. See Note 6 for further details.

UK area includes the UK-based international activities of Refining and Marketing.
Includes $330 million stock holding losses in respect of joint ventures and associated undertakings (1997 $200 million losses and 1996 $nil).
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6 Exceptional items

Exceptional items comprise profit (loss) on sale of businesses and fixed assets, merger expenses, refinery network rationalisation and
European refining and marketing joint venture implementation costs as follows:

$ million
1998 1997 1996

Profit (loss) on sale of businesses
— Group 310 250 127
— Joint ventures 85 (123) -
Profit (loss) on sale of fixed assets — Group 653 313 (298)
1,048 440 (171)
Merger expenses — Group (198) - -
Refinery network rationalisation — Group - (47) (24)
European refining and marketing joint venture implementation — Group - (265) (267)
Exceptional items 850 128 (462)

Taxation credit (charge):

Sale of businesses (36) ) (92)
Sale of fixed assets (185) (208) 52
Merger expenses 23 - -
Refinery network rationalisation - 24 25
European refining and marketing joint venture implementation - 53 57
Exceptional items, net of tax 652 (10) (420)
Minority shareholders’ interest - - 6
652 (10) (414)

Sale of businesses and fixed assets

The principal sales of businesses and fixed assets during 1998 were exploration and production properties in the USA and Papua New
Guinea, the refinery in Lima, Ohio, the sale and leaseback of the Amoco building in Chicago, lllinois, the retail network in the Czech
Republic, the Adibis fuel additives business and a speciality chemicals distribution business. The profit on sale of businesses by joint
ventures relates mainly to the disposal by the BP/Mobil joint venture of its retail network in Belgium.

The major element of the profit in 1997 comprised the sale of US exploration and production properties and an intrastate natural gas
pipeline unit in Texas. The loss on sale of businesses by joint ventures related principally to the costs of the BP/Mobil joint venture
terminating base oil manufacturing operations at Llandarcy in the UK.

The 1996 loss comprises the sale of the polystyrene foam products and Carborundum businesses, the BP America office building in
Cleveland, Ohio, certain Canadian exploration and production properties, the BP Amoco Group’s interest in the undeveloped Ross field in
the North Sea and the floating production storage vessels Seillean.

Additional information on the sale of businesses and fixed assets is given in Note 16 — Disposals.

Merger expenses
BP Amoco incurred fees and expenses of $198 million in connection with the merger of BP and Amoco. These costs relate principally to
investment banking fees as well as legal, accounting and regulatory filing fees.

Refinery network rationalisation
The charge for refinery network rationalisation in 1997 of $47 million (1996 $24 million) represents the balance of the costs associated
with the rationalisation of the BP Amoco Group’s international refining system announced in 1995.
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6 Exceptional items (continued)

European refining and marketing joint venture implementation

The one-off costs associated with the setting up of the European refining and marketing joint venture with Mobil were $265 million in
1997 and $267 million in 1996. These costs include $265 million (1996 $226 million) which represents the BP Amoco Group’s share of
charges for severance, restructuring, rebranding and other implementation charges and in 1996, $41 million of own costs of asset write-

downs and professional fees.

7  Interest expense

$ million
1998 1997 1996
Bank loans and overdrafts 158 188 170
Other loans 762 651 765
Finance leases 90 102 82
Accretion of discount on provisions 120 124 124
1,130 1,065 1,141
Capitalised 119 116 81
Group 1,011 949 1,060
Joint ventures 54 - -
Associated undertakings 108 83 68
Total charged against profit 1,173 1,032 1,128
Interest expense for 1996 included net charges of $75 million relating to early redemption of debt.
8 Depreciation and amounts provided
$ million
Included in the income statement under the following headings: 1998 1997 1996
Depreciation
Replacement cost of sales 4,666 4,631 4,680
Distribution 335 390 640
Administration 100 88 101
Exceptional items - 8 5
5,101 5117 5,426
Depreciation of capitalised leased assets included above 71 76 90
Amounts provided against fixed asset investments
Replacement cost of sales 200 - -

The charge for depreciation in 1998 includes $214 million for the impairment of the Opon field in Colombia and $61 million for the write-

down of various other oil and natural gas properties. The impairment of the Opon field reflected lower than anticipated natural gas

production and related reserve estimates. The charge also reflected impairment of the adjacent power plant because of the unavailability

of an economic fuel supply.

As a result of increased economic uncertainty in Russia, the BP Amoco Group has written down the carrying value of its investment in

A O Sidanco by $200 million.

In assessing the value in use of impaired assets, a real discount rate of 7 per cent has been used.
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9 Taxation

$ million
1998 1997 1996
United Kingdom corporation tax:
Current at 31% (1997 at 31.5% and 1996 at 33%) 1,325 1,329 1,358
Overseas tax relief (566) (777) (624)
759 552 729
Deferred at 31% (1997 at 31.5% and 1996 at 33%) (188) 217 32
571 769 761
Advance corporation tax (76) (116) (188)
495 653 5783
Overseas:
Current 896 2,247 1,999
Deferred (4) 7 80
Joint ventures (15) - -
Associated undertakings 148 106 131
1,025 2,360 2,210
Taxation charge for the year 1,520 3,013 2,783
Included in the charge for the year is a charge of $198 million (1997 $138 million charge and 1996 $42 million credit) relating to
exceptional items.
Provisions for deferred taxation
$ million
Provisions Gross potential liability
Analysis of movements during the year: 1998 1997 1998 1997
At 1 January 1,183 1,208 5,817 5,824
Exchange adjustments 37 (52) 20 (165)
Charge (credit) for the year (192) 224 177 350
Deletions/transfers 604 (192) 604 (192)
At 31 December 1,632 1,183 6,618 5,817
of which — United Kingdom 927 499 1,577 1,185
— Overseas 705 684 5,041 4,632
Analysis of provision:
Depreciation 2,413 2,492 9,905 9,903
Petroleum revenue tax (420) (484) (420) (484)
Other timing differences (328) (176) (2,834) (2,877)
Advance corporation tax (33) (649) (33) (725)
1,632 1,183 6,618 5,817
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9 Taxation (continued)

If provision for deferred taxation had been made on the basis of the gross potential liability the taxation charge for the year would have

been increased (decreased) as follows:

$ million

1998 1997 1996

United Kingdom (40) 83 180
Overseas 409 43 191
369 126 371

Deferred taxation is not generally provided in respect of liabilities which may arise on the distribution of accumulated reserves of overseas

subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

Reconciliation of the UK statutory tax rate
to the effective rate of the group: 1998

%

1997 1996
UK statutory tax rate 31 31 33
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
Current year timing differences not provided (including prior year loss utilisation) (6) 4) 6)
Relief for stock holding losses (3) W) 1
Overseas taxes at higher rates 4 4 3
Tax credits (2) () 2
Advance corporation tax (1) 1) 2
Other 2 3 3
Effective tax rate on replacement cost profit before exceptional items 25 30 30
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10 Distribution to BP Amoco Shareholders

pence per share cents per share $ million
1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 1996
BP
Preference dividends (non-equity) 1 1 1
Dividends per ordinary share: First quarterly 5.75 5.25 4.25 9.5 8.6 6.6 551 490 373
Second quarterly 6.00 5.50 5.00 10.0 9.0 7.8 579 517 438
Third quarterly 6.00 5.50 5.00 10.0 9.0 7.8 584 519 443
Fourth quarterly - 5.75 5.25 - 9.4 8.2 - 543 465
17.75  22.00 19.50 29.5 36.0 30.4 1,715 2,070 1,720
Amoco
Dividends per common stock: First quarterly 37.5 35.0 32.5 362 345 312
Second quarterly 375 35.0 325 360 349 323
Third quarterly 375 35.0 32.5 358 344 323
Fourth quarterly 37.5 35.0 32.5 358 344 329
150.0 140.0 130.0 1,438 1,382 1,287
BP Amoco
Dividend per ordinary share: Fourth quarterly 6.119 - - 10.0 - - 968 - -
Total BP Amoco Group 4,121 3,452 3,007

On an ordinary share equivalent basis, the Amoco quarterly dividends for 1998 were 9.4 cents (1997 8.8 cents and 1996 8.2 cents).

11 Earnings per BP Amoco Ordinary Share

cents per share

1998 1997 1996
Basic earnings per share 34 59 78
Diluted earnings per share 33 59 77

The calculation of basic earnings per BP Amoco Ordinary Share is based on the profit attributable to BP Amoco Ordinary Shareholders
i.e. profit for the year less preference dividends, related to the weighted average number of BP Amoco Ordinary Shares in issue during
the year. The weighted average number of shares includes the weighted average number of Amoco common stock multiplied by the
conversion ratio of 3.97:1. The profit attributable to BP Amoco Ordinary Shareholders is $3,223 million (1997 $5,675 million and 1996
$7,419 million). The average number of shares outstanding excludes the shares held by the Employee Share Ownership Plans.

For BP Amoco, the calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on profit attributable to BP Amoco Ordinary Shareholders as for
basic earnings per share. However, the number of shares outstanding is adjusted to show the potential dilution if employee share options
are converted into BP Amoco Ordinary Shares. The number of BP Amoco Ordinary Shares outstanding for basic and diluted earnings per
share may be reconciled as follows:

1998 1997 1996
Weighted average number of BP Amoco Ordinary Shares 9,596 9,592 9,559
BP Amoco Ordinary Shares issuable under employee share schemes 42 49 43

9,638 9,641 9,602

In addition to basic earnings per share based on the historical cost profit for the year, a further measure, based on replacement cost
profit before exceptional items, is provided as it is considered that this measure gives an indication of underlying performance.
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11 Earnings per BP Amoco Ordinary Share (continued)

cents per share

1998 1997 1996
Profit for the year 34 59 78
Stock holding (gains) losses 14 10 (12)
Replacement cost profit for the year 48 69 66
Exceptional items, net of tax (7) - 4
Replacement cost profit before exceptional items 41 69 70
12 Hire charges and expenditure on research
$ million
1998 1997 1996
Hire charges under operating leases:
Tanker charters 396 447 441
Plant and machinery 429 335 386
Land and buildings 315 268 364

1,140 1,050 1,191

Expenditure on research 412 382 369

13 Auditors’ remuneration

$ million
1998 1997 1996
UK Total UK Total UK Total
Audit fees — Ernst & Young
BP Amoco Group audit 5.8 12.1 3.9 8.9 4.1 8.4
Local statutory audit and quarterly review 0.8 5.1 0.7 4.2 0.6 4.2
6.6 17.2 4.6 13.1 4.7 12.6
Audit fees — PricewaterhouseCoopers
BP Amoco Group audit 0.1 2.7 0.1 2.8 0.1 2.6
Local statutory audit and quarterly review 0.2 0.9 0.2 1.1 0.1 1.3
0.3 3.6 0.3 3.9 0.2 3.9
Total group 6.9 20.8 4.9 17.0 4.9 16.5
Fees for other services — Ernst & Young
Sales of businesses and merger transaction fees 3.5 3.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 2.3
Consultancy, tax and other advisory services 5.2 21.7 3.4 16.3 4.0 18.1
8.7 25.2 4.9 17.8 5.6 20.4

Fees to major firms of accountants other than Ernst & Young for non-audit services amounted to $181 million (1997 $175 million and
1996 $102 million).
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14 BP Amoco Group balance sheet analysis

$ million

Capital expenditure and acquisitions

Operating capital employed

1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 1996
By business
Exploration and Production 6,318 7,879 6,433 39,165 36,773 34,656
Refining and Marketing 1,937 1,824 1,731 13,256 14,764 15,033
Chemicals 1,606 1,145 1,964 10,516 10,010 9,859
Other businesses and corporate 501 572 160 (1,845) (1,035) (793)
10,362 11,420 10,288 61,092 60,512 58,755
By geographical area
uK®@ 2,463 2,413 2,280 14,188 12,853 12,077
Rest of Europe 1,248 1,243 1,121 5,053 4,821 5,308
USA 3,720 3,315 4,005 26,740 26,563 25,983
Rest of World 2,931 4,449 2,882 15,111 16,275 15,387
10,362 11,420 10,288 61,092 60,512 58,755
Includes the following amounts for the BP/Mobil joint venture 620 646 -
8UK area includes the UK-based international activities ~ Operating capital employed 61,092 60,512 58,755
of Refining and Marketing. Liabilities for current and deferred (3,653) (8,925) (3,360)
taxation
Capital employed 57,439 56,587 55,395
Financed by:
Finance debt 13,755 12,877 12,848
Minority shareholders’ interest 1,072 1,100 313
BP Amoco shareholders’ interest 42,612 42,610 42,234
57,439 56,587 55,395
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15 Acquisitions

During 1998 the BP Amoco Group acquired Styrenix Kunststoffe, a plastics business based in Germany, and a number of minor refining
and marketing businesses. In 1997 BP Amoco and Shell Oil completed the formation of Altura Energy, a partnership combining their oil
and natural gas interests in west Texas and southeast New Mexico, USA. Altura Energy is consolidated within these accounts. In 1996

BP Amoco acquired the alpha-olefins and related businesses of Albermarle Corporation for $535 million.

The cost of acquisitions in the BP Amoco Group cash flow statement comprises:

$ million

1998 1997 1996

Goodwill 38 - -
Other intangible assets 1 - -
Tangible assets 194 810 395
Fixed assets — investments 71 - -
Working capital 27 25 140
MSI - (835) -
331 - 535

Finance debt (17) - -
Cash consideration 314 - 535
Cash acquired - - -
Net cash outflow 314 - 535

Investment in associated undertakings in 1997 included the acquisition of a 10 per cent interest in A O Sidanco, a Russian integrated oil
company, for $484 million. The investment in joint ventures in 1997 as well as the operational funding of the BP/Mobil joint venture
included the acquisition of a 60 per cent interest in Pan American Energy in Argentina and a 50 per cent interest in Empresa Petrolera

Chaco in Bolivia, two oil- and natural gas-producing companies, for $865 million.

16 Disposals

The principal divestments during 1998 were exploration and production properties in the USA and Papua New Guinea, the refinery in
Lima, Ohio, the sale and leaseback of the Amoco building in Chicago, lllinois, the retail network in the Czech Republic, the Adibis fuel

additives business and a speciality chemicals distribution business.

In 1997 the major disposals were the sale of US exploration and production properties and an intrastate natural gas pipeline in Texas.

Other divestments included oil marketing assets in Thailand and advanced materials and phenolic resin businesses in the UK.

The principal disposals in 1996 were the sale of the polystyrene foam products and Carborundum businesses, the BP America office
building in Cleveland, Ohio, certain Canadian exploration and production properties, the BP Amoco Group’s interest in the undeveloped

Ross field and the floating production and storage vessel Seillean.

Total proceeds received for disposals represent the following amounts shown in the cash flow statement:

$ million

1998 1997 1996

Proceeds from the sale of businesses 780 364 827
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 1,387 1,468 973
2,167 1,832 1,800
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16 Disposals (continued)

The disposals comprise the following:

$ million
1998 1997 1996
Intangible assets 151 21 67
Tangible assets 945 1,184 1,508
Fixed assets — investments 157 40 62
Working capital 88 203 355
Other (125) (110) (135)
1,216 1,338 1,857
Profit (loss) on sale of businesses 310 250 127
Profit (loss) on sale of fixed assets 653 313 (298)
Total consideration 2,179 1,901 1,686
Deferred consideration 9) (69) 137
Cash transferred on sale 3) - (23)
Net cash inflow 2,167 1,832 1,800
17 Intangible assets
$ million
Exploration Other
expenditure Goodwill intangibles Total
Cost
At 1 January 1997 3,220 187 563 3,970
Exchange adjustments (18) 6 (10) (22)
Additions 932 2 8 942
Transfers (457) - 18 (439)
Assets used by the BP/Mobil joint venture - (71) (123) (194)
Deletions (438) (18) 91) (547)
At 31 December 1997 3,239 106 365 3,710
Depreciation
At 1 January 1997 978 96 302 1,376
Exchange adjustments 21) 6) 1 (26)
Charge for the year 365 7 13 385
Transfers - - 11 11
Assets used by the BP/Mobil joint venture - (28) (64) 92)
Deletions (521) 2 3 (526)
At 31 December 1997 801 67 260 1,128
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17 Intangible assets (continued)

$ million

Exploration Other

expenditure Goodwill intangibles Total
Cost
At 1 January 1998 3,239 106 365 3,710
Exchange adjustments (7) 3 4 -
Acquisitions - 38 1 39
Additions 1,058 1 11 1,070
Transfers (79) 6) 27) (112)
Deletions (610) ©)) (16) (629)
At 31 December 1998 3,601 139 338 4,078
Depreciation
At 1 January 1998 801 67 260 1,128
Exchange adjustments 9 3 2 14
Charge for the year 373 14 10 397
Transfers - (@) (16) (20)
Deletions (468) 1) ©) (478)
At 31 December 1998 715 79 247 1,041
Net book amount
At 31 December 1998 2,886 60 91 3,037
At 31 December 1997 2,438 39 105 2,582
At 31 December 1996 2,242 91 261 2,594
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18 Tangible assets — property, plant and equipment

$ million
Exploration Refining of which:
and and Other businesses Assets under
Production Marketing Chemicals and corporate Total construction
Cost
At 1 January 1997 74,867 26,360 12,278 2,010 115,515 6,209
Prior year adjustment —
change in accounting
policy 1,636 - - - 1,636 -
Restated 76,503 26,360 12,278 2,010 117,151 6,209
Exchange adjustments (698) (815) (272) 23 (1,762) 62)
Acquisitions 810 - - - 810 -
Additions 5,095 1,088 1,028 175 7,386 4,832
Transfers (252) (67) (112) - 421) 4,715)
Assets used by the BP/
Mobil joint venture - (7,660) - - (7,660) (48)
Deletions (903) (610) 277) (138) (1,928) (33)
At 31 December 1997 80,555 18,306 12,645 2,070 113,576 6,183

Depreciation
At 1 January 1997 40,902 13,240 5,619 911 60,672
Prior year adjustment —

change in accounting

policy 1,300 - - - 1,300
Restated 42,202 13,240 5,619 911 61,972
Exchange adjustments (879) (335) (165) 12 (867)
Charge for the year 3,584 837 558 118 5,097
Transfers - (11) - - (a1
Assets used by the BP/

Mobil joint venture - (4,466) - - (4,466)
Deletions (205) (376) (116) 47) (744)
At 31 December 1997 45,202 8,889 5,896 994 60,981
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18 Tangible assets — property, plant and equipment (continued)

$ million
Exploration Refining of which:
and and Other businesses Assets under
Production Marketing Chemicals and corporate Total construction
Cost
At 1 January 1998 80,555 18,306 12,645 2,070 113,576 6,183
Exchange adjustments 309 (181) 169 6 303 9)
Acquisitions - 17 177 - 194 -
Additions 5,293 1,165 1,175 198 7,831 4,339
Transfers 455 (164) 195 99 585 (5,541)
Deletions (1,804) (991) (183) (469) (3,447) (827)
At 31 December 1998 84,808 18,152 14,178 1,904 119,042 4,145
Depreciation
At 1 January 1998 45,202 8,889 5,896 994 60,981
Exchange adjustments 335 (46) 73 2 364
Charge for the year 3,698 789 478 112 5,077
Transfers 127 41) 108 48 242
Deletions (1,306) (847) (120) (229) (2,502)
At 31 December 1998 48,056 8,744 6,435 927 64,162
Net book amount
At 31 December 1998 36,752 9,408 7,743 977 54,880 4,145
At 31 December 1997 35,353 9,417 6,749 1,076 52,595 6,183
At 31 December 1996 34,301 13,119 6,660 1,099 55,179 6,209

Assets held under finance leases, capitalised interest and land at net book amount included above:
$ million

Leased assets Capitalised interest

Cost Depreciation Net Cost Depreciation Net
At 31 December 1998 1,887 918 969 2,843 1,661 1,182
At 31 December 1997 1,949 893 1,056 2,814 1,684 1,130
At 31 December 1996 2,080 920 1,160 2,792 1,668 1,124

Freehold land Leasehold land

Over 50 years unexpired Other
At 31 December 1998 963 42 29
At 31 December 1997 964 41 30
At 31 December 1996 1,539 53 54
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19 Fixed assets — investments

$ million
Own
Associated undertakings Joint ventures Loans shares® Other® Total
Share of
retained
Shares Loans profit
Cost
At 1 January 1997 1,953 766 1,308 - 54 15 107 4,198
Exchange adjustments (184) 6) (227) 817) - 4 (11) (741)
Additions and net movements in
joint ventures 365 31 (156) 1,760 18 300 8 2,326
Acquisitions 507 - - - - - - 507
Transfers 27 32 - 850 - - (49) 860
Assets used by the BP/Mobil joint
venture (7) - - 3,331 (23) - (10) 3,291
Deletions - (24) (©)) - (10) - (©)) (40)
At 31 December 1997 2,661 799 917 5,624 39 319 42 10,401
Amounts provided
At 1 January 1997 32 - - - - - 2 34
Exchange adjustments 4) - - - - - - 4)
Provided in the year - - - - - - - -
Assets used by the BP/Mobil joint
venture 5) - - - - - - 5)
At 31 December 1997 23 - - - - - 2 25
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19 Fixed assets — investments (continued)

$ million
Own
Associated undertakings Joint ventures Loans shares® Other® Total
Share of
retained
Shares Loans profit
Cost
At 1 January 1998 2,661 799 917 5,624 39 319 42 10,401
Exchange adjustments 48 1 45 148 (©)) 2 4 245
Additions and net movements in
joint ventures 244 82 (165) (752) 19 254 6 (812
Acquisitions 71 - - - - - - 71
Transfers (234) ©) (7) (15) 25 - - (240)
Deletions (31) (38) (7) - - (86) (1) (163)
At 31 December 1998 2,759 835 783 5,005 80 489 51 10,002
Amounts provided
At 1 January 1998 23 - - - - - 2 25
Exchange adjustments 1 - - - - - 1) -
Provided in the year 200 - - - - - - 200
Transfers ©)) - - - 14 - - 11
Deletions 6) - - - - - - 6)
At 31 December 1998 215 - - - 14 - 1 230
Net book amount
At 31 December 1998 2,544 835 783 5,005 66 489 50 9,772
At 31 December 1997 2,638 799 917 5,624 39 319 40 10,376
At 31 December 1996 1,921 766 1,303 — 54 15 105 4,164

a

Own shares are held in Employee Share Ownership Plans (ESOPs) to meet the future requirements of the Employee Share Schemes (see Note

32) and prior to award under the Long Term Performance Plan (see Note 33). At 31 December 1998 the ESOPs held 31,384,000 (1997 —
18,790,000) shares for the Employee Share Schemes and 3,133,000 (1997 — 3,274,000) shares for the Long Term Performance Plan. The
market value of these shares at 31 December 1998 was $517 million (1997 — $292 million).

Other investments are unlisted.

20 Stocks
$ million
1998 1997
Petroleum 1,896 3,140
Chemicals 917 1,043
Other 174 86
2,987 4,269
Stores 655 654
3,642 4,923
Replacement cost 3,747 4,985
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21 Debtors

$ million
1998 1997
Within 1 year After 1 year Within 1 year After 1 year
Trade 5,778 - 7,725 -
Joint ventures 644 - 905 -
Associated undertakings 153 7 154 3
Prepayments and accrued income 786 509 773 164
Taxation recoverable 248 165 50 242
Pension prepayment - 2,213 - 1,880
Other 1,795 411 1,776 709
9,404 3,305 11,383 2,998

22 Current assets — investments
$ million
1998 1997
Listed — UK 48 50
— Foreign 33 31
81 81
Unlisted 389 986
470 1,067
Stock exchange value of listed investments 83 81

23 Finance debt

$ million
1998 1997
Within 1 year After 1 year Within 1 year After 1 year
Bank loans and overdrafts 302 1,778 426 1,674
Other loans 2,434 7,357 2,338 6,647
Total borrowings 2,736 9,135 2,764 8,221
Obligations under finance leases 101 1,783 92 1,800
2,837 10,918 2,856 10,021

Where the liability for any borrowing is swapped into another currency, the borrowing is accounted in the swap currency and not in the
original currency of denomination. Total borrowings include $86 million (1997 — $113 million) for the carrying value of currency swaps.
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23 Finance debt (continued)

$ million
1998 1997
Analysis of borrowings Bank loans Bank loans

by year of repayment and overdrafts Other loans Total and overdrafts Other loans Total
Due after 5 years 277 4,493 4,770 373 4,012 4,385
Due within 5 years 201 365 566 332 1,084 1,416
4 years 785 1,081 1,866 347 453 800
3 years 288 652 940 301 430 731
2 years 227 766 993 221 668 889
1,778 7,357 9,135 1,574 6,647 8,221
1 year 302 2,434 2,736 426 2,338 2,764
2,080 9,791 11,871 2,000 8,985 10,985

Amounts included above repayable by instalments part of which falls due after five years from 31 December are as follows:
After 5 years 174 114
Within 5 years 406 465
580 579

Interest rates on borrowings repayable wholly or partly more than five years from 31 December 1998 range from 3 per cent to 10 per cent
with a weighted average of 6 per cent. The weighted average interest rate on finance debt is 7 per cent.

At 31 December 1998 the BP Amoco Group had substantial amounts of undrawn borrowing facilities available, including $2,800 million
(1997 - $2,500 million) which were covered by formal commitments. These committed facilities are mainly with a number of international
banks and expire in 2001. Commitment fees are paid on the unused portion of the lines of credit and borrowings would be at pre-agreed
rates. Certain of these facilities support the BP Amoco Group’s commercial paper programme.

1998 1997
Fixed rate debt Floating rate debt

Weighted Weighted Weighted

average  average time average

interest for which interest
rate rate is fixed Amount rate Amount Total Total
Analysis of borrowings by currency % Years $ million % $ million $ million $ million
US dollars 7 10 7,392 5 3,460 10,852 9,993
Sterling - - - 6 613 613 679
South African rands - - - 15 42 42 63
Other currencies 7 9 189 7 175 364 250
Total loans 7,581 4,290 11,871 10,985

The BP Amoco Group aims for a balance between floating and fixed interest rates and, in 1998, BP’s upper limit for the proportion of
floating rate debt was 65 per cent of total net debt while Amoco’s upper limit was 60 per cent of total debt outstanding. Aside from debt
issued in the US municipal bond markets, interest rates on floating rate debt denominated in US dollars are linked principally to LIBOR,
while rates on debt in other currencies are based on local market equivalents. The BP Amoco Group monitors interest rate risk using a
process of sensitivity analysis. Assuming no changes to the borrowings and hedges described above, it is estimated that a change of

1 per cent in the general level of interest rates on 1 January 1999 would change 1999 profit before tax by approximately $55 million.
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23 Finance debt (continued)

$ million

1998 1997

Carrying Carrying

Fair values and carrying amounts of borrowings Fair value amount Fair value amount
Short-term borrowings 1,659 1,659 1,817 1,817
Long-term borrowings 10,555 10,126 9,319 9,055
Total borrowings 12,214 11,785 11,136 10,872

The fair value and carrying amounts of borrowings shown above exclude the effects of currency swaps (which are included for
presentation in the balance sheet). Long-term borrowings include debt which matures in the year from 31 December 1998, whereas in
the balance sheet long-term debt of current maturity is reported under amounts falling due within one year. The carrying amounts of the
BP Amoco Group’s short-term borrowings, which mainly comprise commercial paper, bank loans and overdrafts, approximate their fair
value. The fair value of the BP Amoco Group’s long-term borrowings is estimated using quoted prices or, where these are not available,
discounted cash flow analyses, based on the BP Amoco Group’s current incremental borrowing rates for similar types and maturities of

borrowing.

$ million
Obligations under finance leases 1998 1997
Minimum future lease payments payable within: 1 year 119 123
2 to 5 years 736 743
Thereafter 3,882 4,044
4,737 4,910
Less finance charges 2,853 3,018
Net obligations 1,884 1,892

24 Other creditors
$ million
1998 1997

Within 1 Within 1

year After 1 year year After 1 year
Trade 5,091 - 5,854 -
Joint ventures 205 - 241 -
Associated undertakings 154 4 272 2
Production taxes 241 1,238 408 1,503
Taxation on profits 2,395 39 3,034 -
Social security 14 - 26 -
Accruals and deferred income 2,642 454 2,928 417
Dividends 1,552 - 1,074 -
Other 3,035 312 3,834 579
15,329 2,047 17,671 2,501
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25 Other provisions

$ million
Other post-
Unfunded pension retirement
Decommissioning Environmental plans benefits Other Total
At 1 January 1997 3,153 1,620 1,602 2,377 259 9,011
Prior year adjustment —
change in accounting
policy (296) (850) - - 154 (492)
Restated 2,857 1,270 1,602 2,377 413 8,519
Exchange adjustments (28) (17) (199) 1) - (245)
New provisions 57 - - - - 57
Charged to income - 34 268 114 60 476
Released to income - (55) - - - (55)
Accretion of discount 85 34 - - 5 124
Utilised/deleted (85) (127) (145) (142) (40) (539)
At 31 December 1997 2,886 1,139 1,526 2,348 438 8,337
At 1 January 1998 2,886 1,139 1,526 2,348 438 8,337
Exchange adjustments 10 2 99 - - 111
New provisions 130 - - - - 130
Charged to income - 13 195 101 68 377
Accretion of discount 86 30 - - 4 120
Utilised/deleted (81) (810) (53) (138) (75) (607)
At 31 December 1998 3,081 874 1,767 2,311 435 8,468

At 31 December 1998 the provision for the costs of decommissioning the BP Amoco Group’s oil and natural gas production facilities and
pipelines at the end of their economic lives was $3,081 million. These costs are expected to be incurred over the next 30 years. The
provision has been estimated using existing technology, at current prices and discounted using a real discount rate of 3 per cent.

The provision for environmental liabilities at 31 December 1998 was $874 million. This represents primarily the estimated environmental
restoration and remediation costs for closed sites or facilities that have been sold. These costs are expected to be incurred over the next
10 years. The provision has been estimated using existing technology, at current prices, and discounted using a real discount rate of
3 per cent.

The BP Amoco Group also holds provisions for potential future awards under the long-term performance plan, expected rental
shortfalls on surplus properties and sundry other liabilities. If these liabilities are not expected to be settled within the next 3 years, the
provisions are discounted using a real discount rate of 3 per cent.

26 Derivative financial instruments

In the normal course of business the BP Amoco Group is a party to derivative financial instruments (derivatives) with off-balance sheet
risk, primarily to manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, including management of the
balance between floating rate and fixed rate debt. The BP Amoco Group also manages its exposure to some movements in oil and
natural gas prices. The underlying economic currency of the BP Amoco Group’s cash flows is mainly US dollars. Accordingly, most of the
BP Amoco Group’s borrowings are in US dollars, are hedged with respect to the US dollar or swapped into dollars where this achieves a
lower cost of financing. Significant non-dollar cash flow exposures are hedged. Gains and losses arising on these hedges are deferred
and recognised in the income statement or as adjustments to carrying amounts, as appropriate, only when the hedged item occurs. In
addition, the BP Amoco Group trades derivatives in conjunction with these risk management activities. The results of trading are
recognised in the current period.

These derivatives involve, to varying degrees, credit and market risk. With regard to credit risk, the BP Amoco Group may be exposed
to loss in the event of non-performance by a counterparty. The BP Amoco Group controls credit risk by entering into derivative contracts
only with highly credit-rated counterparties and through credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures and does not usually require
collateral or other security. The BP Amoco Group has not experienced material non-performance by any counterparty.

40



26 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Market risk is the possibility that a change in interest rates, currency exchange rates or oil and natural gas prices will cause the value
of a financial instrument to decrease or its obligations to become more costly to settle. When derivatives are used for the purpose of risk
management they do not expose the BP Amoco Group to market risk because the exposure to market risk created by the derivative is
offset by the opposite exposure arising from the asset, liability or transaction being hedged. When derivatives are held for trading
purposes, the exposure of the BP Amoco Group to market risk is represented by potential changes in their fair (market) values.

The measurement of market risk in trading activities is discussed further below.

The table shows the ‘fair value’ of the asset or liability created by derivatives. This represents the market value at the balance sheet
date. Credit exposure at 31 December is represented by the column ‘fair value asset’.

The table also shows the ‘net carrying amount’ of the asset or liability created by derivatives. This amount represents the net book
value, i.e. market value when acquired or later marked to market.

$ million

1998 1997

Net carrying Net carrying

Fair value Fair value amount asset Fair value Fair value amount asset

asset (liability) (liability) asset (liability) (liability)

Risk management — interest rate contracts 69 (328) (45) 54 (240) (53)
— foreign exchange contracts 181 (160) (75) 153 (187) 126

— oil price contracts 12 (5) 7 20 (25) 5)

— natural gas price contracts 51 (44) - 20 (20) -

Trading — interest rate contracts - - - 1 (7) 6)
— foreign exchange contracts 30 (39) 9) 42 (40) 2

— oil price contracts 134 (123) 11 160 (114) 46

Interest rate contracts include forward and futures contracts, swap agreements and options. Foreign exchange contracts include forward
and futures contracts, swap agreements and options. Oil and natural gas price contracts are those which require settlement in cash and
include futures contracts, swap agreements and options.

The following table shows the average net fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments held for trading purposes during the
year:

$ million

1998 1997

Average net fair Average net fair

value asset value asset

(liability) (liability)

Interest rate contracts 8) ©))
Foreign exchange contracts 21 1
Qil price contracts 54 24
67 22

The BP Amoco Group measures its market risk exposure, i.e. potential gain or loss in fair values, on its trading activity using a value at
risk technique. This technique is based on a variance/covariance model and makes a statistical assessment of the market risk arising
from possible future changes in market values over a 24-hour period. The calculation of the range of potential changes in fair value takes
into account a snapshot of the end-of-day exposures, and the history of one-day price movements over the previous twelve months,
together with the correlation of these price movements. The potential movement in fair values is expressed to three standard deviations
which is equivalent to a 99.7 per cent confidence level. This means that, in broad terms, one would expect to see an increase or a
decrease in fair values greater than the value at risk on only one occasion per year if the portfolio were left unchanged.
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26 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The BP Amoco Group calculates value at risk on all instruments that are held for trading purposes and that therefore give an exposure
to market risk. The value at risk model takes account of derivative financial instruments such as interest rate forward and futures
contracts, swap agreements, options and swaptions, foreign exchange forward and futures contracts, swap agreements and options and
oil price futures, swap agreements and options. Financial assets and liabilities and physical crude oil and refined products that are treated
as trading positions are also included in these calculations. The value at risk calculation for oil price exposure also includes derivative
commodity instruments (commodity contracts that permit settlement either by delivery of the underlying commodity or in cash), such as
forward contracts.

The following table shows values at risk for trading activities.

$ million

1998 1997

High Low Average Year end Average Year end

Interest rate contracts 6 - 2 - 3 2
Foreign exchange rate contracts 6 - 4 - 3 2
Qil price contracts 13 4 8 12 6 4

In the light of evolving disclosure requirements in both the UK and the US, the presentation of trading results shown below includes
certain activities of the BP Amoco Group’s oil trading division which involve the use of derivative financial instruments in conjunction with
physical and paper trading of ail. It is considered that a more comprehensive representation of the BP Amoco Group’s oil trading
activities is given by the classification of the gains or losses on such derivatives along with the physical and paper trades to which they
relate.

The following table shows the trading income arising from derivatives and other financial instruments. For oil price contract trading, this
also includes income or losses arising on trading of derivative commodity instruments and physical oil trades, representing the net result
of the oil-trading portfolio.

$ million

1998 1997

Net gain (loss) Net gain

Interest rate contracts (26) 2
Foreign exchange contracts 38 23
Qil price contracts 215 144
227 169

27 Called up share capital

During 1998 BP’s authorised share capital of £2,000 million was redenominated and increased to 12 billion ordinary shares of $0.50 each
amounting to $6 billion plus preference shares of £12,750,000 ($21 million). On 31 December 1998, BP issued 3,797,071,800 BP
Amoco Ordinary Shares to Amoco shareholders on completion of the BP/Amoco merger. Further details of movements in share capital
are shown in Note 28.
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27 Called up share capital (continued)

The allotted, called up and fully paid share capital at 31 December was as follows:

1998 1997
Shares $ million Shares $ million

Non-equity
8% (now 5.6%-+tax credit) cumulative first preference shares of £1 each 7,232,838 12 7,232,838 12
9% (now 6.3%-+tax credit) cumulative second preference shares of £1 each 5,473,414 9 5,473,414 9

Equity

Ordinary shares of 50 cents each 9,683,010,023 4,842 3,835,209,036 1,918
Ordinary shares of 25 pence each - - 5,762,583,600 2,391
4,863 4,330

On a show-of-hands vote on an ordinary resolution at a general meeting, Shareholders present in person or by proxy have one vote
each. Special resolutions are voted on by poll. On a poll, Shareholders present in person or by proxy have two votes for every £5 in
nominal amount of the BP Amoco Preference Shares held and one vote for every BP Amoco Ordinary Share held.

In the event of the winding up of the Company holders of BP Amoco Preference Shares would be entitled to a sum equal to the
capital paid up on the BP Amoco Preference Shares plus an amount in respect of accrued and unpaid dividends and a premium equal to
the higher of (i) 10 per cent of the capital paid up on the BP Amoco Preference Shares and (i) the excess of the average market price
over par value of such shares on the London Stock Exchange during the previous six months.

28 Capital and reserves

$ million
Share Capital Profit
Share premium redemption Merger and loss

capital account reserve reserve account Total

At 1 January 1997 4,382 3,406 327 673 32,230 41,018
Prior year adjustment — change in accounting policy - - - - 1,216 1,216
Restated 4,382 3,406 327 673 33,446 42,234
Employee share schemes — Amoco 8 - - 92 - 100
Employee share schemes — BP 10 144 - - - 154
Share dividend plan — BP 36 (36) - - 907 907
Share repurchases — Amoco (64) - - (115) (1,243) (1,422)
Profit for the year - - - - 5,676 5,676
Dividends - - - - (8,452) (3,452)
Exchange adjustment (42) (64) - - (1,481) (1,587)
At 31 December 1997 4,330 3,450 327 650 33,853 42,610
At 1 January 1998 4,330 3,450 327 650 33,853 42,610
Employee share schemes — Amoco 8 - - 97 - 105
Employee share schemes — BP 5 117 - - 42) 80
Share dividend plan — BP 46 (46) - - 1,243 1,243
Share repurchases — Amoco (27) - - (50) (607) (584)
Redenomination of BP shares into US dollars 484 (484) - - - -
Profit for the year - - - - 3,224 3,224
Dividends - - - - 4,121) 4,121)
Exchange adjustment 17 19 3 - 16 55
At 31 December 1998 4,863 3,056 330 697 33,666 42,612
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28 Capital and reserves (continued)

BP Amoco Group reserves include the following amounts, the distribution of which is limited by statutory or other restrictions:

$ million

1998 1997

Parent company 16 16
Subsidiary undertakings 5,195 5,469
Associated undertakings 1,162 1,144
6,373 6,629

The movements in the BP Amoco Group’s share capital during the year are set out above. All movements are quantified in terms of the
number of BP Amoco Shares issued or repurchased.

Employee share schemes

During the year 13,069,529 BP Amoco Ordinary Shares were issued under the BP employee share schemes and 16,763,559 under
Amoco employee share option and other employee benefit schemes. Certain of these shares were issued via a QUEST. See Note 32 for
further details.

Share dividend plan
110,285,094 ordinary shares were issued under the share dividend plan by capitalisation of the share premium account.

Share repurchase
Prior to the announcement of the merger Amoco repurchased 54,900,795 shares for a total consideration of $584 million.

Redenomination of BP shares into US dollars
The increase in the nominal value of the ordinary shares for existing BP shareholders from 25 pence to $0.50 was effected by transferring
$484 million from the share premium account.

29 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ interest

$ million
For the year ended 31 December Note 1998 1997
Profit for the year 3,224 5,676
Currency translation differences 55 (1,587)
Distribution to shareholders 10 (4,121) (3,452)
Share dividend plan — BP 1,243 907
Movement in group reserves 401 1,544
Shares issued (repurchased) (399) (1,168)
Net increase in shareholders’ interest 2 376
Shareholders’ interest at 1 January 42,610 41,018
Shareholders’ interest at 31 December 42,612 41,394
Prior year adjustment — change in accounting policy 1,216
At 31 December 1997 - as restated 42,610

There were no unrealised currency translation differences for the year on long-term borrowings used to finance equity investments in
foreign currencies (1997 unrealised losses of $2 million).
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30 BP Amoco Group cash flow statement analysis

(a) Reconciliation of historical cost profit before interest and tax to net $ million

cash inflow from operating activities 1998 1997 1996
Historical cost profit before interest and tax 5,980 9,872 11,344
Depreciation and amounts provided 5,301 5117 5,426
Exploration expenditure written off 373 365 574
Share of (profits) losses of joint ventures and associated undertakings (1,102) (777) (663)
Interest and other income (272) (255) (247)
(Profit) loss on sale of businesses and fixed assets (963) (563) 171
Charge for provisions 377 421 453
Utilisation of provisions (460) (401) (460)
Decrease (increase) in stocks 584 1,740 (1,261)
Decrease (increase) in debtors 1,768 2,033 (8,551)
(Decrease) increase in creditors (2,000) (1,994) 1,898
Net cash inflow from operating activities 9,586 15,558 13,679

(b) Exceptional items

The cash outflow relating to the BP/Amoco merger expenses charged in 1998 was $32 million. The cash outflow in respect of the
European refining and marketing joint venture implementation costs charged in 1996 and 1997 was $122 million (1997 — $307 million and
1996 — $69 million). The cash outflows relating to the refinery network rationalisation costs charged in 1995, 1996 and 1997 were

$23 million in 1997 (1996 — $66 million). All amounts were included in the net cash inflow from operating activities.

$ million

(c) Financing 1998 1997 1996
Long-term borrowing (2,196) (1,179) (398)
Repayments of long-term borrowing 1,217 884 2,421
Short-term borrowing (513) (1,285) (1,503)
Repayments of short-term borrowing 692 1,342 381
(800) (238) 901

Issue of share capital (161) (172) (112)
Repurchase of share capital 584 1,422 39
Net cash (inflow) outflow (377) 1,012 828

(d) Management of liquid resources
Liquid resources comprise current asset investments which are principally commercial paper issued by other companies. The net cash
inflow from the management of liquid resources was $596 million (1997 — $167 million and 1996 — $147 million).

() Commercial paper
Net movements in commercial paper are included within short-term borrowings or repayment of short-term borrowings as appropriate.
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30 BP Amoco Group cash flow statement analysis (continued)

$ million
Current asset
() Movement in net debt Finance debt Cash investments Net debt
1996
At 1 January (13,602) 641 1,370 (11,591)
Net cash flow 901 (304) (147) 450
Other movements (122) - - (122)
Exchange adjustments (25) 10 10 (5)
At 31 December (12,848) 347 1,233 (11,268)
1997
At 1 January (12,848) 347 1,233 (11,268)
Net cash flow (238) 33 (167) (872)
Other movements 133 - 5 138
Exchange adjustments 76 (25) 4) 47
At 31 December (12,877) 355 1,067 (11,455)
1998
At 1 January (12,877) 355 1,067 (11,455)
Net cash flow (800) 67 (596) (1,329)
Other movements (53) - - (53)
Exchange adjustments (25) (17) M 43)
At 31 December (13,755) 405 470 (12,880)
31 Operating leases
$ million
1998 1997
Land and Land and
Annual commitments under operating leases buildings Other buildings Other
Expiring within: 1 year 50 149 23 140
2 to 5 years 92 432 106 405
Thereafter 174 99 165 74
316 680 294 619
Minimum future lease payments Total Total
Payable within: 1 year 909 828
2 to 5 years 2,047 2,253
Thereafter 1,868 1,721
4,824 4,802
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32 Employee share schemes

During 1998 BP and Amoco operated share schemes for their employees. However, the arrangements of the two companies differed
reflecting market practice in the UK and the USA. Consequently the arrangements of each company are described separately. A review
will be undertaken during 1999 in order to formulate an integrated employee share ownership strategy for BP Amoco. At the extraordinary
general meeting in November 1998 shareholders approved a new discretionary share option plan (the “BP Amoco Share Option Plan”).

BP offered its employees and those of most of its principal operating companies the opportunity to acquire a shareholding in BP.
Scheme design varied by country, reflecting local legislation, culture and employment practice. There were two categories of scheme:
those which were generally available to most staff (e.g. the Participating and Savings Related Share Option Schemes in the UK) and
those for defined categories of staff (e.g. the Executive Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) for middle managers).

Under participating schemes, BP matched employees’ own contributions of shares, all of which were then held for defined periods.
With savings-related schemes, employees saved regularly toward the purchase of shares at a price fixed when their savings contract
commenced. The ESOS offered middle managers the opportunity to exercise share options between the third and tenth anniversaries of
the date of grant, at the market price set at the time of grant. Grants made since 1995 under the ESOS will not be exercisable until a
performance condition has been satisfied. Before any options can be exercised, the Remuneration Committee will require the total return
to shareholders (share price increase with all dividends reinvested) on an investment in BP Amoco shares to exceed the mean total return
to shareholders of a representative group of UK companies by a margin set from time to time by the committee. The performance period
for each grant will normally be three years.

An Employee Share Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) has been established to acquire BP Amoco Ordinary Shares to satisfy future
requirements of certain employee share schemes. Funding is provided to the ESOP by the Company. The assets and liabilities of the
ESOP are recognised as assets and liabilities of the Company within these accounts. The ESOP has waived its rights to dividends.

During 1998 the ESOP acquired a further 16,853,000 shares and released 4,259,000 shares for the participating share schemes. The
cost of shares released for these schemes has been charged in these accounts. At 31 December 1998 the ESOP held 31,384,000 BP
Amoco Ordinary Shares (1997 — 18,790,000 shares).

In January 1998 BP established a Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust (“QUEST”) for the purposes of share option schemes
for employees and executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries. During the year, contributions of $42 million were made by
the Company to the QUEST which, together with option-holder contributions, were used by the QUEST to subscribe for new ordinary
shares at market price. The cost of this contribution has been transferred by the Company directly to retained profits and the excess of
the subscription price over nominal value has increased share premium account. At 31 December 1998, all the 4,825,188 BP Amoco
Ordinary Shares issued to the QUEST had been transferred to option holders exercising options under the BP Group Savings Related
Share Option Scheme.

In Amoco stock options were used to a greater extent than in BP as an element of employee remuneration. Under the Amoco Stock
Option Plan options were granted to key managerial and other eligible employees. The exercise price was the market price of Amoco
stock on the date of grant. Options granted under the plans generally become exercisable one or two years after the date of grant and
lapse on the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. There were no performance conditions. Following the merger of BP and Amoco
outstanding Amoco stock options were converted into BP Amoco share options on the basis of the ratio of 3.97:1.
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32 Employee share schemes (continued)

In addition Amoco also had a Restricted Stock Grant Plan. This plan provided for the awarding of Amoco stock to selected employees
and non-executive directors. Shares issued under the plan may not be sold or otherwise transferred for a minimum period as established

at the time of grant.

Employee share options granted

during the year (options thousands) 1998 1997 1996
BP savings related and similar schemes 4,867 7,389 5,242
BP ESOS 1,288 2,269 1,905
Amoco Stock Option Plan 30,348 26,991 22,168

36,503 36,649 29,315

The exercise prices for BP options granted during the year were $12.41 (4,773,000 options) and $11.68 (94,000 options) for savings-
related and similar schemes and $14.04 (1,243,000 options) and $15.75 (45,000 options) for the ESOS. Amoco stock options were

granted at an average price of $43.55 which equates to a BP Amoco share price of $10.97.

Shares issued in respect of options exercised

during the year (shares thousands) 1998 1997 1996
BP savings related and similar schemes 6,291 138,974 5,545
BP ESOS 5,130 4,402 6,222
Amoco Stock Option Plan 15,317 14,197 9,671

26,738 32,573 21,438

In addition, 1,649,000 shares (1997 — 6,822,000 shares and 1996 — 8,240,000 shares) were issued, and 4,259,000 shares released from

the ESOP for participating share schemes.

Options outstanding at 31 December 1998 1997 1996
BP Amoco options (shares thousands) 173,449 168,033 168,446
Exercise period 1999-2008 1998-2007 1997-2006
Price $3.70-$15.75  $3.70-$11.95 $2.35-$8.28

Details of Directors’ individual participation in share schemes are given in Note 34 — Directors’ remuneration.

33 Long-term performance plan

During 1998 BP senior executives and executive directors participated in the LTPP. This is an incentive scheme under which the
Remuneration Committee may award BP Amoco Ordinary Shares to participants or fund the purchase of shares for participants if long-
term targets are met. The LTPP had replaced the granting of executive share options to those participants. For 1999, the LTPP will be
extended to cover senior executives and executive directors of the BP Amoco Group. Participants based in North America will continue to

receive share options in line with local market practice.

The cost of potential future awards is accrued over the three-year performance periods of the LTPP. The amount charged in 1998 was

$45 million (1997 — $28 million and 1996 — $31 million).

The value of awards under the 1995-7 LTPP made in 1998 was $36 million (1997: 1994-6 LTPP $28 milion and 1996: 1991-5 LTPP

$57 million).
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Employee Share Ownership Plans (“ESOPs”) have been established to acquire BP Amoco shares to satisfy any awards made to
participants under the Plan and then to hold them for the participants during the retention period of the Plan. In order to hedge the cost
of potential future awards the ESOPs may, from time to time over the performance period of the Plans, purchase BP Amoco Ordinary
Shares in the open market. Funding is provided to the ESOPs by the Company. The assets and liabilities of the ESOPs are recognised as
assets and liabilities of the Company within these accounts. The ESOPs have waived their rights to dividends.

At 31 December 1998 the ESOPs held 3,133,000 (1997 — 3,274,000) shares for potential future awards.

34 Directors’ remuneration

$ thousand
1998 1997 1996
Total for all directors
Emoluments? 6,870 8,264 7,235
Gains made on the exercise of share options 888 146 2,276
Amounts awarded under long-term incentive schemes 4,434 6,844 13,188
Highest paid director
Emoluments 1,514 1,538 1,173
Gains made on the exercise of share options 806 105 -
Amount awarded under long-term incentive schemes 1,331 1,346 2,677
Accrued pension at 31 December 626 554 406

2 Fees of $45,730 (1997 —-$60,680 and 1996 $51,480) in respect of Mr H M P Miles’ services as a non-executive director were paid to his
employer.

As the merger between BP and Amoco occurred on 31 December 1998, the information shown above for 1998, 1997 and 1996 is the
remuneration of BP directors only.

Emoluments
These amounts comprise fees paid to the chairman and non-executive directors, and, for executive directors, salary and benefits earned
during the relevant financial year, plus bonuses awarded for the year.

Pension contributions

Six executive directors participate in a non-contributory pension scheme established for UK staff by a separate trust fund to which
contributions are made by BP Amoco based on actuarial advice. There were no contributions to this pension scheme in 1998, 1997 or
1996.

Further information on executive remuneration
The following information is extracted from the report on Executive Remuneration included in the BP Amoco 1998 Annual Report &
Accounts.
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34 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Annual Remuneration

The table below represents annual remuneration earned by, and paid to, executive directors in the 1998 financial year, with the exception
of bonuses (which were earned in 1998 but paid in 1999). A conversion rate of £1 = $1.66 has been used for 1998, £1 = $1.64 for 1997

and £1 = $1.56 for 1996.

$ thousand
Annual Benefits

performance and other 1998 1997 1996

Base salary bonus emoluments Total Total Total

Sir John Browne 895 492 127 1,514 1,638 1,173
Dr J G S Buchanan 533 296 70 899 927 3782

R F Chase 581 331 50 962 986 888
H L Fuller® 1,073 572 29 1,674 n/a n/a

Dr C S Gibson-Smith 506 279 53 838 522 -

W G Lowrie® 708 328 13 1,049 n/a n/a

R L Olver® 506 279 163 948 n/a n/a

B K Sanderson 581 331 75 987 999 889

K R Seal - - - - 879 925

Dr R W H Stomberg - - - - 1,209 1,243
S J Ahearne - - - - - 82g¢

Totals 5,383 2,908 580 8,871 7,060 6,324

2 From date of appointment.

P H L Fuller and W G Lowrie were appointed to the BP Amoco Board on 31 December 1998, the effective date of the merger.

figures shown represent earnings for the whole 1998 calendar year which were paid for their services as directors to Amoco.

However, the

¢ R L Olver was appointed to the board on 1 January 1998. His benefits and other emoluments include expatriation costs which were incurred

before his board appointment.
4 To date of retirement.

Long-term performance plans

Potential awards to executive directors, including an indicative range of potential awards under the 1997 and 1998 LTPPs, are set out in

the table below.

Performance period of LTPP 1994-96 1995-97 1996-98 1997-99 1998-2000
Year of award 1997 1998 1999 1999 2000 2001
: d
Value of Value of Potential Award Range of potential awards
awards? awards?® awards® value® Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum
($ thousand)  ($ thousand) (shares)  ($ thousand) (shares) (shares) (shares) (shares)
Current executive directors
Sir John Browne 1,346 1,331 81,300 1,137 48,780 81,300 40,140 133,800
Dr J G S Buchanan 505 776 64,400 901 48,780 81,300 23,850 79,500
R F Chase 1,346 1,331 81,300 1,137 48,780 81,300 25,770 85,900
Dr C S Gibson-Smith - 498 55,800 781 42,000 70,000 22,740 75,800
R L Olver n/a 498 47,500 665 42,000 70,000 22,740 75,800
B K Sanderson 1,346 - 81,300 1,137 48,780 81,300 25,770 85,900
Former executive directors
S J Ahearne 1,346 - 27,100 379 - - - -
H E Norton 449 - - - - - - -
K R Seal 1,346 1,331 54,200 758 16,260 27,100 - -
The Lord Simon of Highbury 449 - - - - - - -
Dr R W H Stomberg 505 776 54,200 758 16,260 27,100 - -

2 Based on average market price on date of award 1994-96 — £6.84/$11.22 at £1=$1.64 1995-97 £8.00/$13.28 1995-97 at £1 = $1.66.

b
c

d

performance period.
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34 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Amoco share option awards

In common with US market practice, long-term incentives in Amoco in 1998 were in the form of grants of executive share options. Those

options were granted at a level in line with the oil and general industry markets in the USA and they had no performance conditions.

Remuneration of non-executive directors

The remuneration of the chairman and non-executive directors for 1998, 1997 and 1996 is shown in the following table.

($ thousand)
Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
1998 1997 1996
Current directors
R S Block 90 n/a n/a
J H Bryan 90 n/a n/a
E B Davis, Jr 90 n/a n/a
R J Ferris 90 n/a n/a
C F Knight 522 51 37°
F A Maljers 90 n/a n/a
Dr W E Massey 90 n/a n/a
H M P Miles 612 d 61° © 51¢
Sir Robin Nicholson 46> f 73° 48°
Sir lan Prosser 552 34P -
P D Sutherland 266 216P 125°
M H Wilson 90 n/a n/a
R P Wilson 182 - -
The Lord Wright of Richmond 61° 61P 64°
Directors leaving the board in 1998
D R Beall 393°¢ n/a n/a
Sir James Glover 612 69° 72°
Dr K N Homn 512 51P 39°
A C Martinez 244" n/a n/a
M R Seger 393° n/a n/a
Sir Patrick Sheehy 512 54° 44°
T M Solso 214 n/a n/a
Directors who retired before 1998
The Lord Simon of Highbury - 535P 376°
Dr C H Hahn - - 55¢
Total 2,596 2,085 911

2 Sterling payments converted at the average 1998 exchange rate of £1 = $1.66.

b Sterling payments converted at the average 1997 rate of £1 = $1.64.
Sterling payments converted at the average 1996 rate of £1 = $1.56.
Paid in part to his employer.

Paid to his employer.

Also received $22,687 for serving on the Technical Advisory Council.

9 Includes standard non-executive director remuneration of $89,762 and a special payment of $304,000 in recognition of service to the Amoco

board.

board.

Includes standard non-executive director remuneration of $89,762 and a special payment of $154,000 in recognition of service to the Amoco

' Includes standard non-executive director remuneration of $89,762 and a special payment of $124,000 in recognition of service to the Amoco

board.
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34 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Additional
pension earned

Additional pension

Additional pension

Accrued during the year earned during the earned during the
Years of service entitlement at ended year ended year ended
at 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
1998 19982 1998 19972 19962
Pension entitlement - UK executive directors ($ thousand) ($ thousand) ($ thousand) ($ thousand)
Sir John Browne 32 626 45 118 28
Dr J G S Buchanan 29 327 32 20 5P
R F Chase 34 420 32 18 17
Dr C S Gibson-Smith 28 295 27 5P b
R L Olver 25 300 27 n/aP b
B K Sanderson 34 420 32 16 17
2 A conversion rate of £1 = $1.66 has been used for 1998, £1 = $1.64 for 1997 and £1 = $1.56 for 1996.
b Only includes pension earned from date of board appointment.
Additional
pension earned
Accrued during the year
Years of service entitlement at ended
at 31 December 31 December 31 December
1998 1998° 19987
Pension entitlement - US executive directors ($ thousand) ($ thousand)
H L Fuller 37 1,146 128
W G Lowrie 32 475 111
2 Expressed as a single life annuity with benefit commencement at 31 December 1998.
Other remuneration features
Directors’ executive share options®
Average
Number of Options option price® Dates from which
Granted Exercised At 31 Dec 98 £ exercisable Expiry dates
Sir John Browne - 79,400¢ - n/a n/a n/a
Dr J G S Buchanan - - 59,600 2.87 9 Mar 92-27 Mar 93 8 Mar 99-26 Mar 00
H L Fuller 1,191,000¢ 349,360° 7,384,200 514 27 Mar 92-24 Mar 00 27 Mar 00-24 Mar 08
W G Lowrie 635,200 222,320" 3,533,300 5.28 27 Mar 92-24 Mar 00 27 Mar 00-24 Mar 08

a

To allow meaningful comparison, all options in the above table are denoted in BP Amoco ordinary stock. (Mr Fuller's and Mr Lowrie’s options

were originally denoted in Amoco common stock, at time of grant, but were converted to BP Amoco ADSs at the time of merger of BP and
Amoco. They are shown here for convenience as the equivalent number of BP Amoco Ordinary Shares at a sterling price, using an exchange

rate of £1=$1.66.)
These are the weighted average prices applicable to all shares under option at the end of the year. Full details of Directors’ shareholdings and

options are available for inspection in the Company’s register of Directors’ interests.

Exercise price £3.38 and market price at date of exercise £9.50.
4 Grant price £6.61.
Exercise price £3.08, and market price at date of exercise £6.25.

Exercise price £2.87 for 95,280 shares and £3.08 for 127,040 shares, and market price at dates of exercise £6.25 and £8.89 respectively.

The market price of BP Amoco Ordinary Shares at 31 December 1998 was £8.98 ($14.91). The highest and lowest market prices of
BP ordinary shares during 1998 were £9.68 and £7.37 respectively.
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34 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Directors’ SAYE share options

Average Dates from which
At 1 Jan 98 Granted Exercised At 31 Dec 98 option price £2 exercisable Expiry dates
Sir John Browne 2,984 - - 2,984 5.78 1 Sep 02 28 Feb 03
Dr J G S Buchanan 6,201 928P 3,640° 3,489 4.94 1 Sep 99-1 Sep 03 28 Feb 00-28 Feb 04
R F Chase 4,662 - - 4,662 3.70 1 Sep 00 28 Feb 01
R L Oliver 7,809 - 4,3814 3,428 5.03 1 Sep 01-1 Sep 02 28 Feb 02-28 Feb 03
B K Sanderson 4,267 . - 4,267 4.04 1 Sep 99-1 Sep 02 28 Feb 00-28 Feb 03

a

options are available for inspection in the Company’s register of Directors’ interests.

b Grant price £7.43.
Exercise price £2.06, and market price at date of exercise £8.28.

All Executive Directors are also deemed to have an interest in such shares of the Company held from time to time by BP QUEST

Company Limited to facilitate the operation of the Company’s SAYE option scheme.

Exercise price £2.06 for 3,640 shares and £2.48 for 741 shares, and market price at dates of exercise £7.95 and £9.11 respectively.

These are the weighted average prices applicable to all shares under option at the end of the year. Full details of Directors’ shareholdings and

35 Loans to officers

Miss J C Hanratty has a low interest loan of $43,000 made to her prior to her appointment as Company Secretary on 1 October 1994.

36 Employee costs and numbers

$ million
1998 1997 1996
(a) Employee costs

Wages and salaries 4,995 5,114 4,560
Social security costs 412 388 410
Pension costs 139 141 266
5,546 5,643 5,236
1998 1997 1996

(b) Number of employees at 31 December
Exploration and Production 18,800 19,150 18,300
Refining and Marketing® 52,100 53,800 49,150
Chemicals 23,050 24,000 24,100
Other businesses and corporate 2,700 3,850 3,350
96,650 100,800 94,900
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36 Employee costs and numbers (continued)

UK Rest of Europe USA Rest of World Total
(c) Average number of employees

1998
Exploration and Production 4,050 900 7,900 6,200 19,050
Refining and Marketing® 10,300 9,700 23,600 9,150 52,750
Chemicals 4,650 5,150 11,600 2,450 23,850
Other businesses and corporate 950 300 1,550 450 3,250
19,950 16,050 44,650 18,250 98,900
UK Rest of Europe USA Rest of World Total

1997
Exploration and Production 3,750 900 8,450 5,700 18,800
Refining and Marketing® 9,550 10,000 23,650 9,000 52,200
Chemicals 5,000 4,650 11,850 2,550 24,050
Other businesses and corporate 900 200 1,950 600 3,650
19,200 15,750 45,900 17,850 98,700
UK Rest of Europe USA Rest of World Total

1996
Exploration and Production 3,450 950 8,950 5,100 18,450
Refining and Marketing 7,550 9,650 22,850 8,200 48,250
Chemicals 5,200 4,600 13,300 2,400 25,500
Other businesses and corporate 750 150 1,850 950 3,700
16,950 15,350 46,950 16,650 95,900

2 Includes 17,300 (1997 — 18,050) employees assigned to the BP/Mobil joint venture.

P Includes 8,550 (1997 — 7,850) employees assigned to the BP/Mobil joint venture in the UK and 9,350 (1997 — 9,600) employees in the Rest of
Europe.

37 Pensions

Most BP Amoco Group companies have pension plans, the forms and benefits of which vary with conditions and practices in the
countries concerned. The main plans provide benefits that are computed based on an employee’s years of service and final pensionable
salary. In most cases BP Amoco Group companies make contributions to separately administered trusts, based on advice from
independent actuaries using actuarial methods, the objective of which is to provide adequate funds to meet pension obligations as they
fall due. In certain countries the plans are unfunded and the accrued liability for pension benefits is included within other provisions.

The net charge to income for pensions in 1998 was $139 million (1997 $141 milion and 1996 $266 million). This was assessed in
accordance with independent actuarial advice using the projected unit method for the BP Amoco Group’s major pension plans.
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37 Pensions (continued)

The principal assumptions used in calculating the credit/charge for the principal plans were as follows:

1998 1997 1996
UK and other European
Rate of return on assets 7.0% 8.1% 8.3%
Discount rate 7.0% 8.1% 8.3%
Future salary increases 5.1% 5.9% 6.2%
Future pension increases 3.2% 4.0% 4.3%
USA
Rate of return on assets 10% 10% 10%
Discount rate 6.9% 7% 7%
Future salary increases 4.7% 4.7% 4.7%
Future pension increases nil nil nil

At 1 January 1998, the date of the latest actuarial valuations or reviews, the market value of assets in the BP Amoco Group’s major
externally funded pension plans in the UK and the USA was $20,689 million ($17,988 million at 1 January 1997). The actuarial value of
the assets of these plans represented 123 per cent (1997 119 per cent) of the benefits that had accrued to members of those plans,
after allowing for expected future increases in salaries.

At 31 December 1998 the obligation for accrued benefits in respect of the principal unfunded schemes in Europe was $1,714 million
($1,543 million at 31 December 1997). Of this amount, $1,345 million ($1,220 million at 31 December 1997) has been provided in these
accounts.

38 Other post-retirement benefits

Certain BP Amoco Group companies, principally in the USA, provide post-retirement health care and life insurance benefits to their retired
employees and dependants. The entitlement to these benefits is usually based on the employee remaining in service until retirement age
and completion of a minimum period of service. The plans are partly funded and the accrued net liability for post-retirement benefits is
included within other provisions.

The charge to income for post-retirement benefits in 1998 of $101 million (1997 $110 million and 1996 $130 million) was assessed in
accordance with independent actuarial advice using the projected unit method.

At 31 December 1998 the independent actuaries have reassessed the obligation for post-retirement benefits at $1,814 million ($1,709
million at 31 December 1997). The provision for post-retirement benefits at 31 December 1998 was $2,311 million ($2,348 million at 31
December 1997).

The discount rate used to assess the obligation at 31 December 1998 was 6.5 per cent (6.9 per cent at 31 December 1997). The
assumed future healthcare cost trend rates for 1999 are 5 per cent to 7.6 per cent for beneficiaries aged under 65 and 5 per cent to
6.5 per cent for beneficiaries aged over 65, reducing to 5 per cent for both age groups in the year 2002 and for subsequent years.
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39 Contingent liabilities

There were contingent liabilities at 31 December 1998 in respect of guarantees and indemnities entered into as part of, and claims arising
from, the ordinary course of the BP Amoco Group’s business, upon which no material losses are likely to arise.

Approximately 200 lawsuits were filed in State and Federal Courts in Alaska seeking compensatory and punitive damages arising out of
the Exxon Valdez oil spill in Prince William Sound in March 1989. Most of those suits named Exxon, Alyeska Pipeline Service Company
(“Alyeska”), which operates the oil terminal at Valdez, and the seven oil companies which own Alyeska. Alyeska initially responded to the
spill until the response was taken over by Exxon. BP Amoco owns a 50 per cent interest in Alyeska through a subsidiary of BP America
Inc. Alyeska and its owners have settled all of the claims against them under these lawsuits. Exxon has indicated that it may file a claim
for contribution against Alyeska for a portion of the costs and damages which it has incurred. If any claims are asserted by Exxon which
affect Alyeska and its owners, BP Amoco would defend the claims vigorously.

The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) has challenged the application of certain foreign income taxes as credits against BP Amoco
Corporation’s US taxes that otherwise would have been payable for the years 1980 to 1992. On 18 June 1992, the IRS issued a
statutory Notice of Deficiency for additional taxes in the amount of $466 million, plus interest, relating to 1980 to 1982. BP Amoco filed a
petition in the US Tax Court contesting the IRS statutory Notice of Deficiency. Trial on the matter was held in April 1995, and a decision
was rendered by the US Tax Court in March 1996, in BP Amoco’s favour. The IRS has appealed the Tax Court’s decision to the US
Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit and on 11 March 1998 the Seventh Circuit affirmed the Tax Court’s prior decision. A comparable
adjustment of foreign tax credits for each year has been proposed for the years 1983 to 1992 based upon subsequent IRS audits. BP
Amoco Corporation believes that the foreign income taxes have been reflected properly in its US federal tax returns. Consequently, this
dispute is not expected to have a material adverse effect on liquidity, results of operations, or the financial position of the BP Amoco
Group.

The BP Amoco Group is subject to numerous national and local environmental laws and regulations concerning its products,
operations and other activities. These laws and regulations may require the BP Amoco Group to take future action to remediate the
effects on the environment of prior disposal or release of chemical or petroleum substances by the BP Amoco Group or other parties.
Such contingencies may exist for various sites including refineries, chemical plants, oil fields, service stations, terminals and waste
disposal sites. In addition, the BP Amoco Group may have obligations relating to prior asset sales or closed facilities. The ultimate
requirement for remediation and its cost is inherently difficult to estimate. However, the estimated cost of known environmental obligations
has been provided in these accounts in accordance with the BP Amoco Group’s accounting policies. While the amounts of future costs
could be significant and could be material to the BP Amoco Group’s results of operations in the period in which they are recognised, BP
Amoco does not expect these costs to have a material effect on the BP Amoco Group’s financial position or liquidity.

BP Amoco has issued guarantees under which amounts outstanding at 31 December 1998 were $7,252 million (1997 $6,290 million)
including $7,220 million (1997 $6,288 million) in respect of borrowings by its subsidiary undertakings.

40 Capital commitments

Authorised future capital expenditure by BP Amoco Group companies for which contracts had been placed at 31 December 1998
amounted to $3,691 million (1997 $3,940 million).
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41 Joint ventures and associated undertakings

Summarised financial information for the BP Amoco Group’s share of its joint ventures, all of which were established in 1997, is shown
below. The principal joint venture is the pan-European refining and marketing joint venture with Mobil, which is jointly controlled. The other
significant joint ventures of the BP Amoco Group at 31 December 1998 are shown in Note 42.

$ million

1998 1997

Turnover 15,428 16,804
Profit for the period before tax 546 221
Profit for the period after tax 561 221
Fixed assets 5,681 5,349
Current assets 3,372 3,798
9,053 9,147

Liabilities due within one year 3,586 2,993
Liabilities due after one year 462 530
5,005 5,624

Within the BP/Mobil joint venture BP Amoco operates and has a 70 per cent interest in the fuels refining and marketing operation and
has a 49 per cent interest in the lubricants business. Funding is provided to the joint venture by both BP Amoco and Mobil in proportion
to their respective interests as required. Surplus cash in the joint venture is returned to BP Amoco and Mobil on a regular, usually daily,
basis.

BP Amoco has made available to the joint venture on a long-term basis the tangible fixed assets formerly used by its European refining
and marketing operations. Staff working for the fuels business are BP Amoco employees, while those working for the lubricants business
are Mobil employees. Staff costs for BP Amoco employees were $902 million in 1998 ($889 million in 1997).

During 1998 the BP Amoco Group sold crude oil and products totalling $2,264 million (1997 $3,126 million) to the BP/Mobil joint
venture and purchased crude oil and products totalling $1,335 million (1997 $1,963 million). At 31 December 1998 the outstanding
balances receivable and payable were $351 million (1997 $526 million) and $144 million (1997 $241 million) respectively. In addition there
were net receipts of $675 million (1997 advances of $367 million) outstanding at 31 December 1998.

The more significant associated undertakings of the BP Amoco group at 31 December 1998 are shown in Note 42.

During the year the BP Amoco Group purchased crude oil from two associated undertakings, Abu Dhabi Marine Areas and Abu Dhabi
Petroleum to the value of $715 million (1997 $1,014 million and 1996 $1,055 million). At 31 December 1998 $45 million (1997 $93 million
and 1996 $90 million) was payable in respect of these purchases.

During the year the BP Amoco Group sold chemical feedstocks totalling $395 million (1997 $549 million and 1996 $487 million) to
Erdolchemie, an associated undertaking, and bought petrochemicals, mainly polyethylene, to the value of $76 million (1997 $64 million
and 1996 $396 million). At 31 December 1998 the outstanding balance receivable from Erddlchemie was $1 million (1997 $5 million).
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42 Subsidiary and associated undertakings and joint ventures

The more important subsidiary and associated undertakings and joint ventures of the BP Amoco Group at 31 December 1998 and the
BP Amoco Group percentage of equity capital or joint venture interest (to nearest whole number) are set out below. The principal country
of operation is generally indicated by the company’s country of incorporation or by its name. Those held directly by the parent company
are marked with an asterisk (*), the percentage owned being that of the BP Amoco Group unless otherwise indicated. A complete list of
investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings and joint ventures will be attached to the parent company’s annual return made to
the Registrar of Companies. Advantage has been taken of the exemption conferred by regulation 7 of The Partnerships and Unlimited
Companies (Accounts) Regulations 1993 from the requirements to deliver to the Registrar of Companies and publish the annual accounts
of the BP/Mobil joint ventures.

Subsidiary undertakings % Country of incorporation Principal activities

International

BP Chemicals Investments 100 England Chemicals
BP Exploration Co 100 Scotland Exploration and production
*BP International 100 England Integrated oil operations
BP Qil International 100 England Integrated oil operations
BP Exploration

Operating Company 100 England Exploration and production
*BP Shipping 100 England Shipping
Europe
UK
BP Capital 100 England Finance
BP Chemicals 100 England Chemicals
BP Oil UK 100 England Refining and marketing
*Britoil (parent 15%) 100 Scotland Exploration and production
*The Tanker Insurance Company 100 England Insurance
France
BP France 100 France Refining and marketing and chemicals
Germany
Deutsche BP 100 Germany Refining and marketing and chemicals
Netherlands
BP Capital BV 100 Netherlands Finance
BP Nederland 100 Netherlands Refining and marketing
Spain
BP Espana 100 Spain Refining and marketing
Middle East
Amoco Egypt Gas 100 USA Natural gas
Amoco Egypt QOil 100 USA Qil
Amoco Sharjah LPG 100 USA LPG
Amoco Sharjah QOil Co. 100 USA Qil
*BP Middle East 100 England Marketing
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42 Subsidiary and associated undertakings and joint ventures (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings continued

%

Country of incorporation

Principal activities

Africa

*BP Southern Africa 100 South Africa Refining and marketing

Far East

Singapore

*BP Singapore 100 Singapore Refining and marketing

Australasia

Australia

BP Australia 100 Australia Integrated oil operations

BP Finance Australia 100 Australia Finance

BP Developments

Australia 100 Australia Exploration and production

New Zealand

BP Oil New Zealand 100 New Zealand Marketing

Western Hemisphere

Canada

Amoco Canada Petroleum Company 100 Canada Exploration and production

Trinidad

Amoco Energy Company of Trinidad and

Tobago 100 USA Exploration and production

Amoco Trinidad (LNG) 100 Netherlands Liquified natural gas

USA

Altura Energy 64 USA Exploration and production

BP Amoco Corporation

BP Amoco Company Exploration and production, refining and
) 100 USA ) o )

BP America marketing, pipelines and chemicals

Standard Ol

Associated undertakings % Country of incorporation Principal activities

Abu Dhabi

Abu Dhabi Marine Areas 33 England Crude oil production

Abu Dhabi Petroleum 24 England Crude oil production

Germany

Erdélchemie 50 Germany Chemicals

Ruhrgas 25 Germany Gas distribution

Russia

Sidanco?® 10 Russia Integrated oil operations

Rusia 20 Russia Exploration and production

2 20% voting interest

Joint ventures % Principal place of business Principal activities

BP/Mobil 70/49° Europe Refining and marketing

Empresa Petrolera Chaco 30 Bolivia Exploration and production

Pan American Energy 60 Argentina Exploration and production

Crescendo Resources 41 USA Exploration and production

P Fuels/lubricants
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43 Oil and gas exploration and production activities®

$ million
1998
UK Rest of Europe USA Rest of World Total
Capitalised costs at 31 December
Gross capitalised costs
Proved properties 23,290 2,934 35,383 15,078 76,685
Unproved properties 400 76 890 1,915 3,281
23,690 3,010 36,273 16,993 79,966
Accumulated depreciation 12,470 1,865 20,741 8,183 43,459
Net capitalised costs 11,020 1,145 15,532 8,810 36,507
Costs incurred
for the year ended 31 December
Acquisition of properties
Proved - - 3 54 57
Unproved - 1 58 62 121
- 1 61 116 178
Exploration and appraisal costs® 177 106 476 764 1,523
Development costs 1,432 100 1,670 1,569 4,771
Total costs 1,609 207 2,207 2,449 6,472
Results of operations
for the year ended 31 December
Turnover®
Third parties 1,063 73 2,782 2,133 6,051
Sales between businesses 2,481 520 2,027 905 5,933
3,544 593 4,809 3,038 11,984
Exploration expenditure 134 89 240 458 921
Production costs 878 146 1,548 888 3,460
Production taxes 15 6 233 320 574
Other costs (income)? (50) (18) 780 384 1,096
Depreciation 1,188 169 1,168 1,072 3,592
2,160 392 3,969 3,122 9,643
Profit before taxation® 1,384 201 840 (84) 2,341
Allocable taxes 378 79 111 115 683
Results of operations 1,006 122 729 (199) 1,658
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43 Oil and gas exploration and production activities® (continued)

$ million
1997
UK Rest of Europe USA Rest of World Total
Capitalised costs at 31 December
Gross capitalised costs
Proved properties 21,250 2,917 34,166 14,137 72,470
Unproved properties 323 55 914 1,776 3,068
21,5783 2,972 35,080 15,913 75,538
Accumulated depreciation 10,975 1,736 20,924 7,889 41,524
Net capitalised costs 10,598 1,236 14,156 8,024 34,014
Costs incurred
for the year ended 31 December
Acquisition of properties
Proved - 95 7 7 109
Unproved 15 3 121 26 165
15 98 128 33 274
Exploration and appraisal costs? 192 133 524 942 1,791
Development costs 1,463 161 1,744 1,714 5,082
Total costs 1,670 392 2,396 2,689 7,147
Results of operations
for the year ended 31 December
Turnover®
Third parties 2,680 559 5,639 1,553 10,431
Sales between businesses 1,817 341 1,132 2,884 6,174
4,497 900 6,771 4,437 16,605
Exploration expenditure 156 79 273 454 962
Production costs 743 176 1,378 944 3,241
Production taxes 283 19 446 536 1,284
Other costs (income)® 50 (1) 720 690 1,449
Depreciation 1,236 185 1,168 707 3,291
2,468 448 3,980 3,331 10,227
Profit before taxation® 2,029 452 2,791 1,106 6,378
Allocable taxes 655 206 896 501 2,258
Results of operations 1,374 246 1,895 605 4,120

61



Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

43 Oil and gas exploration and production activities® (continued)

$ million
1996
UK Rest of Europe USA Rest of World Total
Capitalised costs at 31 December
Gross capitalised costs
Proved properties 19,975 3,031 32,403 18,540 68,949
Unproved properties 343 50 871 1,809 3,073
20,318 3,081 33,274 15,349 72,022
Accumulated depreciation 9,873 1,765 18,902 8,157 38,697
Net capitalised costs 10,455 1,316 14,372 7,192 33,325
Costs incurred
for the year ended 31 December
Acquisition of properties
Proved - 22 113 33 168
Unproved - - 106 114 220
- 22 219 147 388
Exploration and appraisal costs? 167 103 543 837 1,650
Development costs 1,622 228 1,502 1,262 4,614
Total costs 1,789 353 2,264 2,246 6,652
Results of operations
for the year ended 31 December
Turnover®
Third parties 2,708 371 5,999 1,869 10,947
Sales between businesses 2,304 342 1,134 2,884 6,664
5,012 713 7,133 4,753 17,611
Exploration expenditure 161 90 284 462 997
Production costs 811 142 1,253 789 2,995
Production taxes 450 15 503 605 1,573
Other costs (income)? 161 (25) 973 701 1,810
Depreciation 1,372 176 1,159 686 3,393
2,955 398 4172 3,243 10,768
Profit before taxation® 2,057 315 2,961 1,510 6,843
Allocable taxes 700 199 1,086 690 2,675
Results of operations 1,357 116 1,875 820 4,168

The BP Amoco Group’s share of associated undertakings’ results of operations in 1998 was a profit of $40 million (1997 - profit
$13 million and 1996 $1 million loss) after adding a tax credit of $19 million (1997 and 1996 $nil).

The BP Amoco Group’s share of associated undertakings’ net capitalised costs at 31 December 1998 was $2,212 million (1997
$2,662 million and 1996 $nil).

The BP Amoco Group’s share of associated undertakings’ costs incurred in 1998 was $282 million (1997 $1,349 million and 1996
$nil).
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43 Oil and gas exploration and production activities (continued)

a

This note relates to the requirements contained within the UK Statement of Recommended Practice ‘Disclosures about oil and gas exploration
and production activities’. Mid-stream activities of natural gas gathering and distribution and the operation of the main pipelines and tankers are
excluded. The main mid-stream activities are the Alaskan transportation facilities, the Forties Pipeline system, the Central Area Transmission
System and Ruhrgas gas distribution operations. Profits on sale of businesses and fixed assets relating to the oil and natural gas exploration
and production activities, which have been accounted as exceptional items, are also excluded.

Exploration and appraisal drilling expenditure and licence acquisition costs are initially capitalised within intangible fixed assets in accordance
with BP Amoco Group accounting policy.

Turnover represents sales of production excluding royalty oil where royalty is payable in kind.
Includes cost of royalty oil not taken in kind and property taxes.
The exploration and production total replacement cost operating profit comprises:

$ million
1998 1997 1996

Exploration and production activities
— BP Amoco Group (as above) 2,341 6,378 6,843
— Associated undertakings 21 13 (1)
Mid-stream activities 869 994 921
Total replacement cost operating profit 3,231 7,385 7,763

44 New accounting standard for joint ventures and associated undertakings

With effect from 1 January 1998 the BP Amoco Group has adopted FRS9. This has four effects:

(@) The BP/Mobil joint venture and Crescendo Resources are accounted for using the gross equity method rather than by proportional
consolidation. This change has reduced the amounts reported against most income statement, balance sheet and cash flow
statement captions. Profit for the year and net assets are unaffected by this change in treatment.

(b)  Altura Energy is consolidated rather than being accounted for by proportional consolidation. This change has increased the
amounts reported against most income statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement captions and creates a minority
shareholder interest in the income statement and balance sheet. Profit for the period and BP Amoco shareholders’ interest are
unaffected by this change in treatment.

() Pan American Energy and Empressa Petrolera Chaco are treated as joint ventures rather than associates and are accounted for by
the gross equity method rather than the equity method. Profit for the period and net assets are unaffected by this change in
treatment.

(d) Income from associated undertakings and joint ventures is shown before charging interest expense. Interest expense for associated
undertakings and joint ventures is now included in the total interest expense reported. Interest expense for associated undertakings
which would have been charged against replacement cost operating profit in 1996, 1997 and the corresponding amounts for 1998
are shown below.

$ million
1998 1997 1996

Exploration and Production 58 6 11

Refining and Marketing 22 7 6

Chemicals 66 55 44

Other businesses and corporate 16 15 7

162 83 68
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44 New accounting standard for joint ventures and associated undertakings (continued)

Information for 1997 and 1996 has been restated to conform with the 1998 presentation prior to the adoption of FRS12 (see Note 46). A
summarised income statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement for 1997 for BP Amoco on a FRS9 basis and as would have

been prepared previously are shown below.

As the BP/Mohbil joint venture, Crescendo Resources, Altura Energy, Pan American Energy and Empresa Petrolera Chaco were set up or

acquired in 1997, financial information for 1996 is unaffected by the adoption of FRS9 except for the reclassification of interest expense in

note (d) above.

$ million
1997 1997

Income statement Pre FRS12
Note 46 Pre FRS9
Turnover 108,564 103,418
Less: Joint ventures 16,804 -
BP Amoco Group turnover 91,760 103,418
Total replacement cost operating profit 10,583 10,357
Profit on sale of businesses and fixed assets 440 440
Refinery network rationalisation 71 71
Replacement cost profit before interest and tax 11,094 10,868
Stock holding gains (losses) (939) (939)
Historical cost profit before interest and tax 10,155 9,929
Interest expense 908 825
Profit before taxation 9,247 9,104
Taxation 3,066 3,066
Profit after taxation 6,181 6,038
Minority shareholders’ interest 151 8
Profit for the year 6,030 6,030
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44 New accounting standard for joint ventures and associated undertakings (continued)

$ million
1997 1997
Balance sheet Pre FRS12
Note 46 Pre FRS9
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 2,682 2,723
Tangible assets 52,263 54,637
Investments 10,376 5,899
65,221 63,259
Current assets
Stocks 4,923 6,399
Debtors 14,381 16,075
Investments 1,067 1,067
Cash at bank and in hand 355 354
20,726 23,895
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Finance debt 2,856 2,856
Other creditors 17,671 19,863
Net current assets 199 1,176
Total assets less current liabilities 65,420 64,435
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year
Finance debt 10,021 10,021
Other creditors 2,562 2,569
Provisions for liabilities and charges 9,989 9,873
Net assets 42,848 41,972
Minority shareholders’ interest 1,100 224
BP Amoco shareholders’ interest 41,748 41,748
Represented by capital and reserves
Called up share capital 4,330 4,330
Reserves 37,418 37,418
41,748 41,748
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44 New accounting standard for joint ventures and associated undertakings (continued)

$ million
1997 1997

Cash flow statement Pre FRS12
Note 46 Pre FRS9
Net cash inflow from operating activities 15,558 15,734
Dividends from joint ventures and associated undertakings 741 -
Net cash outflow from servicing of finance and returns on investments (655) (650)
Tax paid (2,273) (2,273)
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure (7,432) (7,902)
Net cash outflow for acquisitions and disposals (2,624) (1,595)
Equity dividends paid (2,437) (2,437)
Net cash inflow 878 877
Financing 1,012 1,012
Management of liquid resources (167) (167)
Increase in cash 33 32
878 877

45 Merger accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using the merger method of accounting in relation to the merger of BP and Amoco. Under
merger accounting, the results and cash flows of BP and Amoco are combined from the beginning of the financial period in which the
merger occurred and their assets and liabilities combined at the amounts at which they were previously recorded after adjusting to
achieve consistency of accounting policies. Income statement, balance sheet and cash flow comparatives are restated on the combined
basis.

The merger of BP and Amoco became effective on 31 December 1998. As both BP and Amoco had financial year ends of
31 December, income statements for each company for the year ended 31 December 1998 are presented below together with their
respective balance sheets at 31 December 1998.

On 31 December 1998 the Company issued 3,797,071,800 BP Amoco Ordinary Shares with a nominal value of $1,898,535,900 and a
fair value of $56,943,166,956 to Amoco shareholders under the terms of the merger agreement between BP and Amoco. Following the
merger, former BP shareholders held 5,885,938,223 shares. Assuming conversion of all outstanding BP share options and Amoco stock
options into shares on that date and excluding shares held by the respective companies, the ownership interests of former BP and
Amoco shareholders in the combined company were 59.98 per cent and 40.02 per cent respectively.

The following information is set out below:
(@) The nature and the amount of the accounting adjustments made to align Amoco’s accounting policies with those of BP.
(b) Income statements and statements of total recognised gains and losses of BP and Amoco for the current and two prior years.
(c) Balance sheets of BP and Amoco at 31 December 1998 and 1997.

Reclassifications have been made to the Amoco historical financial information presented under US GAAP to conform to BP’s
presentation under UK GAAP.
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45 Merger accounting (continued)

UK GAAP adjustments to Amoco historical financial statements
Amoco prepared its financial statements in accordance with US GAAP. The income statements and balance sheets of Amoco have been
restated to conform with BP accounting policies under UK GAAP by giving effect to the following adjustments:

(@ Consolidation bases
Under US GAAP, certain oil and natural gas joint ventures are proportionately consolidated, whereas under UK GAAP the joint ventures
would either be equity accounted or consolidated depending on the ownership interest. Amoco’s joint ventures were set up in early 1997.

This adjustment does not alter profit for the year or net assets, but does change the amounts reported against a number of income
statement and balance shest captions; including creating a minority shareholders’ interest of $59 million (1997 $143 million and 1996 $nil)
in the income statement and of $826 million in 1998 (1997 $876 million) in the balance sheet.

(b)  Stock accounting

Amoco carried stocks at the lower of current market values or cost. Cost is determined under the LIFO method for the majority of stocks
of crude ail, petroleum products and chemical products. The costs of remaining stocks are determined on the FIFO or average cost
methods. BP carried stocks at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost to BP is determined using the FIFO method. Cost of sales
determined on a FIFO basis is adjusted to a replacement cost basis, i.e. to reflect the average cost of supplies incurred during the year,
by excluding stock holding gains and losses.

As a result of this adjustment replacement cost of sales is reduced by $7 million (1997 increased by $130 million and 1996 increased
by $195 million); there are stockholding losses of $415 million (1997 $419 million loss and 1996 $545 million gain); profit for the year is
reduced by $408 million (1997 reduced by $549 million and 1996 increased by $350 million). The carrying value of stock is increased by
$549 million in 1998 (1997 $955 million).

(c) Deferred taxation

Under the UK GAAP restricted liability method, deferred taxation is only provided for where timing differences are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future. For US GAAP under the liability method, deferred taxation is provided for temporary differences between the
financial reporting basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities at enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such amounts are
realised or settled.

This adjustment increases the charge for taxation by $76 million (1997 $110 million increase and 1996 $3 million decrease) and
reduces the profit for the year by the same amount.

The provision for deferred taxation in the balance sheet is reduced by $1,761 million in 1998 (1997 $1,534 million).

(d)  Foreign currency translation

BP considered that the functional currency of its non-UK operations is the local currency except for certain exploration and production
operations where the US dollar is the functional currency. Amoco considered the functional currency of substantially all of its operations to
be the US dollar. Where there is a difference between the two companies in terms of functional currency, the functional currency of
Amoco’s operations has been changed to the local currency.

The retranslation of Amoco’s assets and liabilities resulting from this gives rise to currency translation differences.

The net effects of this adjustment are to increase profit for the year by $11 million (1997 reduce by $82 million and 1996 increase by
$73 million) and to reduce net assets by $633 million in 1998 (1997 $583 million).

(e) Exceptional items
Under UK GAAP, certain exceptional items should be shown separately on the face of the income statement after operating profit. Under
US GAAP these items would be classified as operating income or expenses.

For 1998 there were profits on the sale of businesses of $8 million (1997 $117 million and 1996 $144 million) and on the sale of fixed
assets of $312 million (1997 $495 million profit and 1996 $42 million loss) and merger expenses of $119 million.
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

45 Merger accounting (continued)

) Equity accounting

UK GAAP requires the operating profit or loss, exceptional items, interest expense and taxation of associated undertakings and joint
ventures to be shown separately from those of the group. For US GAAP, the after-tax profits or losses (i.e. operating results after
exceptional items, interest expense and taxation) should be included in the income statement as a single line item.

UK GAAP requires the investor’s share of the gross assets and gross liabilities of the joint venture to be shown on the face of the
balance sheet, whereas under US GAAP the net investment should be included as a single line item.

This adjustment has no overall effect on profit for the year or net assets.

(9 Sale and leaseback

The sale and leaseback of the Amoco building in Chicago is treated as a sale for UK GAAP whereas for US GAAP it is treated as a
financing transaction. The effect of this adjustment is to increase exceptional items and profit for the year by $211 million. Net assets are
increased by $211 million.

$ million

Total

Income statement Amoco US/UK GAAP Amoco Pre FRS12
for the year ended 31 December 1998 US GAAP adjustment UK GAAP BP BP Amoco
Turnover 26,695 (36) 26,659 57,073 83,732
Less: Joint ventures - 348 348 15,080 15,428
BP Amoco Group turnover 26,695 (384) 26,311 41,993 68,304
Replacement cost of sales 21,750 (87) 21,663 34,691 56,354
Production taxes 149 18 167 437 604
Gross profit 4,796 (815) 4,481 6,865 11,346
Distribution and administration expenses 2,543 (77) 2,466 3,578 6,044
Exploration expense 658 - 658 263 921
1,595 (238) 1,357 3,024 4,381

Other income (30) 335 305 404 709
BP Amoco Group replacement cost operating profit 1,565 97 1,662 3,428 5,090
Share of profits of joint ventures - 65 65 760 825
Share of profits of associated undertakings - 69 69 453 522
Replacement cost operating profit 1,565 231 1,796 4,641 6,437
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45 Merger accounting (continued)

$ million
Income statement Total
for the year ended 31 December 1998 Amoco US/UK GAAP Amoco Pre FRS12
US GAAP adjustment UK GAAP BP BP Amoco
Replacement cost operating profit 1,565 231 1,796 4,641 6,437
Profit (loss) on sale of businesses and fixed assets - 320 320 728 1,048
Merger expenses - (119) (119) (79) (198)
Replacement cost profit before interest and tax 1,565 432 1,997 5,290 7,287
Stock holding gains (losses) - (415) (415) (976) (1,391)
Historical cost profit before interest and tax 1,565 17 1,582 4,314 5,896
Interest expense 380 93 473 580 1,053
Profit before taxation 1,185 (76) 1,109 3,734 4,843
Taxation 227 91 318 1,202 1,520
Profit after taxation 958 (167) 791 2,632 3,323
Minority shareholders’ interest - 59 59 4 63
Profit for the year 958 (226) 732 2,528 3,260
Distribution to shareholders 1,438 - 1,438 2,683 4,121
Replacement cost results
Historical cost profit for the year 732 2,528 3,260
Stock holding (gains) losses 415 976 1,391
Replacement cost profit for the year 1,147 3,504 4,651
Exceptional items, net of tax (125) (527) (652)
Replacement cost profit before exceptional items 1,022 2,977 3,999
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

45 Merger accounting (continued)

$ million
Income statement Total
for the year ended 31 December 1997 Amoco US/UK GAAP Amoco Pre FRS12
US GAAP adjustment UK GAAP BP BP Amoco
Turnover 32,103 98 32,201 76,363 108,564
Less: Joint ventures 71 41 112 16,692 16,804
BP Amoco Group turnover 32,032 57 32,089 59,671 91,760
Replacement cost of sales 25,304 41 25,345 48,583 73,928
Production taxes 286 9 295 1,012 1,307
Gross profit 6,442 7 6,449 10,076 16,525
Distribution and administration expenses 2,633 120 2,753 3,989 6,742
Exploration expense 635 1 636 326 962
3,174 (114) 3,060 5,761 8,821
Other income 902 (574) 328 334 662
BP Amoco Group replacement cost operating
profit 4,076 (688) 3,388 6,095 9,483
Share of profits of joint ventures 5 19 24 520 544
Share of profits of associated undertakings 19 17 36 520 556
Replacement cost operating profit 4,100 (652) 3,448 7,135 10,583
Profit (loss) on sale of businesses and fixed assets - 612 612 (172) 440
Refinery network rationalisation - - - 71 71
Replacement cost profit before interest and tax 4,100 (40) 4,060 7,034 11,094
Stock holding gains (losses) - (419) (419) (520) (939)
Historical cost profit before interest and tax 4,100 (459) 3,641 6,514 10,155
Interest expense 339 34 373 535 908
Profit before taxation 3,761 (493) 3,268 5,979 9,247
Taxation 1,046 105 1,151 1,915 3,066
Profit after taxation 2,715 (598) 2,117 4,064 6,181
Minority shareholders’ interest 5) 143 138 13 151
Profit for the year 2,720 (741) 1,979 4,051 6,030
Distribution to shareholders 1,382 - 1,382 2,070 3,452
Replacement cost results
Historical cost profit for the year 1,979 4,051 6,030
Stock holding (gains) losses 419 520 939
Replacement cost profit for the year 2,398 4,571 6,969
Exceptional items, net of tax (877) 57 (320)
Replacement cost profit before exceptional
items 2,021 4,628 6,649
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45 Merger accounting (continued)

$ million
Income statement Total
for the year ended 31 December 1996 Amoco US/UK GAAP Amoco Pre FRS12
US GAAP adjustment UK GAAP BP BP Amoco
Turnover 32,284 - 32,284 69,780 102,064
Less: Joint ventures - - - - -
BP Amoco Group turnover 32,284 - 32,284 69,780 102,064
Replacement cost of sales 25,062 193 25,255 56,667 81,922
Production taxes 327 - 327 1,284 1,611
Gross profit 6,895 (193) 6,702 11,829 18,531
Distribution and administration expenses 2,646 (56) 2,590 5,777 8,367
Exploration expense 680 - 680 317 997
3,569 (137) 3,432 5,735 9,167
Other income 432 (82) 350 364 714
BP Amoco Group replacement cost operating
profit 4,001 (219) 3,782 6,099 9,881
Share of profits of joint ventures - - - - -
Share of profits of associated undertakings 144 34 178 485 663
Replacement cost operating profit 4,145 (185) 3,960 6,584 10,544
Profit (loss) on sale of businesses and fixed assets - 102 102 (273) (171)
European refining and marketing joint venture
implementation - - - (532) (532)
Replacement cost profit before interest and tax 4,145 (83) 4,062 5,779 9,841
Inventory holding gains (losses) - 545 545 627 1,172
Historical cost profit before interest and tax 4,145 462 4,607 6,406 11,013
Interest expense 295 24 319 685 1,004
Profit before taxation 3,850 438 4,288 5,721 10,009
Taxation 1,016 12 1,028 1,727 2,755
Profit after taxation 2,834 426 3,260 3,994 7,254
Minority shareholders’ interest - - - 13 13
Profit for the year 2,834 426 3,260 3,981 7,241
Distribution to shareholders 1,287 - 1,287 1,720 3,007
Replacement cost results
Historical cost profit for the year 3,260 3,981 7,241
Inventory holding (gains) losses (545) (627) (1,172
Replacement cost profit for the year 2,715 3,354 6,069
Exceptional items, net of tax (106) 733 627
Replacement cost profit before exceptional
items 2,609 4,087 6,696
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45 Merger accounting (continued)

$ million
Total
Amoco US/UK GAAP Amoco Pre FRS12
Balance sheet as at 31 December 1998 US GAAP adjustment UK GAAP BP BP Amoco
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 756 21) 735 2,302 3,037
Tangible assets 23,378 (383) 23,345 31,120 54,465
Investments
Joint ventures — Gross assets 2,009 7,044 9,053
— Gross liabilities 719 3,329 4,048
— Net investment 1,290 3,715 5,005
Associated undertakings 939 3,223 4,162
Other - 605 605
2,234 (5) 2,229 7,543 9,772
Total fixed assets 26,368 (59) 26,309 40,965 67,274
Current assets
Stocks 1,175 542 1,717 1,925 3,642
Debtors — amounts falling due:
Within one year 3,160 37 3,197 6,207 9,404
After more than one year 612 72 684 2,621 3,305
Investments 387 - 387 83 470
Cash at bank and in hand 65 - 65 340 405
5,399 651 6,050 11,176 17,226
Creditors — amounts falling due within
one year
Finance debt 836 - 836 2,001 2,837
Other creditors 3,972 265 4,237 11,092 15,329
Net current (liabilities) assets 591 386 977 (1,917) (940)
Total assets less current liabilities 26,959 327 27,286 39,048 66,334
Creditors - amounts falling due after
more than one year
Finance debt 5,838 412) 5,426 5,492 10,918
Other creditors 265 - 265 1,844 2,109
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred taxation 2,350 (1,759) 591 1,041 1,632
Other provisions 2,873 (29 2,844 5,973 8,817
Net assets 15,633 2,527 18,160 24,698 42,858
Minority shareholders’ interest 163 826 989 83 1,072
Shareholders’ interest 15,470 1,701 17,171 24,615 41,786
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45 Merger accounting (continued)

$ million
Total
Amoco US/UK GAAP Amoco Pre FRS12
Balance sheet as at 31 December 1997 US GAAP adjustment UK GAAP BP BP Amoco
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 812 (15) 797 1,785 2,582
Tangible assets 22,813 (7) 22,806 29,457 52,263
Investments
Joint ventures — Gross assets 2,308 6,839 9,147
— Gross liabilities 774 2,749 3,523
— Net investment 1,534 4,090 5,624
Associated undertakings 787 3,567 4,354
Other - 398 398
2,099 222 2,321 8,055 10,376
Total fixed assets 25,724 200 25,924 39,297 65,221
Current assets
Stocks 1,174 940 2,114 2,809 4,923
Debtors — amounts falling due:
Within one year 3,723 31 3,754 7,629 11,383
After more than one year 515 46 561 2,437 2,998
Investments 979 - 979 88 1,067
Cash at bank and in hand 166 1 167 188 355
6,557 1,018 7,575 13,151 20,726
Creditors — amounts falling due within
one year
Finance debt 969 - 969 1,887 2,856
Other creditors 4,918 (45) 4,873 12,798 17,671
Net current assets (liabilities) 670 1,063 1,733 (1,534) 199
Total assets less current liabilities 26,394 1,263 27,657 37,763 65,420
Creditors - amounts falling due after
more than 1 year
Finance debt 4,691 - 4,691 5,330 10,021
Other creditors 308 - 308 2,254 2,562
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred taxation 2,085 (1,549) 536 647 1,183
Other provisions 2,860 67) 2,793 6,013 8,806
Net assets 16,450 2,879 19,329 23,519 42,848
Minority shareholders’ interest 131 876 1,007 93 1,100
Shareholders’ interest 16,319 2,003 18,322 23,426 41,748
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45 Merger accounting (continued)

$ million
Statement of total recognised gains and losses Total
for the year ended 31 December 1998 Amoco Pre FRS12
UK GAAP BP BP Amoco
Profit for the year 732 2,528 3,260
Currency translation differences 30 25 55
Total recognised gains and losses 762 2,553 3,315
For the year ended 31 December 1997
Profit for the year 1,979 4,051 6,030
Currency translation differences (348) (1,239) (1,587)
Total recognised gains and losses 1,631 2,812 4,443
For the year ended 31 December 1996
Profit for the year 3,260 3,981 7,241
Currency translation differences (19 386 367
Total recognised gains and losses 3,241 4,367 7,608

46 New accounting standard for provisions

The BP Amoco Group has adopted Financial Reporting Standard No. 12 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’
(“FRS12”) with effect from 1 January 1999. This standard changes the criteria for recognising provisions for such costs as
decommissioning, environmental liabilities and restructuring charges. It also requires provisions for liabilities which may not be settled for a
number of years to be discounted to their net present value. The adoption of this standard has been treated as a change in accounting
policy. Comparative figures have been restated to reflect this change in accounting policy.

The principal effects of the adoption of FRS12 are as follows:

(@) Provisions for environmental liabilities are determined on a discounted basis as the effect of the time value of money is material.
Previously these liabilities were on an undiscounted basis.

(b)  Provisions for decommissioning are recognised in full, on a discounted basis, at the commencement of oil and natural gas
production. The BP Amoco Group’s prior practice was to accrue the expected cost of decommissioning oil and natural gas
production facilities on a unit-of-production basis over the life of the field. FRS12 also requires the BP Amoco Group to capitalise
an amount equivalent to the provision as a tangible fixed asset and to amortise this amount over the life of the field on a unit-of-
production basis.

(c) The unwinding of the discount, which represents a period-by-period cost, is included within interest expense.

(d) Certain restructuring costs associated with refinery network rationalisation and European refining and marketing joint venture
implementation are recognised in a later period than originally charged.
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46 New accounting standard for provisions (continued)

Information for 1998, 1997 and 1996 has been restated to conform with FRS12. A summarised income statement and balance sheet for
BP Amoco on a FRS12 basis and as would have been prepared previously are shown below. There is no impact on net cash flow.

$ million
1998 1998 1997 1997 1996 1996
Income Statement Restated Pre FRS12 Restated Pre FRS12 Restated Pre FRS12
Turnover 83,732 83,732 108,564 108,564 102,064 102,064
Less: Joint ventures 15,428 15,428 16,804 16,804 - -
BP Amoco Group turnover 68,304 68,304 91,760 91,760 102,064 102,064
Total replacement cost operating profit 6,521 6,437 10,683 10,583 10,634 10,544
Profit on sale of businesses and fixed assets 1,048 1,048 440 440 (171) (171)
Merger expenses (198) (198) - - - -
Refinery network rationalisation - - 47 71 (24) -
European refining and marketing joint venture
implementation - - (265) - (267) (532)
Replacement cost profit before interest and tax 7,371 7,287 10,811 11,094 10,172 9,841
Stock holding gains (losses) (1,391) (1,391) (939) (939) 1,172 1,172
Historical cost profit before interest and tax 5,980 5,896 9,872 10,155 11,344 11,013
Interest expense 1,173 1,053 1,032 908 1,128 1,004
Profit before taxation 4,807 4,843 8,840 9,247 10,216 10,009
Taxation 1,520 1,520 3,013 3,066 2,783 2,755
Profit after taxation 3,287 3,323 5,827 6,181 7,433 7,254
Minority shareholders’ interest 63 63 151 151 13 13
Profit for the year 3,224 3,260 5,676 6,030 7,420 7,241
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46 New accounting standard for provisions (continued)

$ million
1998 1998 1997 1997 1996 1996
Balance sheet Restated Pre FRS12 Restated Pre FRS12 Restated Pre FRS12
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 3,037 3,037 2,582 2,582 2,594 2,594
Tangible assets 54,880 54,465 52,595 52,263 55,179 54,843
Investments 9,772 9,772 10,376 10,376 4,164 4,164
67,689 67,274 65,553 65,221 61,937 61,601
Current assets
Stocks 3,642 3,642 4,923 4,923 7,652 7,652
Debtors 12,709 12,709 14,381 14,381 17,482 17,482
Investments 470 470 1,067 1,067 1,233 1,233
Cash at bank and in hand 405 405 355 355 347 347
17,226 17,226 20,726 20,726 26,714 26,714
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
Finance debt 2,837 2,837 2,856 2,856 2,760 2,760
Other creditors 15,329 15,329 17,671 17,671 20,745 21,075
Net current assets (liabilities) (940) (940) 199 199 3,209 2,879
Total assets less current liabilities 66,749 66,334 65,752 65,420 65,146 64,480
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than
one year
Finance debt 10,918 10,918 10,021 10,021 10,088 10,088
Other creditors 2,047 2,109 2,501 2,562 2,789 2,866
Provisions for liabilities and charges
— deferred taxation 1,632 1,632 1,183 1,183 1,203 1,203
— other provisions 8,468 8,817 8,337 8,806 8,519 8,992
Net assets 43,684 42,858 43,710 42,848 42,547 41,331
Minority shareholders’ interest 1,072 1,072 1,100 1,100 313 313
BP Amoco shareholders’ interest 42,612 41,786 42,610 41,748 42,234 41,018
Represented by capital and reserves
Called up share capital 4,863 4,863 4,330 4,330 4,382 4,382
Reserves 37,749 36,923 38,280 37,418 37,852 36,636
42,612 41,786 42,610 41,748 42,234 41,018
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5 BP Amoco Results for the Three-Month Period ended 31 March 1999
The following is the full text of BP Amoco’s Stock Exchange Announcement of 11 May 1999

announcing its unaudited results for the first quarter of 1999.

“BP Amoco’s first results show strong performance. Restructuring well advanced.

([ J First quarter 1999 replacement cost profit, before exceptional items, was $761 million, after adjusting for special
charges of $84 million in respect of merger integration costs. This was a competitive result in a difficult environment.

Lower cash costs contributed $200 million to the result.
Contributions from higher volumes in all businesses.

The exceptional charge for the quarter was $860 million after tax, relating primarily to the first tranche of restructuring
following the BP Amoco merger. The major components of the restructuring charge are severance and property
rationalization.

[ J Quarterly dividend 10 cents per share.
BP Amoco p.l.c. today reported its first quarter 1999 results. BP Amoco Group Chief Executive, Sir John Browne, commented:

“This is a good debut result for BP Amoco in a tough environment. The reasons are twofold. First, there are underlying performance
improvements from lower cash costs and higher volumes in all businesses and, second, we are beginning to see the benefits of the
merger coming through to the bottom line.”
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

Operating Results

Replacement cost profit, before exceptional items was $761 million, after adjusting for special charges of $84 million in respect of
merger integration costs. The result was 12% down on the previous quarter and 41% down on a year ago. The decrease reflected a
substantial deterioration in the trading environment. Underlying performance improvements for the quarter were on target and some
benefit from merger integration contributed to the quarter’s result.

Exploration and Production operating profit for the quarter of $904 million, after adjusting for special charges of $86 million, was
down 26% on the equivalent quarter last year when oil and gas prices were significantly higher. Cost savings and higher production
partially offset the impact of lower prices.

In Refining and Marketing, lower costs and higher marketing volumes partially offset the effect of a severe deterioration in the
refining environment and pressure on marketing margins, and limited the fall in operating profit, after adjusting for special charges of
$17 million, to 33% against a year ago.

Chemicals’ operating profit for the quarter, after adjusting for special charges of $11 million, was $217 million. Despite continued
market weakness, this result was 74% higher than the previous quarter owing to volume improvements and a lower level of maintenance
shutdowns.

Interest expense was $304 million compared with $307 million in the previous quarter.

The effective tax rate on replacement cost profit, before exceptional items, was 27% compared with 25% a year ago, when there
was tax relief on stock holding losses.

Capital expenditure and acquisitions was $1.5 billion compared with $2.7 billion a year ago, reflecting the increased focus in the
capital programme. Capital expenditure net of divestments was $1.3 billion.

Net debt at quarter-end was $13.9 billion. The ratio of net debt to net debt plus equity was 24.9%.

Net cash outflow in the quarter was $1.2 billion, similar to a year ago. Lower operating cash flow was offset by reduced net capital
expenditure and tax payments.
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Operating Results

Highlights
First Fourth First
Quarter Quarter Quarter
1999 1998 1998
Replacement cost operating profit $m 1,246 999 1,999
Replacement cost profit before exceptional items $m 677 516 1,279
Profit (loss) after exceptional items
Replacement cost $m (183) 524 1,329
Historical cost $m (176) 13 640
Earnings per ordinary share
RC profit before exceptional items cents 7 5 13
HC profit after exceptional items cents 2 - 7
Earnings per ADS share
RC profit before exceptional items cents 42 30 78
Dividends per ordinary share cents 10.0 10.0 9.5
pence 6.138 6.119 5.75
External Environment
First Fourth First
Quarter Quarter Quarter
1999 1998 1998
BP Amoco average oil realizations* $/bbl 10.5 10.9 13.7
BP Amoco US natural gas realizations $/mcf 1.6 1.9 1.8
Indicative global refining margin $/bbl 0.8 1.3 2.2
Chemicals integrated margin DM/te 638 675 1,085

*Crude oil and natural gas liquids
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

Exploration and production

Replacement cost operating profit was $904 million, after adjusting for special charges of $86 million. This adjusted result was down
26% from a year ago, reflecting lower oil and gas prices. North Sea and ANS oil prices were down by over $3 and nearly $5 a barrel,
respectively. US gas prices have also fallen by some 20 cents per thousand cubic feet. These environmental factors were significantly
offset by lower costs, reflecting the savings instigated last year in response to the low oil price and reductions resulting from the
rationalization decisions made following the merger. Exploration expenditure was lower, following highgrading of the portfolio after the
merger.

Overall production for the quarter was up from a year ago. There was a significant contribution from the Eastern Trough Area Project,
commissioned in July last year, in the central North Sea. The increase more than offset the decline at the mature fields in Alaska.

In March, BP Amoco, in our 50/50 joint venture with the Egyptian General Petroleum Company, signed a new concession agreement
with the Egyptian Government under which we will invest some $450 million over the next six years to maintain production and prolong
the life of the fields in the Gulf of Suez. Also in March, production began at the Ursa field (BP Amoco 23%) in the deep water Gulf of
Mexico. The more focused exploration programme showed good progress in the quarter.

North American natural gas distribution and marketing performed strongly in the quarter. In April, the first cargo of liquefied natural gas
(LNG) was loaded from the Atlantic LNG operation in Trinidad (BP Amoco 34%), for shipment to Spain.

Highlights
1Q 4Q 1Q
1999 1998 1998
Replacement cost operating profit $m 818 442 1,221
Results include:
Exploration expense $m 172 264 220
Key statistics:
Average realizations : North Sea $/bbl 11.1 111 14.4
. Alaskan North Slope (ANS) $/obl 9.7 12.0 14.5
: US natural gas $/mcf 1.6 1.9 1.8
Crude oil and natural gas liquids production
(Net of royalties)
UK mb/d 586 575 483
Rest of Europe mb/d 107 99 116
USA mb/d 814 856 850
Rest of World mb/d 592 583 576
Total crude oil and liquids production mb/d 2,099 2,113 2,025
Natural gas production
UK mmcf/d 1,490 1,351 1,576
Rest of Europe mmcf/d 243 264 212
USA mmcf/d 2,433 2,459 2,428
Rest of World mmcf/d 1,906 1,928 1,912
Total natural gas production mmcf/d 6,072 6,002 6,128
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Refining and Marketing

Replacement cost operating profit was $363 million, after adjusting for special charges of $17 million. This result reflected higher

marketing volumes and lower costs which provided some offset to the deterioration in the environment, with significantly lower refining
margins and pressure on marketing margins versus a year ago, when the result was $539 million.

BP Amoco integration made good progress during the quarter. New integrated business units are now in place and significant

progress has been made towards achieving cost savings. The US Federal Trade Commission mandated sale of downstream assets is on

track.
Highlights
1Q 4Q 1Q
1999 1998 1998
Replacement cost operating profit $m 346 506 539
Indicative global refining margin $/bbl 0.8 1.3 2.2
Refinery throughputs
UK mb/d 273 296 304
Rest of Europe mb/d 563 569 545
USA mb/d 1,276 1,326 1,637
Rest of World mb/d 382 364 378
Total throughput mb/d 2,494 2,555 2,764
Oil sales volumes
Refined products
UK mb/d 240 267 257
Rest of Europe mb/d 785 810 768
USA mb/d 1,458 1,670 1,419
Rest of World mb/d 658 629 587
Total marketing sales mb/d 3,141 3,276 3,031
Trading/supply sales mb/d 1,776 1,498 1,610
Total oil product sales mb/d 4,917 4,774 4,641
Crude oil mb/d 3,947 5,660 4,107
Total oil sales mib/d 8,864 10,434 8,748
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

Chemicals

Chemicals’ replacement cost operating profit for the first quarter of $217 million, after adjusting for special charges of $11 million, was
74% higher than the previous quarter. The improvement in the face of continued market weakness was the result of higher volumes and
a lower level of maintenance shutdowns. Volumes were up 7% versus a year ago, providing some offset to the downturn in the
environment.

During the quarter, BP Amoco authorized the construction of a new 250 ktepa linear alpha olefins plant in Alberta, Canada. This plant
is scheduled to come on stream in mid-2001. Also during the quarter, a 150 ktepa acetic acid plant near Chongging, China opened (BP
Amoco 51%), expansion of catalyst production capabilities at the Green Lake, Texas facility was authorized and construction of a
butanediol plant in Lima, Ohio commenced.

Highlights
1Q 4Q 1Q
1999 1998 1998
Replacement cost operating profit $m 206 125 346
Chemicals production* kte 5,143 4,978 4,817

* Includes BP Amoco share of associated undertakings and other interests in production.

Other Businesses and Corporate

Other Businesses and Corporate comprises Finance, Solar, the BP Amoco Group’s coal asset, interest income and costs relating to
corporate activities worldwide. In April, BP Amoco announced that it had acquired from Enron Corporation the 50% of Solarex it did not

already own.
Highlights
1Q 4Q 1Q
1999 1998 1998
Replacement cost operating loss $m (124) (74) (107)

Exceptional items

Exceptional items include the profit on sale of fixed assets and businesses which, in the first quarter, included the sale of the Verdugt
acid salts business, and the divestment of the BP/Mobil JV’s retail network in Hungary.

The major components of restructuring relate to severance of $722 million and property rationalization of $370 million, both of which
are consequent upon the merger.

Highlights
1Q 4Q 1Q
1999 1998 1998
Profit (loss) on sale of fixed assets and businesses $m 97 190 66
Restructuring costs $m (1,155) - -
Merger transaction costs $m - (198) -
Taxation credit (charge) $m 198 16 (16)
Exceptional items after taxation $m (860) 8 50
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Income Adjusted for Special Items

$ million
1Q 1999 Adjusted Results

Reported Special Adjusted 4Q 1Q

Earnings Items* Results 1998 1998

Exploration and Production 818 86 904 769 1,221

Refining and Marketing 346 17 363 506 539

Chemicals 206 11 217 125 346

Other businesses and corporate (124) - (124) (29) (107)

RC operating profit 1,246 114 1,360 1,371 1,999

Interest expense (304) - (304) (807) (264)

Taxation (254) (30) (284) (180) (437)

MSI (11) - (11) (17) (19

RC profit before exceptional items 677 84 761 867 1,279
Exceptional items before tax (1,058)
Taxation on exceptional items 198
RC profit after exceptional items (183)
Stock holding gains (losses) 7
HC profit (loss) (176)

*The special items refer to non-recurring charges and credits reported in the quarter.

1999 Dividends

BP Amoco p.l.c. today announced a first quarterly dividend for 1999 of 10 cents per ordinary share. Holders of ordinary shares will
receive 6.138 pence per share and holders of American Depositary Receipts (ADRs) $0.60 per ADS share. The dividend is payable on
10 June 1999 to shareholders on the register on 21 May 1999. Participants in the Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP) or the DRIP facility

in the US Direct Access Plan will receive the dividend in the form of shares on 10 June 1999.
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

Outlook

Crude oil prices have risen from the lows experienced in the first quarter, reflecting market reaction to production cut-backs by OPEC.
Prices are likely to remain firm if there is continued compliance with lower production levels.

Natural gas prices are likely to reflect normal seasonal trends.
Downstream, margins are likely to remain under pressure.

In Chemicals, pressure on margins and volumes is expected to continue for some time, caused by a combination of new industry
capacity coming on stream and weaker demand.

BP Amoco Group Chief Executive, Sir John Browne, concluded:

“We are confident that the steps we have taken in response to the weak business environment, together with the benefits of the BP
Amoco merger, will position us for continued competitive performance for the balance of 1999 and beyond. Further restructuring
opportunities, together with the associated performance improvement, are likely to emerge in the future.”

The foregoing discussion, in particular the statements under ‘Outlook’, focuses on certain trends and general market and economic
conditions and outlook on production levels or rates, prices, margins and currency exchange rates and, as such, are forward-looking
statements that involve risk and uncertainty that could cause actual results and developments to differ materially from those expressed or
implied by this discussion. By their nature, trends and outlook on production, price, margin and currency exchange rates are difficult to
forecast with any precision, and there are a number of factors, including the dynamic nature of economic conditions, that could cause
actual results and developments to differ materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Additional
information, including information on factors which may affect BP Amoco’s business, is contained in BP Amoco’s Annual Report and
Accounts for 1998 and in the Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the US Securities and Exchange Commission.
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BP Amoco p.l.c. and subsidiaries

Summarized Group results

$ million
First Fourth First
Quarter Quarter Quarter
1999 1998* 1998*
Exploration and Production 818 442 1,221
Refining and Marketing 346 506 539
Chemicals 206 125 346
Other businesses and corporate (124) (74) (107)
Total replacement cost operating profit 1,246 999 1,999
Profit on sale of fixed assets and businesses (Note 4) 97 190 66
Restructuring costs (Note 4) (1,155) - -
Merger expenses (Note 4) - (198) -
Replacement cost profit before interest and tax 188 991 2,065
Stock holding gains (losses) (Note 6) 7 (511) (689)
Historical cost profit before interest and tax 195 480 1,376
Interest expense (Note 7) 304 307 264
Profit (loss) before taxation (109) 173 1,112
Taxation (Note 8) 56 143 453
Profit (loss) after taxation (165) 30 659
Minority shareholders’ interest 11 17 19
Profit (loss) for the period (176) 13 640
Distribution to shareholders 970 1,326 913
Earnings per ordinary share - cents
Basic (2) - 7
Diluted (2) - 7
Replacement cost results
Historical cost profit (loss) for the period (176) 13 640
Stock holding (gains) losses (7) 511 689
Replacement cost profit (loss) for the period (183) 524 1,329
Exceptional items, net of tax 860 8) (50)
Replacement cost profit before exceptional items 677 516 1,279
Earnings per ordinary share - cents
On replacement cost profit before exceptional items 7 5 13

* Restated — for further information see Note 1.
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

Summarized Group balance sheet

$ million
31 March 31 December
1999 1998*
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 3,310 3,037
Tangible assets 53,947 54,880
Investments 9,742 9,772
66,999 67,689
Current assets
Stocks 3,616 3,642
Debtors 13,513 12,709
Investments 305 470
Cash at bank and in hand 270 405
17,704 17,226
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Finance debt 3,789 2,837
Other creditors 15,633 15,329
Net current liabilities (1,718) (940)
Total assets less current liabilities 65,281 66,749
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year
Finance debt 10,721 10,918
Other creditors 2,532 2,047
Provisions for liabilities and charges 9,918 10,100
Net assets 42,110 43,684
Minority shareholders’ interest 1,038 1,072
BP Amoco shareholders’ interest 41,072 42,612
Movement in BP Amoco shareholders’ interest:
$ million
At 31 December 1998 41,786
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (FRS 12) (Note 1) 826
As restated 42,612
Loss for the period (176)
Distribution to shareholders (@Q70Q)
Currency translation differences (806)
Share dividend plan 311
Employee share schemes 101
At 31 March 1999 41,072

* Restated — for further information see Note 1.
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Summarized Group cash flow statement

$ million

First Quarter

Fourth Quarter

First Quarter

1999 1998 1998
Net cash inflow from operating activities (Note 9) 829 1,974 2,071
Dividends from joint ventures 212 47 74
Dividends from associated undertakings 45 135 38
Servicing of finance and returns on investments
Interest received 32 52 44
Interest paid (281) (203) (256)
Dividends received 7 17 8
Dividends paid to minority shareholders (65) (69) (1)
Net cash outflow from servicing of finance and returns on investments (307) (203) (205)
Taxation
UK corporation tax (72) (204) (54)
Overseas tax 27 (801) (877)
Tax paid (45) (505) (431)
Capital expenditure
Payments for fixed assets (1,515) (2,235) (2,195)
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 87 687 328
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure (1,428) (1,548) (1,867)
Acquisitions and disposals
Investments in associated undertakings (88) (13) (139)
Acquisitions - @81 (205)
Net investment in joint ventures (200) 741 10
Proceeds from the sale of businesses 92 - 77
Net cash (outflow) inflow for acquisitions and disposals (196) 647 (257)
Equity dividends paid (263) (642) (599)
Net cash outflow (1,153) (95) (1,176)
Financing (Note 10) (829) 1 ®811)
Management of liquid resources (161) (140) (5650)
Increase (decrease) in cash (163) 46 185

(1,153) (95) (1,176)
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

Capital expenditure and acquisitions

$ million
First Fourth First
Quarter Quarter Quarter
By business 1999 1998 1998
Exploration and Production
UK 244 340 406
Rest of Europe 8 25 51
USA 362 652 509
Rest of World 320 533 606
934 1,550 1,672
Refining and Marketing
UK 34 76 21
Rest of Europe 80 184 112
USA 154 192 171
Rest of World 48 225 54
316 677 358
Chemicals
UK 60 152 45
Rest of Europe 61 149 267
USA 63 158 90
Rest of World 25 86 55
209 545 457
Other businesses and corporate 25 58 324
1,484 2,830 2,711
By geographical area
UK 344 594 713
Rest of Europe 151 359 468
USA 595 1,027 813
Rest of World 394 850 717
1,484 2,830 2,711
Includes the following amounts for the BP/Mobil European joint venture 107 221 132
US dollar/Sterling exchange rates
Average rates for the period 1.63 1.68 1.65
Period-end rates 1.61 1.67 1.67
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Analysis of replacement cost operating profit

$ million
First Fourth First
Quarter Quarter Quarter
By business 1999 1998 1998
Exploration and Production
UK 323 339 526
Rest of Europe 127 69 118
USA 196 174 489
Rest of World 172 (140) 88
818 442 1,221
Refining and Marketing
UK (22) 51 78
Rest of Europe 100 99 124
USA 113 210 164
Rest of World 155 146 173
346 506 539
Chemicals
UK 42 10 85
Rest of Europe 61 50 73
USA 107 21 206
Rest of World (4) 44 (18)
206 125 346
Other businesses and corporate (124) (74) (107)
1,246 999 1,999
By geographical area
UK 347 330 665
Rest of Europe 282 218 301
USA 288 377 759
Rest of World 329 74 274
1,246 999 1,999
Includes the following amounts for joint ventures and associated undertakings 260 314 355
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

Notes

1 New accounting standard: provisions

The group has adopted Financial Reporting Standard No. 12 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ (FRS12) with effect
from 1 January 1999. This standard changes the criteria for recognising provisions for such costs as decommissioning, environmental
liabilities and restructuring charges. It also requires provisions for liabilities which may not be settled for a number of years to be
discounted to their net present value. The adoption of this standard has been treated as a change in accounting policy. Comparative
figures have been restated to reflect this change in accounting policy.

The principal effects of the adoption of FRS12 are as follows:

(@) Provisions for environmental liabilities are determined on a discounted basis as the effect of the time value of money is material.
Previously these liabilities were on an undiscounted basis.

(b)  Provisions for decommissioning are recognized in full, on a discounted basis, at the commencement of oil and natural gas
production. The group’s prior practice was to accrue the expected cost of decommissioning oil and natural gas production facilities
on a unit-of-production basis over the life of the field. FRS12 also requires the group to capitalize an amount equivalent to the
provision as a tangible fixed asset and to amortize this amount over the life of the field on a unit-of-production basis.

(c) The unwinding of the discount, which represents a period-by-period cost, is included within interest expense.

The adjustments to total replacement cost operating profit for businesses and interest expense are as follows:

$ million

First Quarter Fourth Quarter First Quarter

1999 1998 1998

Exploration and Production 21 22 20

Total replacement cost operating profit 21 22 20

Interest expense (30) (30) (30)

Profit for the period (9) (8) (10)
The adjustments to tangible assets and provisions for liabilities and charges at 31 December 1998 are as follows:

$ million

Tangible assets 415

Other creditors 62

Other provisions 349

BP Amoco shareholders’ interest 826
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Notes (continued)

2 Turnover

$ million
First Fourth First
Quarter Quarter Quarter
1999 1998 1998
By business
Exploration and Production 4,024 4,113 4,596
Refining and Marketing 10,167 11,083 12,501
Chemicals 2,123 2,225 2,586
Other businesses and corporate 30 49 54
16,344 17,470 19,737
Less: sales between businesses 1,702 1,637 1,874
Group excluding JVs 14,642 15,833 17,863
Sales of joint ventures 3,342 3,763 3,653
17,984 19,596 21,516
By geographical area
Group excluding JVs
UK 4,795 5,234 6,222
Rest of Europe 1,190 1,307 1,551
USA 6,630 7,669 8,388
Rest of World 3,454 3,285 3,728
16,069 17,495 19,889
Less: sales between areas 1,427 1,662 2,026
14,642 15,833 17,863
Sales of joint ventures
UK 747 822 884
Rest of Europe 2,989 3,464 3,312
USA 24 10 16
Rest of World 93 101 76
3,853 4,397 4,288
Less: sales between areas 511 634 635
3,342 3,763 3,653
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Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

Notes (continued)

3 Operating profits are after charging

$ million
First Fourth First
Quarter Quarter Quarter
1999 1998 1998

Exploration expense
UK 13 48 15
Rest of Europe 24 14 26
USA 20 82 55
Rest of World 115 120 124
172 264 220

Production taxes (i)

UK petroleum revenue tax 33 2 26
Overseas production taxes 109 93 164
142 95 190

(i) Production taxes are charged against Exploration and Production’s operating profit and are not included in the charge for taxation in Note 8.

4  Analysis of exceptional items

$ million

First Fourth First

Quarter Quarter Quarter

1999 1998 1998

Exploration and Production 9) 45 64
Refining and Marketing 44 (23) 2
Chemicals 62 @47 _
Other businesses and corporate - 215 -
Profit on sale of fixed assets and businesses 97 190 66
Restructuring costs (1,155) - -
Merger expenses - (198) -
Exceptional items before taxation+ (1,058) (8 66
Taxation credit (charge) 198 16 (16)
Exceptional items after taxation (860) 8 50
+Includes the following amounts for joint ventures and associated undertakings 39 (25) -

92



Notes (continued)

5 Replacement cost profit

Replacement cost profits reflect the current cost of supplies. The replacement cost profit for the period is arrived at by excluding from the

historical cost profit stock holding gains and losses.

6 Stock holding gains (losses)

$ million
First Fourth First
Quarter Quarter Quarter
1999 1998 1998
Exploration and Production (11) (7) (16)
Refining and Marketing 45 (4685) (642)
Chemicals (27) (39) (31)
7 (611) (689)
Includes the following amounts for joint ventures and associated undertakings 57 (101) (137)
7  Interest expense
$ million
First Fourth First
Quarter Quarter Quarter
1999 1998 1998
Group interest payable 236 247 241
Capitalized (15) (19) (43)
221 232 198
Joint ventures 16 14 13
Associated undertakings 37 31 23
Unwinding of discount on provisions (Note 1) 30 30 30
304 307 264
8 Charge for taxation
$ million
First Fourth First
Quarter Quarter Quarter
1999 1998 1998
UK 88 78 143
Overseas (32) 65 310
56 143 453
Includes the following amounts for joint ventures and associated undertakings 24 3 51

93



Part II: Information Relating to BP Amoco

Notes (continued)

9  Net cash inflow from operating activities

$ million
First Fourth First
Quarter Quarter Quarter
1999 1998 1998
Reconciliation of historical cost profit before interest and tax to net cash
inflow from operating activities
Historical cost profit before interest and tax 195 480 1,376
Depreciation and amounts provided 1,244 1,493 1,215
Exploration expenditure written off 84 96 79
Share of (profits) losses of joint ventures and associated undertakings+ (356) (188) (218)
Interest and other income (52) (65) (67)
Profit on sale of fixed assets and businesses (58) (215) (66)
Decrease (increase) in working capital and other items (228) 373 (258)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 829 1,974 2,071
+Includes the following amounts of depreciation of the BP/Mobil European JV 78 84 69
10 Analysis of cash flow
$ million
First Fourth First
Quarter Quarter Quarter
1999 1998 1998
Financing
Long-term borrowing (50) (418) (340)
Repayments of long-term borrowing 793 102 199
Short-term borrowing (2,192) 102 (1,100)
Repayments of short-term borrowing 721 280 160
(728) 66 (1,081)
Issue of ordinary share capital (101) 67) (43)
Repurchase of ordinary share capital - - 313
Net cash inflow from financing (829) (1) B811)
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Notes (continued)

11 Analysis of changes in net debt

$ million
First Fourth First
Quarter Quarter Quarter
1999 1998 1998

Opening balance
Finance debt 13,755 13,759 12,877
Less: Cash 405 375 355
Current asset investments 470 612 1,067
Opening net debt 12,880 12,772 11,455

Closing balance

Finance debt 14,510 13,755 13,932
Less: Cash 270 405 544
Current asset investments 305 470 512
Closing net debt 13,935 12,880 12,876
Increase in net debt (1,055) (108) (1,421)
Movement in cash/bank overdrafts (163) 46 185
Increase (decrease) in current asset investments (161) (140) (550)
Net cash (inflow) outflow from financing (excluding share capital) (728) 66 (1,081)
Other movements - (36) 2
Movement in net debt before exchange effects (1,052) (64) (1,444)
Exchange adjustments @A) (44) 23
Increase in net debt (1,055) (108) (1,421)

12 Ordinary shares

Shares in issue at 31 March 1999 = 9,721.4 million. Average number of shares in issue during January-March 1999 = 9,669.0 million

(excluding shares held by the Employee Share Ownership Plans).

13 Statutory accounts

The financial information shown in this publication is unaudited and does not constitute statutory accounts. The 1998 statutory accounts
have been delivered to the UK Registrar of Companies; the report of the auditors on those accounts was unqualified.”
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Part III: Information Relating to ARCO

1  Business Description of ARCO

ARCO began operations in 1866 as the Atlantic Petroleum Storage Company. The company’s present name, Atlantic Richfield Company,
was adopted in 1966 after Richfield Oil Corporation was merged into the company. Sinclair Oil Corporation was merged into ARCO in
1969 and ARCO acquired the Anaconda Company in 1977. ARCO became a Delaware corporation in 1985.

ARCO is a global oil and gas enterprise operating in two segments: exploration and production and refining and marketing.

@) Exploration and production
Exploration and production explores for, develops and produces oil and natural gas worldwide. ARCO has operations in Alaska, the
Gulf of Mexico and the Midcontinent in the United States, and internationally in China, Indonesia, the United Kingdom North Sea,
Algeria and Venezuela. The largest element of ARCO’s operations in the Lower 48 States is held by ARCO’s 82 per cent owned
subsidiary, Vastar.

(b)  Refining and marketing
Refining and marketing is primarily responsible for petroleum refining, marketing and transportation. ARCO’s refining and marketing
operations in the western United States include two west coast refineries, over 1,700 branded retail gasoline outlets in six western
states of the United States and British Columbia in Canada, a marine fleet, and supporting pipelines and terminals.

ARCO'’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 1998 was approximately $10.3 billion and its gross assets as at that date were
approximately $25.2 billion.

In 1997, ARCO announced its decision to increase its focus on its core exploration and production areas through organic growth,
acquisitions and joint ventures, and to divest itself of non-strategic assets, whilst retaining its position in west coast refining and
marketing. In connection with this strategy, ARCO has disposed of the following:

. its 49.9 per cent equity interest in Lyondell Petrochemical Company (September 1997);

. its US coal operations (including its Black Thunder and Coal Creek mines in Wyoming, its West Elk mine in Colorado, and its
65 per cent interest in three mines in Utah) to Arch Coal (June 1998);

. its entire interest in ARCO Chemical Company to its former subsidiary, Lyondell Petrochemical Company (July 1998); and
. its interest in two coal properties in Australia: the Blair Athol mine and the Gordonstone mine (in the first quarter of 1999).

In June 1998, ARCO merged with UTP and in this way acquired properties in the United Kingdom North Sea, Indonesia and Venezuela
as well as interests in three oil concessions in the Badin area of Pakistan, interests in the Alpine field in Alaska and the Geismar
petrochemical plant in Louisiana. In line with its focus on its core oil and gas operations, ARCO sold this petrochemical plant to Williams
Energy Services in March 1999.

In late 1998, ARCO announced that it was undertaking a worldwide cost reduction programme designed to reduce: (1) upstream and
downstream operating and support costs; (2) exploration spending; and (3) costs for the corporate centre and support services.

2 Extraction of Financial Information

The financial information on ARCO set out in paragraph 3 below has been extracted without material adjustment from the audited
financial statements contained in the Annual Reports filed on Form 10-K with the SEC for each of the three years ended 31 December
1998, 1997 and 1996. The financial information has been prepared in accordance with US GAAP. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have
issued independent accountants’ reports on ARCO’s consolidated financial statements for the three years ended 31 December 1998,
1997 and 1996 that are required to be included in ARCO’s annual report on Form 10-K under the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
Each such report was unqualified.

96



3  Financial Information for ARCO

ARCO consolidated statement of income

$ million, except per share amounts

year ended 31 December

1998 19972 19962
Revenues
Sales and other operating revenues 10,303 14,340 14,094
Other revenues 506 417 486
Total revenues 10,809 14,757 14,580
Expenses
Trade purchases 3,959 6,405 6,463
Operating expenses 2,735 2,654 2,268
Selling, general and administrative expenses 772 816 737
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 1,535 1,446 1,322
Impairment of oil and gas properties 1,447 - -
Exploration expenses (including undeveloped leasehold amortisation) 629 508 413
Taxes other than income taxes 506 640 6383
Interest 259 343 582
Restructuring costs 249 67 26
Total expenses 12,091 12,879 12,494
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes, minority interest
and extraordinary item (1,282) 1,878 2,086
Provision (benefit) for taxes on income (651) 504 786
Minority interest in earnings of subsidiaries 24 43 39
Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary item (655) 1,331 1,261
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes of $113 (1998), $74
(1997) and $155 (1996) 179 267 402
Gain on disposition of discontinued operations, net of income taxes of $1,620
(1998) and $342 (1997) 928 291 -
Income before extraordinary item 452 1,889 1,663
Extraordinary loss on extinguishment of debt, net of income taxes of $74 - 118 -
Net income 452 1,771 1,663
Earnings per share:
Continuing operations
Basic (2.05) 414 3.92
Diluted (2.05) 4.07 3.86
Net income
Basic 1.40 5.51 5.17
Diluted 1.40 5.41 5.09
Weighted average equivalent shares outstanding:
Basic 321.0 321.2 321.7
Diluted 321.0 327.4 326.5

2 Restated for discontinued operations with no effect on net income.

97



Part llI: Information Relating to ARCO

ARCO consolidated balance sheet

$ million

at 31 December

1998 19972 19962
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 657 434 1,326
Short-term investments 260 222 784
Accounts receivable 1,002 929 1,270
Inventories 475 456 386
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 317 204 215
Total current assets 2,711 2,245 3,981
Investments and long-term receivables:
Investments accounted for on the equity method 1,235 763 424
Other investments and long-term receivables 831 1,820 1,128
Total investments and long-term receivables 2,066 2,583 1,552
Net property, plant and equipment 18,762 13,560 12,567
Net assets of discontinued operations 339 2,777 3,395
Deferred charges and other assets 1,321 1,260 1,208
Total assets 25,199 22,425 22,703
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Notes payable 2,403 1,456 960
Accounts payable 976 948 1,043
Taxes payable 634 308 389
Long-term debt due within one year 399 164 1,077
Other 1,285 953 894
Total current liabilities 5,697 3,829 4,363
Long-term debt 4,332 3,619 4,745
Deferred income taxes 3,318 2,661 2,385
Dismantlement, restoration and reclamation 1,058 966 909
Other deferred liabilities and credits 2,955 2,430 2,348
Minority interest 259 240 162
Total liabilities 17,619 13,745 14,902
Stockholders’ equity:
Preference stocks 1 1 1
Common stock, $2.50 par value;
shares issued 325,902,559 (1998), 322,719,890 (1997)
shares outstanding 321,315,367 (1998), 320,369,895 (1997) 815 807 4083
Capital in excess of par value of stock 863 640 628
Retained earnings 6,589 7,054 6,592
Treasury stock (344) (170) 1)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (344) 348 178
Total stockholders’ equity 7,580 8,680 7,801
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 25,199 22,425 22,703

2 Restated for discontinued operations.
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Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

$ million
Accumulated
other
Common stock Preference Capital in Treasury stock comprehensive Retained
Shares Dollars stock excess of par Shares Dollars* income (loss) earnings Total
Balance 1 January 1996 160.9 402 1 632 0.1 5) (88) 5,816 6,758
Net income 1,663 1,663
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealised gain on securities 236 236
Foreign currency translation 2) )
Minimum pension liability 32 32
Total comprehensive income 1,929
Common stock dividends (885) (885)
Preference stock dividends 2) @)
Common stock issued 0.2 1 12 13
Treasury stock purchases 0.5 (57) (57)
Treasury stock issued (16) (0.5 61 45
Balance 31 December 1996 161.1 403 1 628 0.1 (1) 178 6,592 7,801
Net income 1,771 1,771
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealised gain on securities 381 381
Foreign currency translation (185) (185)
Minimum pension liability (26) (26)
Total comprehensive income 1,941
Common stock dividends (906) (906)
Preference stock dividends () 2
100% stock dividend 161.3 4083 (403) -
Common stock issued 0.3 1 8 9
Treasury stock purchases 3.5 (256) (256)
Treasury stock issued 4 (1.9 87 91
Other 2 2
Balance 31 December 1997 322.7 807 1 640 2.3 (170) 348 7,054 8,680
Net income 452 452
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealised loss on securities (681) (681)
Foreign currency translation (18) (18)
Minimum pension liability 7 7
Total comprehensive income (loss) (240)
Common stock dividends (915) (915)
Preference stock dividends (2) (2)
Common stock issued 3.2 8 226 234
Treasury stock purchases 3.2 (249) (249)
Treasury stock issued (3) (0.9) 75 72
Balance 31 December 1998 325.9 815 1 863 4.6 (344) (344) 6,589 7,580

* At cost
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Part llI: Information Relating to ARCO

ARCO consolidated statement of cash flows

$ million

Year ended 31 December

1998 19972 19962
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations (655) 1,213 1,261
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 1,535 1,446 1,322
Impairment of oil and gas properties 1,447 - -
Dry hole expense and undeveloped leasehold amortisation 303 235 209
Extraordinary loss on extinguishment of debt - 118 -
Income from equity investments (78) (19) (22)
Dividends from equity investments 37 26 29
Noncash provisions greater (less) than cash payments 184 61 (203)
Minority interest in earnings of subsidiaries 24 43 39
Net gain on asset sales (61) (49) (35)
Deferred income taxes (539) 112 (44
Changes in working capital accounts 307 183 158
Other 58 2 27)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,562 3,371 2,687
Cash flows from investing activities:
Union Texas Petroleum acquisition (2,707) - -
Additions to fixed assets, including dry hole costs (3,551) (2,655) (1,854)
Net proceeds from sale of ARCO Chemical and US coal assets 3,988 - -
Net cash provided (used) by short-term investments (33) 558 753
Investment in/advances to LUKARCO (59) (227) -
Investment in LUKOIL and Zhenhai securities - - (218)
Proceeds from asset sales 207 182 47
Investments and long-term receivables (242) (202) (115)
Other (73) 6 4
Net cash used by investing activities (2,470) (2,338) (1,383)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt (503) (1,558) (832)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 536 254 630
Net cash provided by notes payable 912 521 99
Dividends paid (917) (908) (887)
Treasury stock purchases (32) (256) (57)
Other 50 43 146
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 46 (1,904) (851)
Cash flows from discontinued operations 85 (16) (381)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash - ) 4
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 223 (892) 76
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 434 1,326 1,250
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 657 434 1,326

2 Restated for discontinued operations.

100



Notes to consolidated financial statements

Note 1 - Accounting policies

ARCO'’s accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles, including the “successful efforts” method of accounting
for oil and gas producing activities. Unless otherwise stated, the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements exclude discontinued
operations.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all subsidiaries, ventures and partnerships in which a controlling interest is
held, including Vastar Resources, Inc., of which ARCO owned 82.1 per cent of the outstanding shares at 31 December 1998. ARCO also
consolidates its interests in undivided interest pipeline companies and in oil and gas joint ventures. ARCO uses the equity method of
accounting for companies where its effective ownership is between 20 per cent and 50 per cent and for other ventures and partnerships
in which a controlling interest is not held.

Revenue recognition
Revenues are generally recognised upon the passage of title, net of royalties, if applicable.

Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments, such as time deposits, certificates of deposit and marketable securities other than
equity securities, maturing within three months of purchase. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Oil and gas unproved property costs

Unproved property costs are initially capitalised. Significant unproved properties are not amortised but are periodically assessed for
impairment. Other unproved properties are amortised on a composite basis, considering past success experience and average property
life. In general, costs of properties surrendered or otherwise disposed of are charged to accumulated amortisation. Costs of successful
properties are transferred to developed properties. Exploratory wells that find oil and gas reserves which cannot be classified as proved
within one year of discovery and do not continue to qualify as capitalised costs are charged to expense as dry hole costs.

Fixed assets
Fixed assets are recorded at cost and are written off on either the unit-of-production or straight-line method based on the expected lives
of individual assets or groups of assets.

Upon disposal of assets depreciated on an individual basis, residual cost less salvage value is included in current income. Upon
disposal of assets depreciated on a group basis, unless unusual in nature or amount, residual cost less salvage value is charged against
accumulated depreciation.

Long-lived assets are assessed for possible impairment in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No.
121, whenever events indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If undiscounted future cash flows are less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised to the extent the carrying amount exceeds future discounted cash flows. For proved oil and
gas properties, the assessment is performed on an individual field basis.

Dismantlement, restoration and reclamation costs

The estimated costs, net of salvage value, of dismantling facilities or projects with limited lives or that are required to be dismantled by
contract, regulation or law, and the estimated costs of restoration and reclamation associated with oil and gas operations are accrued
during production and classified as a long-term liability. Such costs are taken into account in determining depreciation, depletion and
amortisation.

Environmental remediation

Environmental remediation costs are accrued as operating expenses based on the estimated timing and extent of remedial actions
required by applicable governmental authorities and the amount of ARCO’s liability in consideration of the liability and financial wherewithal
of other responsible parties. Estimated liabilities are not discounted to present value.
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Note 1 - Accounting policies (continued)

Stock-based Compensation

Employee stock options are accounted for under the intrinsic value method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No.
25.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is based on the average number of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share
includes as outstanding certain options and all convertible or potentially issuable securities as well. All historical earnings per share have
been restated to give effect to the 100 per cent stock dividend effective 13 June 1997.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Derivative instruments

ARCO uses a variety of derivative instruments, both financial and commodity based, to minimise the market risks of commodity price,
interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations. ARCO does not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading purposes and is not a party
to leveraged instruments. All derivative instruments are off-balance sheet instruments; however, net receivable or payable positions related
to derivative instruments are carried on the balance sheet. The nature of the transaction underlying a risk management strategy, primarily
whether or not the instrument qualifies as a hedge, determines which accounting method is used.

The conditions that must be met for a derivative instrument to qualify as a hedge are: (1) the item to be hedged exposes ARCO to
price or interest rate risk; (2) the derivative reduces the risk exposure and is designated as a hedge at the time the derivative contract is
entered into; and (3) at the inception of the hedge and throughout the hedge period there is a high correlation between changes in
market value of the derivative instrument and fair value of the underlying items being hedged.

Deferral accounting is used for the following types of transactions (if the instrument qualifies as a hedge): future crude oil and natural
gas production; fixed-price crude oil and natural gas purchase and sale commitments; US dollar-denominated debt issued by a foreign
subsidiary; debt denominated in a foreign currency; and anticipated foreign currency commitments. Under this method, deferred gains
and losses are included in other assets or accrued liabilities until the designated underlying item is recognised in income. Recognised
gains and losses are recorded in sales and other operating revenues, other revenues or trade purchases depending on the underlying
item associated with the derivative. Instruments typically used in these transactions are crude oil and natural gas swap and price collar
contracts and some foreign currency swap, forward and option contracts.

The accrual method of accounting is used for interest rate swap agreements entered into by the company which convert the interest
rate on fixed-rate debt to a variable rate. Under the accrual method, each net payment or receipt due or owed under the derivative is
recognised in income in the period to which the payment or receipt relates. Amounts to be paid/received under these agreements are
recognised as an adjustment to interest expense. The related amounts payable to/receivable from the counterparties are included in other
accrued liabilities.

The fair value method of accounting is used for any derivative instrument that does not qualify as a hedge. The fair value method,
whereby gains and losses associated with changes in fair value of a derivative instrument are recognised currently in income or in
accumulated other comprehensive income, is used for the following derivative instruments: foreign currency forward and option contracts
associated with anticipated future cash flows related to overseas operations, and foreign currency swap contracts associated with
foreign-denominated intercompany debt with maturities exceeding one year. Presently, changes in fair value of all transactions accounted
for under this method are recognised currently in income and reported as other revenues.

Under all methods of accounting, the cash flows related to any recognised gains or losses associated with derivative instruments are
reported as cash flows from operations.
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Note 1 - Accounting policies (continued)
If a derivative instrument designated as a hedge is terminated prior to expected maturity, gains or losses are deferred and included in
income when the underlying hedged item is recognised in income.

When the designated item associated with a derivative instrument matures, is sold, extinguished or terminated, gains or losses are
recognised as part of the gain or loss on sale or settlement of the underlying item. When a derivative instrument is associated with an
anticipated transaction that is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss on the derivative is recognised immediately in income.

Reclassifications
Certain previously reported amounts have been restated to conform to classifications adopted in 1998 or to reflect ARCO’s chemical and
coal operations as discontinued.

Note 2 - Segment information

Segment information has been prepared in accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information.” ARCO has two reportable segments: exploration and production (“E&P”) and refining and marketing (“R&M”). The segments
were determined based upon types of products produced/sold by each segment. Segment performance is evaluated based upon net
income, excluding interest expense.

The E&P segment is an aggregation of several business units engaged in one or more of the following: the worldwide exploration,
development and production of petroleum liquids (crude oil, condensate and natural gas liquids) and natural gas; the purchase and sale
of petroleum liquids and natural gas; and the transportation via pipeline of petroleum liquids within the State of Alaska. ARCO’s
investments in the LUKARCO joint venture and LUKOIL common stock are included in the E&P segment as well.

The R&M segment comprises the refining of crude oil, primarily from the North Slope of Alaska; the marketing of petroleum products,
primarily in the west coast region of the US; and the transportation of petroleum liquids and petroleum products via ocean-going tankers,
primarily between Alaska and the west coast. ARCO’s equity investment in Zhenhai Refining and Chemical Company is also included in
the R&M segment.

Revenue from other operating segments is attributable to the pipeline transportation and storage of petroleum liquids and petroleum
products in the Lower 48 States.

Intersegment sales were made at prices approximating current market value.
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Note 2 - Segment information (continued)

Segment information

$ million
1998
Exploration & Refining &
production marketing All other Unallocated items Totals
Sales and other operating revenue:
us 4,372 5,457 156 2 9,987
International 1,662 27 - 14 1,603
Intersegment revenues (1,179) (14) (80) (14) (1,287)
Total 4,755 5,470 76 2 10,303
Income from equity affiliates 25 19 34 - 78
Interest revenue 18 5 - 96 119
Interest expense - - - 259 259
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 1,239 252 18 26 1,535
Income tax expense (benefit) (563) 145 65 (298) (651)
Net income (loss) (616) 281 111 6762 452
Investment in equity affiliates 661 219 344 11 1,235
Property, plant and equipment (net):
us 7,420 2,939 432 132 10,923
International 7,824 15 - - 7,839
Additions to fixed assets 3,020 488 38 5 3,551
Segment assets 18,203 3,826 1,119 2,051 25,199
1997
Sales and other operating revenue:
us 7,918 6,853 177 3 14,951
International 1,630 3 - 15 1,648
Intersegment revenues (2,164) Q) (77) (15) (2,259)
Total 7,384 6,853 100 3 14,340
Income from equity affiliates 5 8 6 - 19
Interest revenue 12 3 - 99 114
Interest expense - - - 343 343
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 1,184 226 15 21 1,446
Income tax expense (benefit) 653 161 47 (857) 504
Net income 1,347 325 82 172 1,771
Investment in equity affiliates 336 98 329 - 763
Property, plant and equipment (net):
us 6,734 2,714 470 146 10,064
International 3,496 - - - 3,496
Additions to fixed assets 2,276 330 46 3 2,655
Segment assets 13,269 3,564 1,149 4,443 22,425
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Note 2 - Segment Information (continued)

$ million
1996
Exploration & Refining &
production marketing All other Unallocated items Totals
Sales and other operating revenue:

us 7,968 6,935 202 - 15,105
International 1,387 5 - 21 1,413
Intersegment revenues (2,303) 8) 92) (21) (2,424)
Total 7,052 6,932 110 - 14,094
Income from equity affiliates 13 - 9 - 22
Interest revenue 3 1 - 163 167
Interest expense - - - 582 582
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 1,061 227 18 16 1,322
Income tax expense (benefit) 767 150 52 (183) 786
Net income (loss) 1,329 287 87 (40)® 1,663
Investment in equity affiliates 94 - 330 - 424

Property, plant and equipment (net):
us 6,434 2,621 463 183 9,701
International 2,866 - - - 2,866
Additions to fixed assets 1,684 121 41 8 1,854
Segment assets 11,838 3,380 1,141 6,344 22,703

2 Includes: income from discontinued operations of $179 million, $267 million and $402 million in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively; gain on
disposition of discontinued operations of $928 million and $291 million in 1998 and 1997, respectively; and extraordinary loss of $118 million in
1997.

P Includes assets of discontinued operations of $339 million (1998), $2,777 million (1997) and $3,395 million (1996).

Note 3 - Acquisition of Union Texas Petroleum Holdings, Inc.

In June 1998, ARCO completed its tender offer for all outstanding common shares of UTP for approximately $2.5 billion, or $29 per share
in cash. ARCO also purchased in a tender offer 1,649,500 shares of UTP’s 7.14 per cent Series A Cumulative Preferred Stock for
approximately $200 million, or $122 per share in cash. UTP was a US-based, non-integrated oil and gas company with substantially all of
its oil and gas producing operations conducted outside the US in the United Kingdom sector of the North Sea, Indonesia and Pakistan.

The acquisition is being accounted for as a purchase. The results of operations of UTP are included in the consolidated financial
statements of ARCO as of 1 July 1998. The cost of the acquisition was allocated on the basis of the estimated fair value of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed and there are no contingencies or other matters that could affect the allocation of the purchase cost. The
liabilities assumed included employee termination costs of $78 million and other costs, such as lease and other contract cancellation
costs, totalling $18 million associated with the merging of UTP’s businesses into ARCO’s operations. At 31 December 1998, ARCO had
terminated 279 of the 357 employees to be terminated and had paid out $52 million against the liability for severance payments. The
remaining cash costs for severance, office lease and software maintenance contract buyouts totalling $37 million are expected to be paid
out by the end of 2000. In addition, there were $7 million of non-cash charges. The group of employees terminated included US citizens
employed in exploration and production operations and corporate headquarters personnel.
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Note 3 - Acquisition of Union Texas Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (continued)

The following unaudited pro forma summary presents information as if UTP had been acquired as of the beginning of ARCO’s fiscal years
1998 and 1997. The pro forma amounts include certain adjustments, primarily to recognise depreciation, depletion and amortisation
based on the allocated purchase price of UTP assets, and do not reflect any benefits from economies which might be achieved from
combining operations. The pro forma information does not necessarily reflect the actual results that would have occurred nor is it
necessarily indicative of future results of operations of the combined companies:

$ million, except

per share

amounts

1998 1997

Sales and other operating revenues 10,570 15,061

Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary item (702) 1,372

Income from and gains on discontinued operations 1,107 590

Extraordinary loss - (118)

Net income 405 1,844
Earnings (loss) per share

Basic

Continuing operations (2.19) 4.27

Discontinued operations 3.45 1.84

Extraordinary loss - (:37)

Net income 1.26 5.74

Diluted

Continuing operations (2.19) 419

Discontinued operations 3.45 1.80

Extraordinary loss - (-36)

Net income 1.26 5.63

Note 4 - Discontinued operations

Coal

In June 1998, ARCO disposed of its US coal operations in a transaction with Arch Coal. Operations disposed of included the Black
Thunder and Coal Creek mines in Wyoming, the West Elk mine in Colorado, and ARCQO’s 65 per cent interest in three mines in Utah. The
Colorado and Utah mines were sold outright. ARCO contributed its Wyoming coal operations and Arch Coal transferred various of its coal
operations into a new joint venture that is 99 per cent owned by Arch Coal and 1 per cent owned by ARCO.

As of February 1999, ARCO has disposed of its interests in two Australian coal mines. ARCO disposed of its 80 per cent interest in the
Gordonstone coal mine and its 31.4 per cent interest in the Blair Athol Joint Venture. After those dispositions the carrying value of the
remaining Australian assets was $56 million at 12 February 1999. At 31 December 1998, the carrying value of the Australian coal assets
was $197 million and was included in net assets of discontinued operations on the balance sheet. Beginning in January 1999, ARCO
suspended depreciation on the Australian coal assets (1998 annual depreciation was $23 million). ARCO has recorded a $92 million
provision for the estimated loss on the disposal of the US and Australian coal assets. A gain of approximately $200 million on the sale of
US coal operations has been deferred (by reducing the net assets of discontinued operations) until the disposition of the remaining
Australian coal assets is completed in 1999 and the actual loss can be determined.
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Note 4 - Discontinued operations (continued)

Chemical

In July 1998, ARCO tendered its entire interest of 80 million shares of ARCO Chemical Company common stock to Lyondell
Petrochemical Company (“Lyondell”) for $57.75 per share, or total cash proceeds of approximately $4.6 billion. After deferral of $313
million of the pretax gain, ARCO recorded an after-tax gain of approximately $1.1 billion in the third quarter of 1998 from the sale of the
shares. The deferral represents the estimated discounted present value of the difference between the above-market MTBE contract
between ARCO and ARCO Chemical and the spot market price for MTBE over the remaining term. The deferral will be amortised over
the remaining term of the contract, ending in 2002, on a straight-line basis.

As part of the acquisition of UTP, ARCO determined it would sell UTP’s petrochemical business. ARCO completed the sale in March
1999. At 31 December 1998, the carrying value of these assets was $142 million and was included in the net assets of discontinued
operations on the balance sheet. If depreciation had not been suspended for the last six months of 1998, the petrochemical business
would have had a loss of $5 million. ARCO has recorded a $33 million after-tax provision for loss on the sale of the assets.

In September 1997, ARCO disposed of its 49.9 per cent equity interest in Lyondell. ARCO recorded an after-tax gain of $291 million
on the disposition.

Revenues and net income from discontinued operations were as follows:

$ million
1998 1997
Revenues:

ARCO Chemical 1,990 3,726
Coal operations 338 637
UTP petrochemical 58 -

Net income:
ARCO Chemical 170 92
Coal operations 9 56
Lyondell - 119
UTP petrochemical - -
179 267

Note 5 - Accounting changes

Effective 1 January 1997, ARCO adopted Statement of Position (SOP) 96-1, “Environmental Remediation Liabilities.” The provisions
include standards affecting the measurement, recognition and disclosure of environmental remediation liabilities. The effect of initially
applying the provisions of SOP 96-1 in 1997 was a decrease in net income of $30 million ($0.09 per share).

Note 6 - Extraordinary item
During 1997, ARCO retired debt with a face value of $756 million prior to maturity. The debt repurchases resulted in an extraordinary
charge of $118 million against net income, after tax of $74 million.
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Note 7 - Restructuring costs

During 1998, ARCO recorded pretax charges of $229 million for the costs of eliminating over 1,200 positions related to the downsizing of
continuing operations, primarily E&P technical support, international E&P support operations and the corporate headquarters. All positions
eliminated were specifically identified prior to 31 December 1998; all terminations are scheduled to take place prior to 31 December
1999.

The following table summarises the liabilities related to the 1998 restructuring programme, including $11 million transferred from the
1997 programme discussed below:

$ million

Short-term Funded long-term Unfunded long-
Terminations benefits® benefits® term benefits® Total
1,212 93 90 56 239

2 Severance and ancillary relocation and outplacement benefits.
P Net increase in pension benefits to be paid from assets of qualified pension plans.
¢ Net increase in non-qualified pension benefits and other post retirement benefits to be paid from ARCO funds.

Long-term benefits will be paid after retirement over the remaining lives of the recipients or, for pension benefits, in a lump sum upon
election. Long-term benefits have been accrued in accordance with SFAS No. 88. Severance and ancillary costs will be paid over the
next two years. No significant amounts have been paid as of 31 December 1998.

In addition, ARCO recorded a pretax charge of $20 million related to office space and facilities that will be vacated with no future
economic benefit. Cash payments will be made through 2005, the remaining term of the lease.

During 1997, ARCO recorded pretax charges of $67 million for personnel reductions in refining and marketing operations and
corporate headquarters. As of 31 December 1998, $45 million was paid and $11 million was transferred to reserves for the 1998
programme, with a balance of $11 million to be paid within the next year. The transfer was necessary because when the 1998
programme was announced, certain employees who had not yet terminated under the 1997 programme became eligible for 1998
programme benefits. Approximately 480 employees were originally planned to terminate under the 1997 programme. Approximately 400
people terminated under the 1997 programme, with approximately 80 transferred to the 1998 programme.

The 1996 charge of $26 million represents the amount by which the costs of restructuring actions, originally estimated and recorded in
1994, were underaccrued, primarily because of additional terminations. Approximately 2,200 employees were originally planned to be
terminated under the 1994 plan; approximately 2,450 were actually terminated.

Note 8 - Inventories

Inventories are recorded when purchased, produced or manufactured and are stated at the lower of cost or market. In 1998,
approximately 80 per cent of inventories, excluding materials and supplies, were determined by the LIFO method. Materials and supplies
and other non-LIFO inventories are determined predominantly on an average cost basis.

Total inventories at 31 December comprised the following:

$ million

1998 1997

Crude oil and petroleum products 220 247
Other products 24 24
Materials and supplies 231 185
Total 475 456

The excess of the current cost of inventories over book value was approximately $193 million and $240 million at 31 December 1998
and 1997, respectively.

108



Note 9 - Investments

At 31 December 1998 and 1997, investments in debt securities were primarily composed of US Treasury securities and corporate debt
instruments. Maturities generally ranged from four days to ten years. These investments are classified as short or long term depending on
maturity. ARCO’s investments in LUKOIL common stock and Zhenhai Refining and Chemical Company convertible bonds were included
in other investments and long-term receivables. At 31 December 1998 and 1997, all investments were classified as available-for-sale and
were reported at fair value, with unrealised holding gains and losses, net of tax, reported in accumulated other comprehensive income.

The following summarises investments at 31 December:

$ million
1998 1997
Aggregate fair value 926 1,897
Gross unrealised holding losses 135 1
Gross unrealised holding gains (13) (985)
Amortised cost 1,048 913
Investment activity for the years ended 31 December was as follows:
$ million
1998 1997
Gross purchases 15,118 6,902
Gross sales 463 1,753
Gross maturities 14,520 6,111
Gross realised gains and losses were insignificant and were determined by the specific identification method.
Note 10 - Fixed assets
Property, plant and equipment at 31 December was as follows:
$ million
1998 1997
Gross Net Gross Net
Exploration & production 32,072 15,244 25,145 10,230
Refining & marketing 5,450 2,954 5,017 2,714
Other operations 649 432 731 470
Unallocated 1,151 132 332 146
Total 39,322 18,762 31,225 13,560

Expenses for maintenance and repairs for 1998, 1997 and 1996 were $420 million, $334 million and $338 million, respectively.

In the fourth quarter of 1998, after a year-long decline in crude oil prices, ARCO determined that part of the il price decline that had
taken place was permanent. Accordingly, ARCO revised its official crude oil price forecast used for economic decision making during the
fourth quarter of 1998. This forecast is based on a West Texas Intermediate (“WTI”) benchmark price of $15/bbl in 1999, $16/bbl in
2000, and $17/bbl in 2001, with 2 per cent escalation thereafter. While current crude oil prices are below $15/bbl, many oil industry
expert forecasts consider crude oil prices in the $12/bbl range to be unusually low and inappropriate for economic decision making.
ARCO used a benchmark price of $12.05/bbl in preparing its 31 December 1998 Supplemental Oil & Gas Information.
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Note 10 - Fixed assets (continued)

In accordance with SFAS 121, ARCO performed an impairment review to determine whether any of ARCO’s oil and gas properties
were impaired based on the new crude oil price forecast. Net undiscounted cash flows before tax were calculated and compared to the
net book value on a field-by-field basis. This included cash flows from proved developed, proved undeveloped and potential oil and gas
reserves, which included both producing and non-producing reserves. The potential reserves were calculated on a risk-weighted basis to
include the uncertainties associated with field size, reservoir performance, technological development and commercial risk. Where
appropriate, contracted prices were used but did not materially impact the result. For those fields where the net book value exceeded the
net undiscounted cash flows before tax, the discounted future cash flows before tax were calculated using a 10 per cent discount rate
factor. This resulted in a pre-tax impairment charge of $1.4 billion. ARCO tested a downside case using WTI benchmark crude oil prices
of $1/bbl lower than each year of its official forecast. ARCO believes that prices below $14/bbl are not sustainable and like most
commodities will cycle around their historical midpoints. The impaired properties included former UTP properties in Pakistan, Venezuela
and the UK North Sea, as well as other ARCO properties in California, the UK North Sea, North Africa and the Middle East.

Note 11 - Short-term borrowings and bank credit facilities

Notes payable consist primarily of ARCO’s commercial paper issued to a variety of financial investors and institutions and any amounts
outstanding under ARCO credit facilities. The weighted average interest rate on notes payable outstanding at 31 December 1998 and
1997, was 5.6 per cent and 6.7 per cent, respectively.

In 1998 ARCO and certain wholly owned subsidiaries had committed bank credit facilities of approximately $3.1 billion. At 31 December
1998, there were $62 million of borrowings under these committed facilities.

At 31 December 1998, ARCO had unused letters of credit totalling approximately $418 million.
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Note 12 - Long-term debt
Long-term debt at 31 December comprised the following:

$ million
1998 1997
8%%, due in 2022 245 245
8%%, due in 2012 178 178
8%%, due in 2032 159 159
9%, due in 2021 209 209
9%, due in 2031 97 97
9%%, due in 2011 253 253
9%%, due in 2031 155 155
9%%, due in 2016 181 181
10%%, due in 2005 410 410
Series A Medium — Term Notes,? 8.48%? 110 182
Series B Medium — Term Notes,® 8.34%2 250 250
ARCO Tresop Notes, 5.06% 88 163
Variable rate, due in 2031, 3.28%° 265 265
Variable rate, due in 2032, 4.96%° 108 108
Vastar:
Commercial paper, 6.0%2 219 373
LIBOR Revolving Credit Agreement, 5.6%% 320 -
6% Putable/Callable Notes, due in 2010 100 -
6.39%, due in 2008 50 -
6.95%, due in 2006 75 75
6.96%, due in 2007 75 75
8.75%, due in 2005 149 149
Union Texas Petroleum:
6.66%, due in 2002 100 -
7.34%, due in 1999 179 -
7.40%, due in 2038 150 -
8%%, due in 1999 100 -
8%%, due in 2005 125 -
8%%, due in 2007 75 -
Other 306 256
Total, including debt due within one year 4,731 3,783
Less debt due within one year 399 164
Long-term debt 4,332 3,619

2 Weighted average of interest rates at 31 December 1998.
P Maturities vary through 2011,
¢ Maturities vary through 2012.
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Note 12 - Long-term debt (continued)
Maturities for the five years subsequent to 31 December 1998 are as follows:

$ million
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Maturities 399 12 76 117 555

In 1996, Vastar established a $1.1 billion Commercial Paper Programme for issuance of unsecured notes with maturities of up to 270
days from the date of issue. Vastar has agreed to maintain credit lines sufficient to support payment on the notes.

In 1996, Vastar consolidated existing unsecured revolving credit agreements into a single facility. As of 31 December 1998,
commitments under this facility, as amended to date, totalled $1.1 billion. The commitment expires 31 March 2002. During 1998, $320
million of debt was outstanding under this facility. The credit facility is not guaranteed by ARCO. The agreement contains covenants, the
most restrictive of which require Vastar to maintain certain financial ratios and minimum levels of tangible stockholders’ equity and restrict
encumbrance of assets.

In April 1998, Vastar issued $100 million of 6 per cent Putable/Callable Notes due 20 April 2010, Putable/Callable 20 April 2000. In
1998 Vastar also entered into an interest rate swap covering the Putable/Callable Notes, which effectively changed the 6 per cent fixed
rate to a floating rate. The effective interest rate paid on these notes in 1998 was 5.6 per cent. At 31 December 1997, Vastar had no
outstanding interest rate swaps. The financial impact of swaps in 1998 and 1997 was immaterial.

At 31 December 1998, approximately $247 million of long-term debt was denominated in foreign currencies. At 31 December 1997, no
long-term debt was denominated in foreign currencies.

No material amounts of long-term debt are collateralised by ARCO assets.

Note 13 - Interest
Interest for the years ended 31 December comprised the following:

$ million

1998 1997 1996

Long-term debt 322 417 500
Short-term debt 158 86 82
Other® (115) (122) 19
365 381 601

Capitalised interest (106) (38) (19
Total interest expense 259 343 582
Total interest paid in cash 248 390 586
Interest income 119 114 167

2 Includes $153 of interest on a tax refund in 1998 and $145 reversal from partial tax audit settlements in 1997.
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Note 14 - Financial instruments and fair value
ARCO does not hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes.

ARCO enters into various types of foreign currency forward, option and swap contracts. Foreign currency forward and option contracts
are used to minimise foreign exchange exposures associated with US dollar-denominated debt issued by a foreign subsidiary, anticipated
foreign currency commitments and anticipated future cash flows related to overseas operations. Foreign currency swap contracts are
used to minimise foreign exchange exposures related to foreign-denominated intercompany debt with maturities exceeding one year.

At 31 December 1998, the notional amounts of foreign currency contracts outstanding (principally involving European currencies) were
approximately $528 million, with various maturities in 1999. At 31 December 1997, the notional amounts of foreign currency contracts
outstanding were approximately $613 million.

Gains and losses on foreign currency forward contracts covering anticipatory cash flows are recognised currently as other income or
expense. Gains and losses on foreign currency swaps associated with intercompany debt are recognised currently in income and offset
foreign exchange gains and losses on the underlying intercompany loans. Gains and losses on other foreign currency contracts are
generally deferred and offset the transactions being hedged.

ARCO also uses various hedging arrangements to manage the exposure to price risk for future natural gas and crude oil transactions.
Gains and losses resulting from these transactions are deferred and included in other assets or accrued liabilities until realised in sales
and other operating revenues as the physical production required by the contracts is delivered. During 1998, Vastar entered into a series
of natural gas price collar agreements which at 31 December 1998, covered an average of 200 million cubic feet per day of its 1999
natural gas production for the period January 1999 through September 1999. These agreements will serve as hedges which secure
weighted average prices on these volumes between $2.30 and $2.91 per thousand cubic feet for 1999 (on a Henry Hub basis).

At 31 December, the carrying value and estimated fair value of ARCO’s financial instruments are shown as assets (liabilities) in the
table below:

$ million
1998 1997
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Non-derivatives:
Short-term investments 260 260 222 222
Equity method investments 1,235 1,176 1,194 1,204
Other investments and long-term receivables 831 831 1,872 1,872
Notes payable (2,403) (2,403) (1,599) (1,599)
Long-term debt, including current maturities (4,731) (5,466) (4,602) (5,400)
Derivatives:
Foreign currency forwards 1) (1) @] (1)
Foreign currency options - - 4
Foreign currency swaps - - 3 2
Qil and gas options and swaps 40 47 (7) (7)
Qil and gas futures (56) (59) - -
Commodity futures (12) 12) 2 2
Commodity options 2) (2) - -

1997 amounts include derivative and non-derivative financial instruments for discontinued operations. Carrying amounts for those
instruments were included with net assets of discontinued operations on the restated balance sheet.
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Note 14 - Financial instruments and fair value (continued)
All derivative instruments are off-balance-sheet instruments; however, net receivable or payable positions related to derivative
instruments are carried on the balance sheet.

Short-term investments are carried at fair value. The fair value of notes payable approximates carrying value due to its short-term
maturities. Equity method investments and other investments and long-term receivables were valued at quoted market prices if available.
For unquoted investment securities, the reported fair value was estimated on the basis of financial and other information. The fair value of
ARCO’s long-term debt was estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on the current rates offered
to ARCO for debt of the same remaining maturities. The fair value of foreign currency contracts and interest rate swaps represented the
amount to be exchanged if the existing contracts had been settled at year end and was estimated based on market quotes.

ARCO is exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties. ARCO does not generally require collateral or
other security to support these financial instruments. The counterparties to these instruments are major institutions deemed creditworthy
by ARCO; ARCO does not anticipate nonperformance by the counterparties.

Note 15 — Other commitments and contingencies
ARCO has commitments, including those related to the acquisition, construction and development of facilities, all made in the normal
course of business.

Following the March 1989 Exxon Valdez oil spill in Prince William Sound, numerous federal, state and private plaintiff lawsuits were
brought against Exxon, Alyeska Pipeline Service Company (“Alyeska”) and Alyeska’s owner companies, including ARCO, which owns
approximately 22 per cent. While all of the federal, state and private plaintiff lawsuits have been settled, certain issues relating to liability
for the spill remain unresolved between Exxon and Alyeska (including its owner companies).

ARCO, together with other former producers of lead paint, has been named in a number of lawsuits, including purported class actions,
seeking compensatory damages, abatement of the housing units, and compensation for medical problems arising out of the presence of
lead-based paint in certain housing units. ARCO is unable to predict the scope or amount of any such liability.

The State of Montana, along with the United States and the Salish and Kootenai Tribes (the “Tribes”), have been seeking recovery
from ARCO for alleged injuries to natural resources resulting from mining and mineral processing businesses formerly operated by
Anaconda. By November 1998 two consent decrees had been lodged with the court. ARCO has agreed to pay $135 million for
settlement of $561 million of the State’s $767 million natural resource damage claim relating to the Clark Fork River Basin, $86 million for
clean-up and related liabilities at Silver Bow Creek, and $20 million to resolve claims by the Tribes and the United States.

ARCO is subject to liability pursuant to various federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations that require ARCO to do
some or all of the following:

. Remove or mitigate the effects on the environment at various sites from the disposal or release of certain substances;
. Perform restoration work at such sites; and
. Pay damages for loss of use and non-use values.

Environmental liabilities include personal injury claims allegedly caused by exposure to toxic materials manufactured or used by ARCO.

ARCO is currently involved in assessments and cleanups under these laws at federal and state-managed sites as well as other clean-
up sites including service stations, refineries, terminals, third-party landfills, former nuclear processing facilities, sites associated with
discontinued operations and sites previously owned by ARCO or predecessors. This comprises 125 sites for which ARCO has been
named a potentially responsible party (“PRP”), along with other sites for which no claims have been asserted. The number of PRP sites in
and of itself is not a relevant measure of liability because the nature and extent of environmental concerns varies by site and ARCO’s
responsibility varies from sole responsibility to very little responsibility.
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Note 15 - Other commitments and contingencies (continued)
ARCO may in the future be involved in additional assessments and cleanups. Future costs depend on unknown factors such as:

. Nature and extent of contamination;

. Timing, extent and method of remedial action;
. ARCQ’s proportional share of costs; and

. Financial condition of other responsible parties.

The environmental remediation accrual is updated annually, at a minimum, and at 31 December 1998 was $870 million. As these costs
become more clearly defined, they may require future charges against earnings. Applying Monte Carlo analysis to estimated site
maximums on a portfolio basis, ARCO estimates that future costs could exceed the amount accrued by as much as $500 million.

Approximately 54 per cent of the reserve related to sites associated with ARCO’s discontinued operations, primarily mining activities in
the states of Montana, Utah and New Mexico. Another significant component related to currently and formerly owned chemical, nuclear
processing, and refining and marketing facilities, and other sites which received wastes from these facilities. The remainder related to
other sites with reserves ranging from $1 million to $10 million per site. No one site represents more than 10 per cent of the total accrual.
Substantially all amounts accrued are expected to be paid out over the next five to six years.

Claims for recovery of remediation costs already incurred and to be incurred in the future have been filed against various third parties.
Many of these claims have been resolved. ARCO has neither recorded any asset nor reduced any liability in connection with unresolved
claims.

Although any ultimate liability arising from any of the matters described herein could result in significant expenses or judgements that, if
aggregated and assumed to occur within a single fiscal year, would be material to ARCO’s results of operations, the likelihood of such
occurrence is considered remote. On the basis of management’s best assessment of the ultimate amount and timing of these events,
such expenses or judgements are not expected to have a material adverse effect on ARCO’s consolidated financial statements.

The operations and consolidated financial position of ARCO continue to be affected by domestic and foreign political developments as
well as legislation, regulations and litigation pertaining to restrictions on production, imports and exports, tax increases, environmental
regulations, cancellation of contract rights and expropriation of property. Both the likelihood of such occurrences and their overall effect
on ARCO vary greatly and are not predictable.

These uncertainties are part of a number of items that ARCO has taken and will continue to take into account in periodically
establishing reserves.



Part llI: Information Relating to ARCO

Note 16 - Taxes
The income tax provision for the years ended 31 December comprised the following:

$ million
1998 1997 1996
Federal:
Current (189) 241 582
Deferred (7) 143 (26)
(196) 384 556
Foreign:
Current 91 108 140
Deferred (486) (45) (15)
(395) 63 125
State:
Current (14) 43 108
Deferred (46) 14 ©)
(60) 57 105
Provision (benefit) for taxes on income (651) 504 786
Total income taxes paid in cash 1,417° 7812 752
2 Includes cash taxes paid relating to the sale of discontinued operations.
Major components of the net deferred tax liability at 31 December were as follows:
$ million
1998 1997
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation (4,600) (3,250)
Other (389) (743)
Total deferred tax liabilities (4,989) (3,993)
Dismantlement and environmental 664 587
Post retirement benefits 293 295
Foreign excess tax basis/loss carryforwards 107 117
Other 607 333
Total deferred tax assets 1,671 1,332
Valuation allowance - -
Net deferred income tax liability (3,318) (2,661)

The valuation allowance was $7 million at 31 December 1996.

A deferred tax benefit of $426 million was recorded in 1998 versus a $242 million deferred tax expense in 1997 related to unrealised

investment losses and gains included in accumulated other comprehensive income.
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Note 16 — Taxes (continued)
Taxes other than income taxes for the years ended 31 December comprised the following:

$ million

1998 1997 1996

Property 143 146 144
Production/severance 227 359 401
Other 136 135 138
Total 506 640 683

ARCO has foreign loss carryforwards of $32 million which begin expiring in 2001.

The domestic and foreign components of income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest, and a
reconciliation of income tax expense with tax at the effective federal statutory rate for the years ended 31 December were as follows:

$ million
1998 1997 1996
% Pretax % Pretax % Pretax
Amount income Amount income Amount income
Income (loss) before income taxes:

Domestic 96 7.5 1,647 87.7 1,896 90.9
Foreign (1,378) (107.5) 231 12.3 190 9.1
Total (1,282) 100.0 1,878 100.0 2,086 100.0
Tax at 35% (449) (35.0) 657 35.0 730 35.0

Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting from:
Taxes on foreign income in excess of statutory rate 32 25 21 1.1 84 4.0
Affiliate stock transactions (51) (4.0) (109) (5.8) - -
State income taxes (net of federal effect) (39) (3.0) 37 2.0 68 3.3
Tax credits (123) (9.6) (1086) (5.6) (95) 4.6)
Other (21) (1.7) 4 01 1 -
Provision for taxes on income (651) (50.8) 504 26.8 786 37.7




Part llI: Information Relating to ARCO

Note 17 - Post-retirement benefit plans

ARCO and its subsidiaries sponsor numerous post retirement benefit plans. Defined benefit pension plans (“Pension”) provide to

substantially all employees pension benefits based on years of service and the employee’s compensation, primarily during the last three

years of service. Defined post retirement benefit plans (“Other”) provide health care and life insurance benefits to substantially all

employees who retire with ARCO having rendered the required years of service, and to their spouses and eligible dependants. ARCO
pays for the cost of a benchmark health maintenance organisation with employees responsible for the differential cost, if any, of their
selected option. Life insurance benefits are partially paid for by retiree contributions, which vary based upon coverage chosen by the

retiree. ARCO has the right to terminate or modify the plans at any time.

$ million
1998 1997
Pension Other Pension Other
Plan Obligations
Benefit obligation at 1 January (2,498) (588) (2,495) 612)
Service cost (53) (7) (53) (7)
Interest cost (173) (39) (174) (40)
Actuarial (loss) gain (96) (4) (18) 17
Benefits paid 311 51 242 54
Special termination benefits (128) (19) - -
Acquisition (185) (24) - -
Divestiture - 14 - -
Benefit obligation at 31 December (2,822) (616) (2,498) (588)
Plan Assets
Fair value of assets at 1 January 2,710 - 2,543 -
Actual return on assets 264 - 374 -
Company contributions 69 - 35 -
Benefits paid (311) - (242) -
Acquisition 154 - - -
Fair value of assets at 31 December 2,886 - 2,710 -
Funded Status
Assets greater (less) than obligations 64 (616) 212 (588)
Unrecognised actuarial loss 300 53 195 45
Unrecognised prior service cost (benefit) 133 (206) 142 (221)
Unrecognised transition obligation (200) - (227) -
Total recognised 297 (769) 322 (764)
Balance Sheet Recognition
Prepaid benefits 459 - 439 -
Accrued liabilities (257) (769) (219) (764)
Intangible asset 20 - 23 -
Accumulated other comprehensive income 75 - 79 -
Total recognised 297 (769) 322 (764)
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Note 17 - Post-retirement benefit plans (continued)

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation (“ABO”), and fair value of plan assets for pension plans with ABO in
excess of plan assets were $285 million, $247 million and $nil, respectively, at 31 December 1998, and $245 million, $219 million and

$nil, respectively, at 31 December 1997.

Percent
1998 1997
Pension Other Pension Other

Assumptions
Discount rate 6.75 6.75 7.0 7.0
Expected return on plan assets 10.5 n/a 10.5 n/a
Rate of salary progression 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0

For measurement purposes, a 7 per cent annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of health care benefits was assumed for 1997
to 2001, after which the rate was assumed to decrease to 5 per cent and remain at that level thereafter.

A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

$ million
1998
Increase Decrease
Total of service and interest cost 4.0 (3.4)
Post-retirement benefit obligation 44.0 (37.4)
$ million
1998 1997 1996

Components of Net Benefit Cost

Pension benefits:

Service cost 53 53 60
Interest cost 173 174 177
Expected return on plan assets (281) (256) (238)
Amortisation of transition asset (27) (27) 27)
Amortisation of prior service cost 7 8 8
Recognised actuarial (gain) loss 10 10 24
Net benefit (income) cost (65) (38) 4

Other post retirement benefits:
Service cost 7 7 7
Interest cost 39 40 42
Amortisation of prior service cost (benefit) (15) (15) (15)
Recognised actuarial (gain) loss - - 3
Net benefit (income) cost 31 32 37
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Part llI: Information Relating to ARCO

Note 18 - Lease commitments
Capital lease obligations are recorded at the present value of future rental payments. The related assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis.

At 31 December 1998, future minimum rental payments due under leases were as follows:

$ million
Capital Operating
leases leases
1999 3 177
2000 3 162
2001 3 193
2002 3 153
2003 3 145
Later years 60 369
Total minimum lease payments 75 1,199
Imputed interest (rates ranging from 8% to 12%) 51
Present value of minimum lease payments included in long-term debt 24
Minimum future rental income under noncancellable subleases at 31 December 1998, amounted to $69 million.
As at 31 December 1997, future minimum rental payments due under leases were as follows:
$ million
Capital Operating
leases leases
1998 3 249
1999 3 209
2000 3 178
2001 3 120
2002 3 103
Later years 67 632
Total minimum lease payments 82 1,491
Imputed interest (rates ranging from 9.75% to 12%) 56
Present value of minimum lease payments included in long-term debt 26
Minimum future rental income under noncancellable subleases at 31 December 1997, amounted to $63 million.
Operating lease net rental expense for the years ended 31 December was as follows:
$ million
1998 1997 1996
Minimum rentals 189 109 106
Contingent rentals 2 - _
Sublease rental income (20) 11 (11)
Net rental expense 171 98 95

No restrictions on dividends or on additional debt or lease financing exist under ARCO’s lease commitments. Under certain conditions,
options exist to purchase certain leased properties.
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Note 19 - Stock options

Options to purchase shares of ARCO’s common stock have been granted to executives, outside directors and key employees. The
exercise price of each option is equal to the fair market value of common stock at the date of grant. These options become exercisable in

varying instalments and expire 10 years after the date of grant. Options granted prior to 1997 vest over two years in equal instalments.
Options granted subsequently vest equally over three years. Transactions during 1998, 1997 and 1996 were as follows (restated to give

effect to 13 June 1997 100 per cent stock dividend):

Number of Weighted average
shares exercise price
Balance, 1 January 1996 7,676,272 $52.92
Granted 1,101,834 56.61
Exercised (1,110,326) 46.15
Cancelled (34,358) 58.47
Balance, 31 December 1996 7,633,422 $54.41
Granted 1,414,048 64.47
Exercised (1,022,100) 52.21
Cancelled (18,224) 61.18
Balance, 31 December 1997 8,007,146 $56.45
Granted 1,862,840 73.73
Exercised (420,012) 49.85
Cancelled (87,647) 69.52
Balance, 31 December 1998 9,412,327 $60.12
A summary of ARCO’s fixed stock options as of 31 December 1998, 1997 and 1996, was as follows:
1998 1997 1996
Shares available for option 8,523,492 8,247,671 8,672,714
Options exercisable 6,803,228 6,064,856 6,067,976
Weighted average exercise price of options exercisable $56.01 $54.58 $54.01
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year $18.96 $14.27 $25.90
Used to calculate fair value:
Risk-free interest rate 5.57% 6.38% 6.00%
Expected life (years) 10 10 10
Expected volatility 23.06% 18.17% 14.42%
Expected dividends 3.85% 4.29% 0.00%

At 31 December 1998, exercise prices for options outstanding ranged from $42.25 to $85.875 and the weighted average remaining

contractual life was 5.88 years.
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Part llI: Information Relating to ARCO

Note 19 - Stock options (continued)

ARCO applies APB No. 25 in accounting for its fixed stock options. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognised for
options granted. The following table reflects pro forma net income and earnings per share had ARCO elected to adopt the fair value
method under SFAS No. 123:

$
1998 1997 1996
Net income:

As reported 452 1,771 1,663
Pro forma 440 1,758 1,651

Earnings per share (diluted):
As reported 1.40 5.41 5.09
Pro forma 1.36 5.37 5.05

These pro forma amounts may not be representative of future disclosures since the estimated fair value of stock options would be
amortised to expense over the vesting period, and additional options may be granted in future years.

Beginning in 1997, ARCO awards contingent restricted stock to executives and key employees. Contingent restricted stock may be
converted to performance based restricted stock at various multiples depending on attainment of certain performance criteria over a
specified evaluation period. Restricted stock ultimately issued is subject to a two-year restriction on transfer.

During 1998 and 1997, respectively, 184,488 and 326,688 shares of contingent restricted stock were awarded at weighted average
prices of $74.00 and $64.06, net of forfeitures and retirements, with varying evaluation periods. During 1998, 135,180 shares of restricted
stock were issued at a weighted average price of $73.93.

During 1998 and 1997, $10 million and $23 million was recognised as expense for performance-based restricted stock, respectively.

Holders of options granted prior to 1997 accrue dividend share credits (DSCs) on all shares under option. The amount of DSCs
accrued is determined based upon the quarterly dividend rate and fair market value of ARCO common stock as of each quarterly record
date. Upon exercise of options, holders receive additional shares of common stock equal to DSCs accumulated.

A summary of ARCO’s DSC activity was as follows:

Shares
Balance, 31 December 1996 1,695,986
Accrued 343,116
Paid out (396,250)
Cancelled (287)
Balance, 31 December 1997 1,642,565
Accrued 316,486
Paid out (166,512)
Cancelled (83)
Balance, 31 December 1998 1,792,456

During 1998 and 1997, $11 million and $35 million was recognised as expense for DSCs, respectively.
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Note 20 - Stockholders’ equity
Detail of capital stock as of 31 December was as follows:

1998 1997
$3.00 Cumulative convertible preference stock, par $1:
Shares authorised 78,089 78,089
Shares issued and outstanding 51,608 55,941
Aggregate value in liquidation — (thousands) $4,129 $4,475
$2.80 Cumulative convertible preference stock, par $1:
Shares authorised 833,776 833,776
Shares issued and outstanding 573,336 615,653
Aggregate value in liquidation — (thousands) $40,134 $43,096
Common stock, par $2.50:
Shares authorised 600,000,000 600,000,000
Shares issued 325,902,559 322,719,890
Shares outstanding 321,315,367 320,369,895
Shares held in treasury 4,587,192 2,349,995

Changes in preference stocks were due to conversions. The $3.00 cumulative convertible preference stock is convertible into 13.6
shares of common stock. The $2.80 cumulative convertible preference stock is convertible into 4.8 shares of common stock. Common
stock is subordinate to the preference stocks for dividends and assets. The $3.00 and $2.80 preference stocks may be redeemed at the
option of ARCO for $82 and $70 per share, respectively. ARCO has authorised 75,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $.01 par, of which

none were issued or outstanding at 31 December 1998.

At 31 December 1998, shares of ARCO’s authorised common stock were reserved as follows:

Conversions:
$3.00 Preference stock
$2.80 Preference stock
Stock option plans
Employee benefit plans

Total

701,869
2,752,013
17,935,819
9,974,482

31,364,183

Under ARCO’s incentive compensation plans, awards of ARCO’s common stock may be made to officers, outside directors and key

employees.
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Part llI: Information Relating to ARCO

Note 21 - Supplemental cash flow information
The following is supplemental cash flow information for the years ended 31 December:

$ million
1998 1997 1996
Short-term investments:
Gross sales and maturities 226 1,784 3,196
Gross purchases (259) (1,226) (2,443)
Net cash provided (used) (33) 558 753
Notes payable:
Gross proceeds 14,978 7,386 3,850
Gross repayments (14,066) (6,865) (8,751)
Net cash provided 912 521 99
Gross noncash provisions charged to income 652 500 261
Reserve reversal from partial tax audit settlements - (145) -
Cash payments of previously accrued items (468) (294) (464)
Noncash provisions greater (less) than cash payments 184 61 (203)
Changes in working capital — increase (decrease) to cash:
Accounts receivable 19 363 (280)
Inventories 8 (63) (81)
Accounts payable (60) (111) 205
Other working capital 340 ©6) 264
307 183 158

Excluded from the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 1998 was the issue of 2,725,030 shares of
ARCO common stock to a consolidated subsidiary in exchange for certain property, plant and equipment owned by the subsidiary. The
transaction was recorded at fair market value.

In conjunction with the acquisition of UTP, liabilities were assumed as follows:

$ million
Fair value of assets acquired 3,745
Cash paid (2,707)
Liabilities assumed 1,038

Excluded from the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 1997 was ARCQO’s use of Lyondell
common stock to redeem its 9 per cent Exchangeable Notes with an outstanding principal amount of $988 million.

In October 1998, through a three-way exchange involving ARCO, Vastar and Mobil, ARCO disposed of its California heavy crude
properties. In the transaction, an ARCO subsidiary holding the California properties traded the California properties for Mobil’s interests in
producing fields and exploration acreage in the Gulf of Mexico. In connection with the disposition, ARCO recorded an impairment
writedown of $147 million before tax, or $114 million after tax, that was included in the impairment discussed in Note 10. Vastar then
purchased the ARCO subsidiary holding the Gulf of Mexico properties for $437 million, including the assumption of $300 million of debt.
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Note 22 - Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions resulted in net losses of $2 million, $12 million and $5 million in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

Note 23 - Earnings per share

$ million, except per share amounts

1998 1997 1996
Per Per Per
Income  Shares share  Income Shares share  Income Shares share
Income (loss) from continuing operations (655) 1,331 1,261
Less: Preference stock dividends (2) ) )
Income (loss) from continuing operations available to common
shareholders (657) 321.0 (2.05) 1,329 321.2 4.14 1,259 321.7 3.92
Discontinued operations 1,107 321.0 3.45 558 321.2 1.74 402 321.7 1.25
Extraordinary item — loss on extinguishment of debt (118) 321.2 (0.37)
Total income available to common shareholders — basic EPS 450 321.0 1.40 1,769 321.2 5.51 1,661 321.7 5.17
Income (loss) from continuing operations available to common
shareholders (657) 321.0 1,329 321.2 1,259 321.7
Contingently issuable shares (primarily options) - 2.3 0.6
$3.00 Convertible preference stock - 0.8 0.9
$2.80 Convertible preference stock - 2 3.1 2 3.3
Income (loss) from continuing operations available to common
shareholders (657)  321.0 (2.05) 1,331 327.4 4.07 1,261 326.5 3.86
Discontinued operations 1,107 321.0 3.45 558 327.4 1.70 402 326.5 1.23
Extraordinary item — loss on extinguishment of debt (118) 327.4 (0.36)
Total income available to common shareholders and assumed
conversions — diluted EPS? 450 321.0 1.40 1,771 327.4 5.41 1,663 326.5 5.09

2 No dilution assumed for 1998 due to antidilutive effect on loss from continuing operations.

Note 24 - Comprehensive income

Effective 1 January 1998, ARCO adopted SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income”, which established new rules for the

reporting of comprehensive income and its components. Comprehensive income comprises net income plus all other changes in equity
from nonowner sources. The new disclosures had no impact on ARCO’s net income, financial position, stockholders’ equity or cash

flows.

The related tax effects allocated to each component of other comprehensive income at 31 December were as follows:

$ million
Unrealised Foreign Minimum
gain (loss) currency pension
on securities  translation liability
1998
Pre-tax amount (1,107) (30) 11
Tax (expense) benefit 426 12 (4)
Net-of-tax amount (681) (18) 7
1997
Pre-tax amount 623 (299) 42)
Tax (expense) benefit (242) 114 16
Net-of-tax amount 381 (185) (26)
1996
Pre-tax amount 379 (6) 52
Tax (expense) benefit (143) 4 (20)
Net-of-tax amount 236 2 32
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Part llI: Information Relating to ARCO

Note 24 - Comprehensive income (continued)
Accumulated nonowner changes in equity (accumulated other comprehensive income) at 31 December were as follows:

$ million

1998 1997

Net unrealised gain (loss) on investments (75) 606
Foreign currency translation adjustment (222) (204)
Minimum pension liability (47) (54)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (344) 348

Unrealised gains (losses) on securities related primarily to changes in the fair value of ARCO’s investment in LUKOIL common stock,
which had a fair value of $225 million, $1.3 billion and $678 million at 31 December 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively, and a book value
of $342 million.

Note 25 - Research and development
Expenditures for research and development totalled $32 million, $38 million and $25 million for the years ended 31 December 1998, 1997
and 1996, respectively.
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Note 26 - Unaudited quarterly results

$ million, except per share amounts

1998 1997
Sales and other operating revenues
Quarter ended (restated):
31 March 2,536 3,892
30 June 2,564 3,534
30 September 2,655 3,494
31 December 2,548 3,420
Total 10,303 14,340
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes, minority interest and extraordinary
item
Quarter ended (restated):
31 March 190 601
30 June 32 632
30 September (269) 268
31 December (1,235)%¢ 377
Total (1,282) 1,878
Net income (loss)
Quarter ended:
31 March 220 483
30 June 154 3907
30 September 872° 516°
31 December (794)° 382°
Total 452 1,771
Earned per share
Quarter ended:
31 March 0.67 1.48
30 June 0.47 1.19
30 September 2.67 1.57
31 December (2.47) 1.17

See Note 6 to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Includes $291 million gain on disposition of Lyondell stock.
See Note 7 to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Includes $925 million impairment writedown.

Includes $998 million net gain on disposition of segments.
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Part llI: Information Relating to ARCO

4  Supplemental Information (unaudited)

Oil and gas producing activities

The SEC defines proved oil and gas reserves as those estimated quantities of crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids which
geological and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under
existing economic and operating conditions. Proved developed oil and gas reserves are reserves that can be expected to be recovered
through existing wells with existing equipment and operating methods.

Petroleum reserves are estimated by ARCO engineers. The estimates include reserves in which ARCO holds an economic interest
under production-sharing and other types of operating agreements with foreign governments.

Reserves attributable to certain oil and gas discoveries were not considered proved as of 31 December 1998 due to geological,
technical or economic uncertainties. Proved reserves do not include amounts that may result from extensions of currently proved areas or
from application of enhanced recovery processes not yet determined to be commercial in specific reservoirs. Proved reserves also do not
include any reserves attributable to ARCO’s 8 per cent interest in LUKOIL, a Russian oil company. NGL comprise 13 per cent of
petroleum liquid proved reserves.

ARCO has no long-term supply contracts to purchase petroleum liquids or natural gas from foreign governments.

The changes in proved reserves for the years ended 31 December were as follows:

Petroleum Liquids (million barrels) Natural Gas (billion cubic feet)
Consolidated Consolidated
Other Other
US International Total Reserves'  Worldwide US International Total Reserves'  Worldwide

Reserves at

1 January, 1996 2,163 206 2,369 - 2,369 4,666 3,683 8,349 - 8,349
Revisions 60 4 64 - 64 108 (94) 9 - 9
Improved recovery 5 - 5 - 5 14 - 14 - 14
Purchases 16 218 234 - 234 114 - 114 - 114
Extensions and discoveries 76 5 81 - 81 343 30 373 - 373
Production (207) (24) (231) - (231) (382) (267) (649) - (649)
Consumed - - - - - (78) %) (83) - (83)
Sales M - M - M ) - ) - )
Reserves at

31 December, 1996 2,112 409 2,521 - 2,521 4,776 3,347 8,123 - 8,123
Revisions 115 60 175 - 175 187 17 204 - 204
Improved recovery 10 - 10 - 10 28 3 31 - 31
Purchases 10 25 35 49 84 165 16 181 67 248
Extensions and discoveries 89 55 144 - 144 308 352 660 - 660
Production (204) (29 (233) (1) (234) (389) (308) (697) - (697)
Consumed - - - - - (79) (10) (89) - (89)
Sales M - M - O ®) - ®) - ®)
Reserves at

31 December, 1997 2,131 520 2,651 48 2,699 4,988 3,417 8,405 67 8,472
Revisions 72 (13) 59 2 61 33 (95) (62) ©) (63)
Improved recovery 30 - 30 - 30 6 5 11 - 11
Purchases 42 279 321 13 334 74 1,333 1,407 349 1,756
Exchanges (119) - (119) - (119) 184 - 184 - 184
Extensions and discoveries 88 1 89 - 89 367 - 367 - 367
Production (192) (46) (238) 2 (240) (429) (325) (754) (14) (768)
Consumed - - - - - (79) 9 (88) - (88)
Sales ) ()] (12) - (12) 27) - 27) - 27)
Reserves at

31 December, 1998 2,043 738 2,781 61 2,842 5,117 4,326 9,443 401 9,844
Proved developed reserves:

At 1 January, 1996 1,896 92 1,988 - 1,988 4,294 1,806 6,100 - 6,100

At 31 December, 1996 1,828 150 1,978 - 1,978 4,310 1,780 6,090 - 6,090

At 31 December, 1997 1,821 204 2,025 7 2,032 4,467 1,643 6,110 10 6,120

At 31 December, 1998 1,582 292 1,874 36 1,910 4,480 2,487 6,967 343 7,310

1 Comprises reserves attributable to ARCO’s ownership interest in equity affiliates
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Included in ARCQ’s reserves are 100 per cent of the reserves of Vastar. Vastar’s reserves comprised 9 per cent and 51 per cent of US
petroleum liquids and natural gas reserves, respectively, at 31 December 1998.

During 1998, net reserve additions replaced 197 per cent of worldwide oil-equivalent production. During the three-year period
1996-1998, ARCO'’s net reserve additions replaced 166 per cent of worldwide oil-equivalent production. Significant changes in 1998
related to the following:

. The addition of approximately 500 mmboe from the acquisition of UTP;
. The addition of approximately 80 mmboe associated with risked service contracts with the government of Venezuela; and
. The exchange of California heavy oil properties for oil and gas properties in the Gulf of Mexico.

Including contracts acquired with UTP, ARCO is a contractor to an affiliate of the Venezuelan government under six risked service
contracts. ARCO, either solely or with partners, is responsible for providing capital and technology for the redevelopment of the fields
along with operating existing production. In exchange for providing and funding overall operation and field development, ARCO is paid a
per-barrel service fee to cover reimbursement of costs plus profit. There are two components to the fees, which include (1) a set fee for
contractual baseline production and (2) a fee for incremental production. The fee for incremental production is based on a sliding scale
incentive mechanism, which is indexed to a basket of international oil prices and overall field profitability.

Proved reserves and production quantities for Venezuelan operations are recorded based on ARCO’s net working interest in each of
the contract areas, “net” meaning reserves excluding royalties and interests owned by others per the contractual arrangements. The
Venezuelan government maintains full ownership of all hydrocarbons in the fields.

Natural gas from the North Slope of Alaska, other than that used in providing fuel in North Slope operations or sold to others on the
North Slope, is not presently economically marketable.

ARCO is actively evaluating various technical options for commercialising North Slope gas. Among the options being studied are the
construction of gas transportation and LNG manufacturing facilities and the development of a gas-to-liquids conversion process. ARCO is
also working with the State of Alaska to enhance the fiscal and regulatory climate for the ultimate commercialisation of North Slope gas
resources. Significant technical uncertainties and existing market conditions still preclude gas from such potential projects being included
in ARCO’s reserves.

ARCO reports reserve estimates to various federal government agencies and commissions. These estimates may cover various regions
of crude oil and natural gas classifications within the United States and may be subject to mandated definitions. There have been no
reports since the beginning of the last fiscal year of total ARCO reserve estimates furnished to federal government agencies or
commissions which vary from those reported to the SEC.
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The aggregate amounts of capitalised costs relating to oil and gas producing activities and the related accumulated depreciation,
depletion and amortisation as of 31 December were as follows:

$ million
1998 1997 1996
US  International Total US  International Total US  International Total
Proved properties 16,348 11,345 27,693 15,845 6,026 21,871 15,004 5,245 20,249
Unproved properties 622 1,292 1,914 365 447 812 257 297 554

16,970 12,637 29,607 16,210 6,473 22,683 15,261 5,642 20,8083
Accumulated depreciation,
depletion and amortisation 10,569 4,789 15,358 10,559 2,959 13,518 9,924 2,668 12,592

Net capitalised costs 6,401 7,848 14,249 5,651 3,514 9,165 5,337 2,874 8,211

Net capitalised costs of
equity affiliates*

188 188 - 55 55 - - -
Total 6,401 8,036 14,437 5,651 3,569 9,220 5,337 2,874 8,211

*ARCO'’s share

Costs, both capitalised and expensed, incurred in oil and gas producing activities during the three years ended 31 December are set
forth below. Property acquisition costs represent costs incurred to purchase or lease oil and gas properties. Exploration costs include
costs of geological and geophysical activity and drilling exploratory wells. Development costs include costs of drilling and equipping
development wells and construction of production facilities to extract, treat and store oil and gas.

$ million
1998 1997 1996

US  International Total US  International Total US International Total

Property acquisition costs:
Proved properties 235 2,594 2,829 92 224 316 82 275 357
Unproved properties 72 662 734 100 8 108 98 11 109
Exploration costs 306 376 682 328 332 660 277 213 490
Development costs 1,102 1,200 2,302 692 794 1,486 481 482 963
Total expenditures 1,715 4,832 6,547 1,212 1,358 2,570 938 981 1,919
Costs incurred of equity affiliates* - 349 349 - 109 109 - - -
Total 1,715 5,181 6,896 1,212 1,467 2,679 938 981 1,919

*ARCO'’s share
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Results of operations from oil and gas producing activities (including operating overhead) for the three years ended 31 December were

as follows:

$ million
1998 1997 1996

US International Total US International Total US International Total

Revenues:
Sales 1,535 1,305 2,840 1,974 1,349 3,323 1,892 1,140 3,032
Transfers 1,077 - 1,077 2,074 - 2,074 2,199 - 2,199
Other 44 75 119 42 45 87 47 45 92
2,656 1,380 4,036 4,090 1,394 5,484 4,138 1,185 5,323
Production costs 609 332 941 615 286 901 587 234 821
Production taxes 273 56 329 420 43 463 457 50 507
Exploration expenses 272 357 629 263 245 508 238 175 413
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 651 517 1,168 681 429 1,110 691 305 996
Impairment 180 1,267 1,447 - - - - - -
Other operating expenses 201 244 445 258 247 505 277 227 504
Results before income taxes 470 (1,393) (923) 1,853 144 1,997 1,888 194 2,082
Income tax expense (benefit) 58 (532) (474) 609 11 620 628 109 737

Results of operations from oil and gas

producing activities 412 (861) (449) 1,244 133 1,377 1,260 85 1,345
Results from equity affiliates* - ©)] 3) - ©) (6) - - -
412 (864) (452) 1,244 127 1,371 1,260 85 1,345

* ARCQO’s share

The difference between the above results of operations and the amounts reported for exploration and production segment net income

in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements is primarily restructuring costs related to the oil and gas operations, the

exclusions of non-producing exploration and production units (Alaskan pipelines, technical support) and minority interest adjustments.

The standardised measure of discounted estimated future net cash flows related to proved oil and gas reserves at 31 December was

as follows:
$ billion
1998 1997 1996
US International Total US International Total US International Total
Future cash inflows 21.9 16.2 38.1 36.7 16.6 53.3 48.8 17.8 66.6
Future development and production costs 13.0 7.6 20.6 15.0 71 221 14.2 7.3 21.5
Future income tax expense 2.3 2.9 5.2 7.3 3.5 10.8 12.0 3.2 156.2
Future net cash flows 6.6 5.7 12.3 14.4 6.0 20.4 22.6 7.3 29.9
10% annual discount 2.7 2.7 5.4 6.5 2.8 9.3 10.3 3.6 13.9
Standardised measure of discounted future
net cash flows 3.9 3.0 6.9 7.9 3.2 11.1 12.3 3.7 16.0
Standardised measure of discounted future
net cash flows of equity affiliates® - 0.1 0.1 - 0.1 0.1 - - -
Total 3.9 3.1 7.0 7.9 3.3 11.2 12.3 3.7 16.0

*ARCO'’s share
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Primary changes in the standardised measure of discounted estimated future net cash flows for the years ended 31 December were
as follows:

$ billion
1998 1997 1996
Sales and transfers of oil and gas, net of production costs (2.7) 4.0) (3.9
Extensions, discoveries and improved recovery, less related costs 0.5 0.9 1.2
Revisions of estimates of reserves proved in prior years:
Quantity estimates - 0.7 0.5
Net changes in price and production costs (11.3) (8.4) 8.4
Purchases/sales 3.1 0.5 1.0
Other (0.6) 0.7) 0.4
Accretion of discount 1.7 2.4 1.5
Development costs incurred during the period 2.3 1.5 1.0
Net change in income taxes 2.8 2.3 8.2)
Net change 4.2) 4.8) 6.1

Estimated future cash inflows are computed by applying year-end prices of oil and gas to year-end quantities of proved reserves.
Future price changes are considered only to the extent provided by contractual arrangements. Estimated future development and
production costs are determined by estimating the expenditures to be incurred in developing and producing the proved oil and gas
reserves at the end of the year, based on year-end costs and assuming continuation of existing economic conditions. Estimated future
income tax expense is calculated by applying year-end statutory tax rates (adjusted for permanent differences and tax credits) to
estimated future pretax net cash flows related to proved oil and gas reserves, less the tax basis of the properties involved.

These estimates are furnished and calculated in accordance with requirements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board and the
SEC. Estimates of future net cash flows presented do not represent management’s assessment of future profitability or future cash flows
to ARCO. Management’s investment and operating decisions are based on reserve estimates that include proved reserves prescribed by
the SEC as well as probable reserves, and on different price and cost assumptions from those used here.

It should be recognised that applying current costs and prices and a 10 per cent standard discount rate does not convey absolute
value. The discounted amounts arrived at are only one measure of the value of proved reserves.
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5  Summary of Differences between US GAAP and UK GAAP

The main differences between the accounting policies adopted by ARCO under US GAAP and those adopted by BP Amoco under UK
GAAP relate to the consolidation of a cogeneration plant, stock accounting, discounting of provisions, deferred taxation, exceptional

items, equity accounting, depreciation of the Trans Alaska pipeline and accounting for business combinations.

ARCQO’s US chemicals operations and its US and Australian coal operations were classified in its statements as discontinued operations,
in accordance with US GAAP. These operations have been disposed of and, due to restrictions on the availability of financial information
following their disposal, it is not possible to adjust these discontinued operations to a UK GAAP basis. Consequently, the results of
discontinued operations have been eliminated from the UK GAAP income statement, which therefore shows information for continuing
operations only. Further details are set out in Note 3 to the Unaudited Restatements of ARCO Financial Information under UK GAAP.

Unaudited Restatements of ARCO Financial Information under UK GAAP

Consolidated income statements for the years ended 31 December 1998, 1997 and 1996 under UK GAAP

$ million

Year ended 31 December 1998

Year ended 31 December 1997

Year ended 31 December 1996

Continuing Continuing Continuing
UK GAAP operations UK GAAP operations UK GAAP operations
US GAAP adjustments UK GAAP US GAAP  adjustments UK GAAP US GAAP  adjustments UK GAAP
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 4) (Note 2) (Note 4) (Note 2) (Note 4)
Turnover 11,341 - 11,341 15,338 - 15,338 15,071 - 15,071
Less: Joint ventures 188 106° 294 71 1162 187 21 972 118
Group turnover 11,153 (106) 11,047 15,267 (116) 15,151 15,050 97) 14,953
Replacement cost of sales 10,607 (368)° 10,239 11,653 (143 11,510 11,093 (115° 10,978
Production taxes 227 - 227 359 - 359 401 - 401
Gross profit 319 262 581 3,255 27 3,282 3,556 18 3,574
Distribution and administration expenses 1,167 (16)°¢ 1,151 1,028 (16)® 1,012 910 (16)¢ 894
Exploration expense 629 - 629 508 - 508 413 - 413
(1,477) 278 (1,199) 1,719 43 1,762 2,233 34 2,267
Other income 454 (137)¢ 317 357 (69)° 288 435 (59)¢ 376
Group replacement cost operating
profit (loss) (1,023) 141 (882) 2,076 (26) 2,050 2,668 (25) 2,643
Share of profits of joint ventures - 78° 78 - 32¢ 32 - 26° 26
Share of profits of associated undertakings - 60f 60 - 47t 47 - 44t 44
Total replacement cost operating profit
(loss) (1,023) 279 (744) 2,076 53 2,129 2,668 45 2,718
Profit (loss) on sale of businesses 928 1,713°9 2,641 291 3429 633 - -9 -
Profit (loss) on sale of fixed assets - 61" 61 - 49h 49 - 35h 35
Replacement cost profit (loss) before
interest and tax (95) 2,053 1,958 2,367 444 2,811 2,668 80 2,748
Stock holding gains (losses) - (57)' (57) - (68)' (68) - 87' 87
Historical cost profit (loss) before
interest and tax (95) 1,996 1,901 2,367 376 2,743 2,668 167. 2,835
Interest expense 259 75 334 535 64! 599 582 55 637
Profit (loss) before taxation (354) 1,921 1,567 1,832 312 2,144 2,086 112 2,198
Taxation (651) 2,388 1,737 285 496 781 786 44 830
Profit (loss) after taxation 297 (467) (170) 1,547 (184) 1,363 1,300 68 1,368
Income from discontinued operations 179 (179)' - 267 (267) - 402 (402) -
Minority shareholders’ interest 24 @ 20 43 m 44 39 m 40
Profit (loss) for the year 452 (642) (190) 1,771 (452) 1,319 1,663 (335) 1,328
Dividend requirements on preference shares 2 - 2 2 - 2 2 - 2
Profit (loss) for the year applicable to
ordinary shares 450 (642) (192) 1,769 (452) 1,317 1,661 (335) 1,326
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Consolidated balance sheets as at 31 December 1998, 1997 and 1996 under UK GAAP

$ million
Year ended 31 December 1998 Year ended 31 December 1997 Year ended 31 December 1996
UK GAAP UK GAAP UK GAAP
US GAAP adjustments UK GAAP US GAAP adjustments UK GAAP US GAAP adjustments UK GAAP
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 5) (Note 2) (Note 5) (Note 2) (Note 5)
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 975 - 975 844 - 844 601 - 601
Tangible assets 18,072 (1,022 17,050 13,081 22 13,083 12,333 252 12,358
Investments
Joint ventures
Gross assets 1,371 122° 1,493 638 133P 771 299 137° 436
Gross liabilities 321 34° 355 124 38® 162 7 39° 46
Net investment 1,050 88 1,138 514 95 609 292 98 390
Associated undertakings 208 - 208 255 - 255 220 (14) 206
Other 933 254° 1,187 2,010 ®810° 1,200 1,329 (343)° 986
2,191 342° 2,533 2,779 (715)P 2,064 1,841 (259)P 1,582
Total fixed assets 21,238 (680) 20,558 16,704 (713) 15,991 14,775 (234) 14,541
Current assets
Stock 564 178° 742 534 235° 769 466 303° 769
Trade debtors 716 - 716 862 - 862 1,186 - 1,186
Other debtors falling due
Within one year 705 (20)¢ 685 370 (24)4 346 405 (24)9 381
After more than one year 513 104° 617 481 110° 591 396 75° 471
Investments 576 (13)f 563 453 &) 448 951 ) 946
Cash at bank and in hand 514 - 514 280 - 280 1,204 - 1,204
Creditors — amounts falling due
within one year
Finance debt 2,802 - 2,802 1,620 - 1,620 2,037 - 2,037
Trade creditors 592 - 592 693 - 693 797 - 797
Other creditors 2,352 5849 2,936 1,232 2519 1,483 1,272 179 1,289
Net current (liabilities) assets (2,158) (335) (2,493) (665) 65 (500) 502 332 834
Total assets less current
liabilities 19,080 (1,015) 18,065 16,139 (648) 15,491 15,277 98 15,375
Creditors — amounts falling due
after more than one year
Finance debt 4,332 - 4,332 3,619 - 3,619 4,745 - 4,745
Other creditors 1,008 - 1,008 710 - 710 890 - 890
Provisions for liabilities and
charges
Deferred taxation 3,318 (2,943)" 375 2,661 (2,366)" 295 2,385 2,021)" 364
Other provisions 2,954 (202)’ 2,752 2,861 237! 2,624 2,565 (188)! 2,377
Net assets 7,468 2,130 9,598 6,288 1,955 8,243 4,692 2,307 6,999
Minority shareholders’ interest 259 5 264 240 4 244 152 4 156
Net assets of discontinued
operations 371 - 371 2,632 - 2,632 3,262 - 3,262
ARCO shareholders’ interest 7,580 2,125 9,705 8,680 1,951 10,631 7,802 2,303 10,105
Represented by
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 472 120% 592 638 170% 808 404 - 404
Share premium account 863 - 863 640 - 640 628 - 628
Reserves 6,245 2,005' 8,250 7,402 1,781 9,183 6,770 2,303 9,073
7,580 2,125 9,705 8,680 1,951 10,631 7,802 2,303 10,105
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Note 1 — Replacement cost profit
Operating profit is a UK GAAP measure of trading performance. It excludes profits and losses on the sale of businesses and fixed assets
and fundamental restructuring costs, interest expense and taxation.

BP Amoco determines operating profit on a replacement cost basis, which eliminates the effect of stock holding gains and losses. For
the oil and gas industry, the price of crude oil can vary significantly from period to period, hence the value of crude oil (and products) also
varies. As a consequence, the amount that would be charged to cost of sales on a FIFO basis of stock valuation would include the effect
of ail price fluctuations on oil and products stocks. BP Amoco therefore charges cost of sales with the average cost of supplies incurred
during the period rather than the historical cost of supplies on a FIFO basis. For this purpose, stocks at the beginning and end of the
period are valued at the average cost of supplies incurred during the period rather than at their historical cost. These valuations are made
quarterly by each business unit, based on local oil and product price indices applicable to their specific stock holdings, following a
methodology that has been consistently applied by BP Amoco for many years. Operating profit on the replacement cost basis is used by
BP Amoco management as the primary measure of business unit trading performance, and BP Amoco management believes that this
measure assists investors to assess the BP Amoco Group’s underlying trading performance from period to period.

Replacement cost is not a US GAAP measure. The major US oil companies apply the LIFO basis of stock valuation. The LIFO basis is
not permitted under UK GAAP. The LIFO basis eliminates the effect of price fluctuations on crude oil and product stock except where a
stock drawdown occurs in a period. BP Amoco management believes that, where stock volumes remain constant or increase in a period,
operating profit on the LIFO basis will not differ materially from operating profit on BP Amoco’s replacement cost basis.

Where a stock drawdown occurs in a period, cost of sales on a LIFO basis will be charged with the historical cost of the stock drawn
down, whereas BP Amoco’s replacement cost basis charges cost of sales at the average cost of supplies for the period. To the extent
that the historical cost on the LIFO basis of the stock drawn down is lower than the current cost of supplies in the period, operating profit
on the LIFO basis will be greater than operating profit on BP Amoco’s replacement cost basis. To the extent that the historical cost on
the LIFO basis of the stock drawn down is greater than the current cost of supplies in the period, operating profit on the LIFO basis will
be lower than operating profit on BP Amoco’s replacement cost basis.

Replacement cost profit before exceptional items excludes profits and losses on the sale of businesses and fixed assets and
fundamental restructuring costs, which are defined by UK GAAP. This is the measure of profit used by the BP Amoco Board of Directors
in setting targets for and monitoring performance within BP Amoco. BP Amoco’s management believes this indicator provides the most
relevant and useful measure for investors because it most accurately reflects underlying trading performance.

Note 2 - Reclassification
Reclassifications have been made to the ARCO historical financial information presented under US GAAP to conform to BP Amoco’s
presentation under UK GAAP.

For the presentation of ARCO’s US GAAP income statement on a UK format, the gain on disposition of discontinued operations, net of
tax, has been shown as a profit on the sale of businesses.

The extraordinary loss on the extinguishment of debt in 1997 has been included within interest expense as such a charge is not an
extraordinary item under UK GAAP.

Note 3 - Significant differences between ARCO’s accounting policies under US GAAP and BP Amoco’s accounting policies
under UK GAAP

ARCO prepares its financial statements in accordance with US GAAP. For purposes of preparing the unaudited pro forma income
statements and balance sheet, the financial statements of ARCO have been restated to conform with BP Amoco accounting policies
under UK GAAP by giving effect to the adjustments described below.

Consolidation basis

Under US GAAP, ARCQO's interest in a cogeneration facility is proportionately consolidated, whereas under UK GAAP the joint venture
would be equity accounted.
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Note 3 - Significant differences between ARCO’s accounting policies under US GAAP and BP Amoco’s accounting policies
under UK GAAP (continued)

Stock accounting

ARCO carries stocks at the lower of current market value or cost. Cost is determined under the LIFO method for the majority of stocks of
crude oil and petroleum products. The costs of remaining stocks are determined predominantly on an average cost basis.

BP Amoco carries stocks at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost to BP Amoco is determined using the FIFO method. Cost of
sales determined on a FIFO basis is adjusted to a replacement cost basis, i.e., to reflect the average cost of supplies incurred during the
year, by excluding stock holding gains and losses.

Deferred taxation

Under the UK GAAP restricted liability method, deferred taxation is only provided for where timing differences are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future. For US GAAP under the liability method, deferred taxation is provided for temporary differences between the
financial reporting basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities at enacted tax rates.

Exceptional items

Under UK GAAP, certain exceptional items are shown separately on the face of the income statement after operating profit. These items
are profits or losses on the sale or closure of businesses and fixed assets and fundamental restructuring costs. Under US GAAP, these
items, other than for discontinued operations, are classified as operating income or expenses.

Equity accounting

UK GAAP requires the investor’s share of operating profit or loss, exceptional items, interest expense and taxation of associated
undertakings and joint ventures to be shown separately from those of the group. For US GAAP, the after-tax profits or losses (i.e.
operating results after exceptional items, interest expense and taxation) are included in the income statement as a single line item.

UK GAAP requires the investor’s share of the gross assets and gross liabilities of joint ventures to be shown on the face of the balance
sheet, whereas under US GAAP the net investment is included as a single line item.

Provisions
UK GAAP requires provisions for decommissioning and environmental liabilities to be determined on a discounted basis if the effect of the
time value of money is material.

Provisions for decommissioning are recognised in full, on a discounted basis, at the commencement of oil and natural gas production.
UK GAAP also requires the capitalisation as a tangible fixed asset and subsequent depreciation, of an amount equivalent to the provision.

The unwinding of the discount, which represents a period-by-period cost, is included within interest expense.

Under US GAAP (i) environmental liabilities are discounted only where the timing and amounts of payments are fixed and reliably
determinable and (i) provisions for decommissioning are provided for on a unit-of-production basis over field lives.

Depreciation

BP Amoco depreciates the cost of its interest in the TransAlaska pipeline on a unit-of-throughput basis, whereas ARCO depreciates the
cost of its interest on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the pipeline. ARCO’s interest in the pipeline has been
accounted for in the unaudited pro forma income statements and balance sheet using the BP Amoco method.

Discontinued operations

ARCQO’s US chemicals operations and its US and Australian coal operations were classified in its statements as discontinued operations,
in accordance with US GAAP. These operations have been disposed of and due to restrictions on the availability of financial information
following their disposal it is not possible to adjust these discontinued operations to a UK GAAP basis. Consequently, the results of
discontinued operations have been eliminated from the UK GAAP income statement, which therefore shows information for continuing
operations only.
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Note 3 - Significant differences between ARCO’s accounting policies under US GAAP and BP Amoco’s accounting policies
under UK GAAP (continued)

Business combinations

US GAAP requires the recognition of a deferred tax asset or liability for the tax effects of differences between the assigned values and the
tax bases of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a purchase business combination, whereas under UK GAAP no such deferred tax
asset or liability is recognised. Under US GAAP the deferred tax asset or liability is amortised over the same period as the assets and
liabilities to which it relates.

US GAAP requires certain reorganisation and integration costs to be incurred as part of a purchase business combination to be
recognised as liabilities assumed and included in the allocation of the acquisition cost. UK GAAP does not permit recognition of these
costs as part of the accounting for the business combination.

Pensions
US GAAP requires an additional minimum liability to be shown in the balance sheet if the accumulated benefit obligation exceeds the fair
value of pension plan assets. UK GAAP does not require recognition of a liability in these circumstances.

Investments

Under US GAAP, ARCO has classified its investments in LUKOIL ADRs and the Zhenhai Refining and Chemical Company convertible
bonds as available for sale. Consequently, they are reported at fair value, with unrealised holding gains and losses, net of tax, reported in
accumulated other comprehensive income. If a decline in fair value below cost is “other than temporary” the unrealised loss should be
accounted for as a realised loss and charged against income. Under UK GAAP, these investments are deemed to be long-term and
carried in the balance sheet at cost, subject to review for impairment.

Treasury stock

Under US GAAP, treasury stock is deducted from shareholders’ interests. Under UK GAAP, stock purchased to meet obligations under
employee share schemes is shown in the balance sheet as fixed asset—investments and stock purchased which may be re-issued is
deducted from shareholders’ interest.

137



Part llI: Information Relating to ARCO

Note 4 - UK GAAP adjustments to historical ARCO income statements
The adjustments to restate the income statements of ARCO for the years ended 31 December 1998, 1997 and 1996 to conform with
BP Amoco accounting policies under UK GAAP are set out below.

$ million

For the year ended 31 December

Increase (decrease) in caption heading 1998 1997 1996

Consolidation basis

Joint ventures 106 116 97
Replacement cost of sales (53) (59) 47)
Distribution and administrative expenses (16) (16) (16)
Share of profit of joint ventures 37 41 34

Profit for the period - - -
Stock accounting

Stock holding gains (losses) (57) (68) 87

Profit for the period (57) (68) 87
Deferred taxation

Taxation 322 140 32

Profit for the period (322) (140) (32)
Exceptional items

Other income (61) (49) (35)

Profit (loss) on sale of businesses 1,713 342 -

Profit (loss) on sale of fixed assets 61 49 35

Taxation 1,713 342 -

Profit for the period - — _
Equity accounting

Other income (76) (20) (24)
Share of profit of joint ventures 41 © 8)
Share of profit of associated undertakings 60 a7 44
Interest 16 9 3
Taxation 9 9 9
Profit for the period - - -
Provisions
Replacement cost of sales (58) (71) (63)
Interest expense 59 55 52
Minority shareholders’ interest (4) 1 1
Profit for the period 3 15 -
Depreciation
Replacement cost of sales 9) ®) (12)
Profit for the period 9 8 12
Discontinued operation
Income from discontinued operations (179) (267) (402)
Profit for the period (179) (267) (402)
Business combinations
Replacement cost of sales (248) 5) )
Taxation 344 5 3
Profit for the period (96) - -
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Note 4 — UK GAAP adjustments to historical ARCO income statements (continued)
These adjustments may be summarised by caption heading as set out below.

$ million

For the year ended 31 December

1998 1997 1996
(@) Turnover: Joint ventures
Consolidation basis 106 116 97
(b) Replacement cost of sales
Consolidation basis (53) (59) 47)
Provisions (58) (71) (63)
Depreciation 9) 8) (12)
Business combination (248) 5) 3)
(368) (143) (115)
(c) Distribution and administration expenses
Consolidation basis (16) (16) (16)
(d) Other income
Exceptional items (61) (49) (35)
Equity accounting (76) (20) (24)
(137) (69) (59)
(e) Share of profit of joint ventures
Consolidation basis 37 4 34
Equity accounting 41 © 8)
78 32 26
(f) Share of profits of associated undertakings
Equity accounting 60 47 44
(g) Profit (loss) on the sale or termination of businesses
Exceptional items 1,713 342 -
(h) Profit (loss) on the sale of fixed assets
Exceptional items 61 49 35
(i) Stock holding gains (losses)
Stock accounting (57) (68) 87
(i) Interest expense
Equity accounting 16 9 3
Provisions 59 55 52
75 64 55
(k) Taxation
Deferred taxation 322 140 32
Exceptional items 1,713 342 -
Equity accounting 9 9 9
Business combination 344 5 3
2,388 496 44
() In